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CapitalSource manages approximately

$17 billion in capital. We have invested
in over 1,300 companies in the middle
market. The middle market powers the
economy—and our business empowers

the middle market.

einn S e

CaritaLSource Inc. (NYSE: CSE) isa leading commercial lending, investmens, and asset management business focused on the middle
market. As of December 31, 2006, CapitalSource managed a $17 billion portfolio, including $8.6 billion in its commercial lending and
ir ment business, $5.8 billion in its residential mortgage investment business, and $2.4 billion managed on behalf of chird parties.
Headquarrered in Chevy Chase, Maryland, the company has approximately 550 employees in offices across the United States and in Europe.

For mere information, visit hup:/fwww.capitalsource.com.
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Dear Fellow Shareholder,

This year our company exceeded our expectations.

As you know, CapitalSource has been built from the start

to serve the middle market: customers whose capital needs
are too large for local banks but who require customized
appreaches that challenge the largest financial institutions.
We designed this business to have unigue advantages based
on cur well-defined views about the middle market:

* Growth: The middle market is dynamic, is thriving, and
will continue to grow. Serving this market positions us well
to share in that growth,

» Customer Service: A direct origination platform serving
over 1,300 middle market customers by providing
innovative, tailored capital solutions generates quality
investments with attractive returns.

* Balance: A balanced business—acress industry sectors,
financing vehicles, in our leverage, between spread and
nen-spread income—stabilizes our company.

= Discipline: An intensely disciplined approach to the
business—prudent leverage and a deep credit culture—
strengthens our firm for the long run.

2006 Overview

The advantages we have built in the middle market are
evidenced by our 2006 results. Managed assets grew to
approximatety $17 billion, and ihe scale of our enterprise in
terms of people {now approximately 550 professionals) and
offices (now more than 20 throughout the United States and
Europe) grew proportionately. We delivered a more than 22%

adjusted return on equity, while keeping leverage well below
our long-term target and delivering superior credit performance.

In 2006, we became a dividend payer, returning $2.02 per
share in regular quarterly dividends to shareholders. The
combination of dividends and the market performance of
our stock delivered a total shareholder return of approximately
32% versus less than 16% for the S&P 500 Index.

Success in 2006, as in any year, was not without its challenges.
We don't pretend to control external forces in our market
such as the unprecedented level of liquidity or vanations

in the performance of sectors of the economy. But we do
control how we respond to these external farces. At every
turn, we exercise the patience and prudence necessary

to generate attractive and sustainable returns for our
shareholders. We have many tools 10 help us do this—
insight into the middle market, proprietary analytics, and
exceptional deal flow that provides the freedom to be
selective. We couple these factors with our most important
asset, hundreds of talented investment professionals committed
to the success of our clients.

This was our first year operating as a real estate investment
trust or REIT. Electing REIT status was designed to enhance
the competitiveness of our real estate businesses without
slowing our other, non-real estate businesses. Powered by
REIT status, our commerctal managed assets in real estate
grew 52% even as we enhanced the credit quality of those
investments. And, as planned, our non-real estate, corporate
lending businesses continued 1o flourish as well, with managed

assets up nearly 58% from the prior year.




Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

We continued to build on our portfolio of managed assets
that are funded through external vehicles and not through
our balance sheet. In 2006, we launched externally advised
securitized funds in cellateralized loan obligation form,
built a residential mortgage investment management
team, and launched fund initiatives in private equity and
mezzanine finance.

The Future

We are committed to growing and broadening our multi-
strategy investment business in the middle market. Our
proprietary origination platform will continue to power our
growth, superior credit performance, and returns. Our
discipline and our batance will drive stability and strength.
Where we see opportunity, expect aggressiveness. Where
we do not, expect patience.

Many of the assets that we originate will be funded on our
balance sheet. Where more efficient, we will continue to build
our asset management business by leveraging appropriate
separate capital vehicles. In the first instance, our company
will earn spread income, which currently is the majority of our
income. In the second instance, we will earn management
fees. We expect management fee income to grow mare
quickly than our spread-based income as cur capital markets
and asset management initiatives achieve their potential.
The growing balance between those two will be positive
for sharehaolders.

We expect thai the deep and increasing diversity of our
assets, in our funding and capital, and between spread and
non-spread income, will deliver an excepticnally stable and

John K. Delaney

growing siream of earnings in the future. Since we cperate
in a dynamic market with a strong, crganic growth rate, we
expect great things for our firm as we continue to build the
business for the leng run:

* We will focus on continuing to create shareholder value
through fong-term growth in earnings per share and
dividends. As with any business, there will be normal
fluctuations from quarter to guarter around that longer-term
trend. We expect them, as should you.

* We will focus on continuing to provide an attractive, stable,
and growing dividend as the best proof of our conviction
in the power and value of our business franchise.

* We will focus on continuing to invest in our people and in
the ongination platform they make possible.

*» We are utterly committed to carrying out our work with
the highest standard of professional conduct. You
deserve nothing less.

It is a privilege to fead this company-—your company. Thank
you for your continued trust.

John K. Delaney
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer










Sue Morelli
President and CEQ, Au Bon Pain

The first Au Bon Pain cpened in 1978 at Bostan's
historic Faneuil Hall marketplace. From its roots in
Boston, Au Bon Pain has grown 10 become one of the
leading bakery café chains by emphasizing hospitality
and the diversity, quality, and freshness of its menu
and ingredients. Au Bon Pain has more than 200 locations
operating in the United States, Japan, Kuwait, South

Korea, Taiwan, and Thailand.

empowering

Au Bon Pain transtates as “the place of good fread.” Thanks to a 2006 management buyout,
the café chain is now a place of both good bread and growth. The transaction, led by President
and CEQ, Sue Morelli, allowed management to obtain a substantial equity interest in the new
company. Morelli sought a way to create an owner-operator culture that gives employees, down
to the store manager level, a stake in the well-being of the company. Morelli and the management
team have lead a number of significant growth projects, including additional international
expansion in Kuwait and Thailand, and the introduction of The Bistro by Au 8on Pain suburban
concept. Other changes to the business have included an extensive remodeling program and
menu enhancements. But growth alone won't take Au Bon Pain 10 where it wants to go. More

than ever, Morelli says, the café’s angoing success will depend on the treatment of its guests.

The management team of Au Bon Pain sought funds to finance the recapitalization of
the company. The deal was funded by an $82 million debt financing package underwritten

by CapitalSource.










Craig Wood
Curtis Bashaw
Co-Founders and Co-CEQs, Cape Advisars, Inc.

Cape Advisors, Inc. is a New York City-based real
estate development and investment firm. Founded
in 1995 and led by co-founders Curtis Bashaw and
Craig Wood, Cape Advisors specializes in ¢reating
value through investments in underserved real

estate markets and market niches. Whether it is the
renovation of a historic building or new construction,
the firm successfully executes complex projects with
imagination and vision, and threugh an emphasis on
superior design and detail. Cape Advisors integrates
community needs and environmental stewardship in
every project they undertake,

empowering

Atlantic City is reinventing itself, harkening back to the time when its beaches, boardwalk, and
stately hotels made for a glamorous summer resort_ It is the perfect location for Craig Wood
and Curtis Bashaw 1o utilize their unigue development approach focused on reinventing and
restoring underutilized properties. Their Atlantic City project will transform two older, adjacent
hotels situated on a combined 1.36 acres into a single, high-end boutique hotel complex with
337 rooms. Cnce completed in 2008, the new hotel will feature two restaurants, a luxury spa,
a gym, and two pools with a large sun deck and cabanas. With innovative projects such as this

underway, the prospects of a revitalized Atlantic City will soon be realized.

CapitalSource provided Capse Adviscrs, Inc. a $76 mitlion senior acquisition/redevelopment loan.




Pejman Salimpour, M.D.
Pedram Salimpour, M.D.
Principals, Plymouth Health, L1C

Physician-owned Plymouth Health, LLC was formed to
acquire and aperate Alvarado Hospital Medical Center,
located in San Diega, California. The community-based
hospital has a nationally acclaimed cardiac program
and a comprehensive rehabilitation program,

empowering

In 2006, it was announced that a sale or closure of Alvarado Hospital Medical Center, located in
San Diego, California, would be required in order to end more than three years of legal issues
under previous management. Plymouth Health, LLC, led by brothers Pejman Salimpour, M.D.
and Pedram Salimpour, M.D., bought the hospital and committed to making the new Alvarado
work for its patients, its doctors, its nurses, and the community. The transition to the new ownership
team was well received in the community and within the hospital's walls where the Salimpours
received a five-minute standing ovation from the entire staff. The acquisition ended the uncertain

future of Alvarado, a hospital and business now poised to care for more patients.

CapitalSource provided a $25 milfion revolving credit facility, a $20 million secured term foan,
and a $5 million equipment term loan to finance Plymouth’s acquisition of Alvarado Hospital
Medical Center and the hospital’s working capital needs.
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balance

Our balance allows us to be disciplined. We compete on service and expertise—-never comgromising our high credit
standards. We serve hundreds of middle market customers, each with a different business and diffarent capital needs.
They come to us during times of growth and transition. Qur direct origination platform, expertise in focus sectars, and
ability to provide tailored sotutions give our company the edge o win the business and the discipline and clarity of

perspective to invest prudently.

Focus Sectors:

Asset Management
Commercial Real Estate
Corporate Finance

Healthcare Credit

Healthcare Real Estate

Lender Finance and Rediscount

Security Finance
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Corporate Headguarters
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Adjusted Earnings Reconciliation
(% in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2006 Decernner 31, 2003
Net income $279,276 $164,672
Add:
Real estate depreciation’ 10,323 —
Amortization of deterred financing fees 30,842 23,187
Men-cash equity compensation 33,294 18,071
Net unreatized loss on residential mortgage investment
portiolio, including refated derivatives? 5,852 —
Unraalized gain on derivatives and fareign currencies, net (1,470 {407)
Unrealized {oss (gain) on investiments, net 7,524 (83)
Provision for loan tosses 81,662 65,680
Recoveries? — —
Less:
Charge offs 16,510 8,532
Nonrecurring items® 4,725 —
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of taxes 370 —
Adjusted earnings $425,708 £263,588
Net income per share:
Basic—as reportad $1.68 $1.36
Diluted—as reported $1.65 $1.33
Average shares outstanding:
Basic—as reported 166,273,730 120,976,558
Diluted—as reported 169,220,007 123,433,645
Adjusted earnings per share:
8asic $2.56 $2.18
Diluted $2.518 $2.14
Average shares outstanding:
Basic 166,273,730 120,976,558
Diluted 171,551,9727 122,433,645
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United States Securities and Exchange Commission
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006
Commission File No.; 1-31753

CapitalSource Inc.

{Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 35-2206895
(State of Incarporation) {I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

4445 Willard Avenue, 12th Floor,

Chevy Chase, MD 20815 (800) 370-9431
{Address of Principal Executive Offices, (Registrant's Telephone Number,
Including Zip Code) Including Area Code}

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share New York Stock Exchange
{Title of Each Class) {Name of Exchange on Which Registered)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the regisirant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
YES| X ] NO[ ]

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15 (d) of the Act,
YES[ ] NO[X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed ail reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 1 5{d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrani was required to file such reports),
and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. YES[X] NOT |

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-Kis not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K of any amendment to this Form 10-K. [ ]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of
"accelerated filer” and "large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filer [ X } Accelerated filer [ ] Non-accelerated filer [ ]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company {(as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). YES[ ] NO[X]

The aggregate market value of the Registrant’s Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share, held by nonaffiliates of the Registrant, as of
June 30, 2006 was approximately $2,437,531,000.

As of February 15, 2007, the number of shares of the Registrant’s Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share, outstanding was
183.822,181.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of CapitalSource Inc.’s Proxy Statement for the 2007 annual meeting of shareholders, a definitive copy of which will be filed
with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the year covered by this Form 10-K, are incorporated by reference herein as portions of
Part Il of this Form 10-K.
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PART |

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-K, including the footnotes to our audited consolidated financial statements included herein, contains forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended, and as such may involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our
actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from future results, performance or achievements expressed
or implied by these forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements, which are based on certain assumptions and
describe our future plans, strategies and expectations, are generally identified by our use of words such as “intend,” “plan,”
“may,” "should,” “will,” “project,” “estimate,” "anticipate,” “believe,” “expect,” “continue,” “potential,” “opportunity,” and
similar expressions, whether in the negative or affirmative. Our ability to predict results or the mutual effect of future plans or
strategies is inherently uncertain. Aithough we believe that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are
based on reasonable assumptions, actual results and performance could differ materially from those set forth in the forward-
looking statements. All statements regarding our expected financial position, business and financing plans are forward-looking
statements. All forward-looking statements speak only to events as of the date on which the statements are made. All subsequent
written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us or any person acting on our behalf are qualified by the cautionary
statements in this section. We undertake no obligation to update or publicly release any revisions to forward-looking statements
to reflect events, circumstances or changes in expectations after the date on which the statement is made.

The information contained in this section should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements and
related nates and the information contained elsewhare in this Form 10-K, inctuding that set farth under item 1A, Risk Factors.

B iTem 1. BUSINESS

Overview

We are a commercial lending, investment and asset management company focused on the middle market. We operate as a real
estate investment trust (“REIT”) and provide senior and subordinated commercial loans, invest in real estate, engage in asset man-
agement and servicing activities, and invest in residential mortgage assets. We expect to formally make an election to REIT status
for 2006 when we file our tax return for the year ended December 31, 2006,

On January 1, 2006, we began operating as two reportable segments: 1) Commercial Lending & Investment and 2} Residential
Mortgage Investment. Qur Commercial Lending & Investment segment includes our commercial tending and investment business,
and our Residential Mortgage Investment segment includes all of our activities related to our residential martgage investments. For
financial information about our segments, see Note 24, Segment Data, in our audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2006.

Through our commercial lending and investment activities, our primary goal is to be the leading provider of financing to middle
market businesses that require customized and sophisticated financing. We provide a wide range of financial products that we
negotiate and structure on a dient-specific basis through direct interaction with the owners and senior managers of our clients. We
also originate and participate in broadly syndicated debt financings for larger businesses. We seek to add value to our clients’ busi-
nesses by providing tailored financing that meets their specific business needs and objectives.

The financing needs of our clients are often specific 1o their particular business or situation. We believe we can most successfully
meet these needs and manage risk through industry or sector expertise and flexibility in structuring financings. We offer a range of
senior and subordinate mortgage loans, real estate lease financing, asset-based loans, cash flow loans, and equity investments to
our clients. Because we believe specialized industry and/or sector knowledge is important to successfully serve our client base, we
originate, underwrite and manage our financings through three focused commercial financing businesses organized around our
areas of expertise. Focusing our efforts in these specific sectors, industries and markets allows us to rapidly design and implement
products that satisfy the special financing needs of our clients. During 2006, we also began to make direct real estate investments
and provide real estate lease financing to certain clients.

4  CaPITALSOURCE




Our commercial finance and investment businesses are:
« Healthcare and Specialty Finance, which generally provides first mortgage loans, asset-based revolving lines of credit, real
estate lease financing and other cash fiow loans to healthcare businesses and a broad range of other companies;
e Structured Finance, which generally engages in commercial and residential real estate finance and also provides asset-based
lending to finance companies; and
e Corporate Finance, which generally provides senior and subordinate loans through direct origination and participation in
widely syndicated loan transactions.

As of December 31, 2006, we had 1,072 loans outstanding under which we had funded an aggregate of $7.9 billion and com-
mitted to lend up to an additional $4.1 billion to our clients. Although we make loans as large as $400.0 million, our average
commercial loan size was $7.3 million as of December 31, 2006, and our average loan expasure by client was $11.3 miltion as of
December 31, 2006. Our commercial loans generally have a maturity of two to five years with a weighted average maturity of
3.23 years as of December 31, 2006. Substantially ail of our commercial loans require monthly interest payments at variable rates
and, in many cases, our commercial loans provide for interest rate floors that help us maintain our yields when interest rates are
low or declining. We price our {oans based upon the risk profile of our clients. As of December 31, 2006, our geographically
diverse client base consisted of 692 clients with headquarters in 47 states, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, and select inter-
national Jocations, primarily in Canada and the United Kingdom.

To optimize our REIT structure, we invest in certain residential mortgage assets. As of December 31, 2006, the balance of our resi-
dential mortgage investment portfolio was $5.8 billion, which included investments in residential mortgage loans and residential
mortgage-backed securities ("RMBS™).

Developments during Fiscal Year 2006

During 2006, we diversified our business to include real estate lease financing products and asset management services. We also
continued o enhance our existing product and service offerings by improving our syndication capabilities and by participating in an
increased number of syndicated loan transactions. In addition, we broadened our client base and the markets we serve by opening
our first international office located in Londoen.

During 2006, we began acquiring real estate for long-term investment purposes, all of which involved healthcare properties. Alf of
these facilities are leased to clients through the execution of long-term, triple-net operating leases. We had $722.3 million in direct
real estate assets as of December 31, 2006, which consisted primarily of land and buildings. We view these transactions as long-
term financings for the seller/tenant of these facilities for which we receive rent, which generally escalates per terms set forth in the
lease, and a real estate investment that may increase in value over time.

During 2006, we grew our asset management business. We completed our first collateralized lcan obligation {"CLO") issuance
comprising a portfolio of originated and acquired cash flow loans. We also opened warehouse facilities for two additional CLOs that
we intend to close over the next 12 months. In addition to our CLO business, we are party to a joint venture 10 acquire distressed
and other types of debt investments. As with our CLOs, we are the asset manager for this joint venture and receive a fee for man-
aging the assets owned by the joint venture. We view these and other potential asset management businesses as complementary
opportunities for us to leverage our commercial finance expertise into managing financial assets owned by third parties. We intend
to further build out our asset management businesses by focusing on additional product types, which, for example, may include
managing subordinated debt and equity investments for others.

During 2006, we enhanced our syndication capabilities and increased our participation in syndicated loan transactions. Our syndication
strategy for loans we originate allows us to limit our exposure to larger loans and typically results in greater fee income relative to our
loan exposure than we receive for originating ana holding the entire loan. As of December 31, 2006, we had syndicated $1.6 billion
of loans in addition to the $7.9 billion of commercial loans held in our portfolio. Our enhanced syndication capabilities also provide us
with opportunities to selectively purchase portions of loans originated by other lenders. By participating in these syndicated loans we
are able 1o increase our loan portfolio without incurring the higher costs we incur for directly originating loans. As of December 31,
2006, approximately 10% of the $7.9 billion aggregate cutstanding balance of eur commercial loan porifolio comprised loans for
which we are not the agent.
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Loan Products, Service Offerings and Investments

Commercial Lending & Investment Segment

The types of loan products and services offered by each of our commercial finance businesses share cormman characteristics, and
we generally underwrite the same types of loans across our three commercial finance businesses using similar criteria. When oppor-
tunities arise, we may offer a combination of products to a particular client. This single source approach often allows us to close
transactions faster than our competitors by eliminating the need for complicated and time-consuming intercreditar negotiations.
Qur primary commercial loan products, services and investments are as follows:

* Senior Secured Asset-Based Loans. Asset-based loans are collateralized by specified assets of the client, generally the
client’s accounts receivable and/or inventory. A loan is a “senior” loan when we have a first priority lien in the collateral
securing the loan.

* First Mortgage Loans. We make term loans secured by first mortgages. We make mortgage loans to clients including owners
and operators of senior housing and skilled nursing facilities; owners and operators of office, industrial, hospitality, multi-
family and residential properties; resort and residential developers; hospitals and companies backed by private equity firms that
frequently take out mortgages in connection with buyout transactions.

* Senior Secured Cash Flow Loans. Cash flow loans are made based on our assessment of a client’s ability to generate cash
flows sufficient to repay the loan and to maintain or increase its enterprise value during the term of the loan. Qur senior cash
flow term loans generally are secured by a security interest in all or substantially all of a client’s assets. In some cases, the equity
owners of a client pledge their stock in the client to us.

* Direct Real Estate Investments. During 2006, we began acquiring real estate for long-term investment purposes. These real
estate investments are generally leased to clients through the execution of long-term, triple-net operating leases. Under a
typical triple-net lease, the client agrees to pay a base monthly operating lease payment, subject to annual escalation, and all
facility operating expenses, as well as make capital improvements. Qur acquisition of these direct real estate investments are
sometimes structured as sale-leaseback transactions, in which we purchase the clients’ real estate and simultaneously lease it
back to them through the execution of a long-term, triple-net operating lease.

* Term B, Second Lien and Mezzanine Loans. We make Term B, second lien and mezzanine loans. A Term B loan is a loan that
shares a first priority lien in a client's collateral with the lenders on a client's senior loan but that comes after senior secured term
loans in order of payment preference upon a borrower’s liquidation, and accordingly, generally involves greater risk of loss than
a senior secured loan. Term 8 loans are senior foans and, therefore, are included with senior secured loans in our portfolio
statistics. A second lien loan is a loan that has a lien on the client’s collateral that is junior in order of pricrity and also comes
after the senior loans in order of payment. We also make mezzanine loans that may be either cash flow or real estate based
loans. A mezzanine loan is a loan that does not share in the same collateral package as the client’s senior loans, may have no
security interest in any of the client’s assets and comes after senior loans in order of payment preference. A mezzanine loan
gererally involves greater risk of loss than a senior loan.

* Equity Investments. We commonly acquire equity in a borrower at the same time and on substantially the same terms as the
private equity sponsor that is investing in the borrower with our loan proceeds. These equity investments generally represent
less than 5% of a borrower's equity. We do not agree to any interest rate or other lending concessions in the loans we make
to these borrowers in return for the opportunity to make these investments.

* HUD Mortgage Originations. As a strategic supplement to our real estate lending business, we also act as an agent for the
United States Depariment of Housing and Urban Development, or HUD, for the origination of federally insured mortgage loans
through the Federal Housing Authority, or FHA. Because we are a fully approved FHA Title Il mortgagee, we have the ability to
originate, underwrite, fund and service mortgage loans insured by the FHA. FHA is a branch of HUD which works through
approved lending institutions to provide federal mortgage and loan insurance for housing and healthcare facilities.
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Residential Mortgage investment Segment

Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities. We invest in RMBS, which are securities collateralized by residential mortgage
loans. These securities include mortgage-backed securities whose payments of principal and interest are guaranteea by the
Federal National Mortgage Association {“Fannie Mae”) or Freddie Mac (hereinafter, “Agency MBS”). We also invest in RMBS
issued by non-government-sponsored entities that are credit-enhanced through the use of subordination or in other ways that
are inherent in a corresponding securitization transaction (hereinafter, “Non-Agency MBS ). Substantially all of our Agency and
Non-Agency MBS are collateralized by adjustable rate mortgage loans, including hybrid adjustable rate mortgage loans. We
account for our Agency MBS as debt securities that are classified as trading investments and included in mortgage-backed secu-
rities pledged, trading on our accompanying audited consolidated balance sheets. We generally account for our Non-Agency
MBS as debt securities that are diassified as available-for-sale and included in investments on our accompanying audited con-
solidated balance sheets.

Mortgage-Related Receivables. During 2006, we purchased beneficial interests in special purpose entities (“SPEs") that
acquired and securitized pools of residential mortgage loans. We determined that we were the primary beneficiary of these
SPEs and, therefore, consolidated the assets and liabilities of such entities for financial statement purposes. We also determined
that the SPEs' interest in the underlying mortgage loans constituted, for accounting purposes, receivables secured by the
underlying mortgage loans. As a result, through consolidation, we recognized on our accompanying audited consolidated bal-
ance sheet mortgage-related receivables, as well as the principal amount of related debt obligations incurred by SPEs to fund
the origination of such receivables. Such mortgage-related receivables maintain all of the economic attributes of the underlying
martgage loans legally held in trust by such SPEs and, as a result of our interest in such SPEs, we maintain all of the economic
benefits and related risks of ownership of the underlying mortgage loans.

As of December 31, 2006, our portfolio of loan products, service offerings and investments by type was as foilows (percentages by
gross carrying values):

Loan Products, Service Offerings and Investments by Type

Direct Real Estate Investments: 5%  Equity Investments: 1%
Second Lien and Mezzanine Loans: 4%

Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities: 24%
Senior Secured Cash Flow Loans™: 14%

Mortgage-Related Receivables: 16%

First Mortgage Loans''. 19%

Senior Secured™ Asset Based Loans: 17%

(1) Includes Term B loans.

Commercial Lending & Investment Segment Overview
Commercial Lending & Investment Segment Portfolio Composition

December 31,

(% in thousands) 2006 2005

Commercial loans $7,850,198 $5,987,743
Direct real estate investments 722,303 —
Equity investments 150,090 126,393
Total $8,722,591 $6,114,136
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Commercial Lending Portfolio Composition

Our total commercial loan portfolio reflected in the portfolio statistics below includes loans, loans held for sale and receivables
under reverse-repurchase agreements, The compasition of our commercial loan portfolio by loan type and by commercial finance
business as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 was as follows:

December 31,

($ in thousands) 2006 2005
Composition of loan portfolio by loan type:

Senigr secured asset-based loans™ $2,599,014 33% $2,022,123 34%
First mortgage loans 2,542,222 32 1,970,709 33
Senior secured cash flow loans ™ 2,105,152 27 1,740,184 29
Subordinate loans 603,810 8 254,727 4
Total $7.850,198 100% $5,987,743 100%
Composition of loan portfolio by business: ‘

Healthcare and Specialty Finance $2,775,748 35% $2,281,419 38%
Structured Finance 2,839,716 36 1,909,149 32
Corporate Finance 2,234,734 29 1,797,175 30
Total $7,850,198 100% $5,987,743 100%

(1) includes Term B lcans.

As of December 31, 2006, our commercial loan portfolio was wel! diversified, with 1,072 loans to 692 clients operating in multiple
industries. We use the term “client” to mean the legal entity that is the party to whom we lend pursuant to a loan agreement with
us. As of December 31, 2006, our Healthcare and Specialty Finance, Structured Finance and Corporate Finance businesses had
commitments to lend up to an additional $2.1 billion, $1.5 billion and $0.5 billion, respectively, to 304, 216 and 172 existing clients,
respectively. Commitments do not include transactions for which we have signed commitment letters but not vet signed loan agree-
ments. Throughout this section, unless specifically stated otherwise, alf figures relate to our commercial loans outstanding as of
December 31, 2006.

Our commercia! loan and direct real estate investment portfolio by industry as of December 31, 2006 was as follows {percentages
by gross carrying values as of December 31, 2006):

Commercial Loan and Direct Real Estate Investment Portfolio by Industry®?

Wholesale Trade: 2%
Transportation and Warehousing: 1%\
Retail Trade: 3%

Accommaedation and Food Services: 1%
Construction: 5%

. Finance and Insurance; 15%
Real Estate and Rental Leasing: 15% °

Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services: 5%
Other Services: 1%
Manufacturing: 10%
Health Care and Social Assistance: 30%

Management of Companies and Enterprises: 6%

information: 6%

(2} Industry classification is based on the North American industry Classification System (NAICS).
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As of December 31, 2006, our commercial loans ranged in size from $0.1 million to $380.7% million, per loan, and direct real estate
investments ranged in size from $0.2 million to $16.7 million, per property. Qur commercial loan and direct real estate investment
partfolio by asset balance as of December 31, 2006 was as follows:

Commercial Loan and Direct Real Estate Investment Portfolio by Asset Balance

$90MM or Greater: 9% Less than $1MM: 1%
$1MM to $4.99MM: 13%

$60MM 10 $89.99MM: 6%

$30MM to $59.99MM: 13%
’ $5MM to $9.99MM: 20%

§25MM to $29.99MM: 5%

$20MM 1o $24.99MM: 7%

$10MM to $14.95MM: 16%
$15MM to $19.99MM: 10%

(1) This balance represents loans on 79 properties in 6 states owned by one of our clients.

Our commercial loan portfolio by client balance as of December 31, 2006 was as follows:

Commercial Loan Portfolio by Client Balance

$90MM or Greater: 10% Legs than $1MM to $4.58MM: 7%

SMM 10 $9.99MM: 119
$60MM to 589.99MM: 9% } as &

$10MM to $14.99MM: 16%

$30MM 10 $59.99MM: 19%

$25MM to $29.99MM: 9% S15MM to $19.99MM: 13%

$20MM to $24.99MM: 6%

We may have more than one loan to a client and its related entities. For purposes of determining the portfolio statistics in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, we count each loan or client separately and do not aggregate loans to related entities.

No client accounted for more than 10% of our total revenues in 2006. The principal executive offices of our clients were located in
47 states and the District of Columbia. As of December 31, 20086, the largest geographical concentration was Florida, which made
up approximately 17% of the outstanding aggregate balance of our commercial loan and direct real estate investment portfolio. In
addition, 3% of our commercial loan and direct real estate investment portfolio as of December 31, 2006 comprised international
borrowers, primarily located in Canada and the United Kingdom. Qur largest loan was $380.7 million and the combined total of
our largest ten loans represented 15% of our commercial loan portfolio as of December 31, 2006.
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Our commercial loan and direct real estate investment portfolio by geographic region as of December 31, 2006 was as follows:

Commercial Loan and Direct Real Estate Investment Portfolio by Geographic Region

OTHER": 6%
INTERNATIONAL: 3%\

AL 1%
AZ: 1%

L

VA 2%~

TX: 6%, | ETE CO: 6%
T 2% oo ‘ 4 LT 1%
PA: 3%~ —DC: 1%
OR: 1%~ /
OH: 2% —]|

NV 1%
NJ: 5% ) NGA: 6%
NC:3%' | \ ML 3%
MO: 2% IN: 1%
MN: 1% KY: 1%
MD: 3% 'MA 2%

(1) Includes all states that have a loan balance that is less than 1% of the aggregate outstanding balance of our commercial loan portfolio.

Our commercial toans primarily provide financing at variable interest rates. To mitigate the risk of declining yields if interest rates
fall, we sometimes include an interest rate floor in our loans. Whether we are able to include an interest rate floor in the pricing of
a particular loan is determined by a combination of factors, including the potential client’s need for capital and the degree of com-
petition we face in the origination of loans of the proposed type.

Our commercial loans generally have stated maturities at origination that generally range from iwo to five years. As of December 31,
2006, the weighted average maturity and weighted average remaining life of our entire commercial loan portfolio was approximately
3.23 years and 3.16 years, respectively. Qur clients typically pay us an origination fee based on a percentage of the commitment
amount and may also be required to pay a prepayment penalty for at least the first two years following crigination. They may also pay
us a fee based on any undrawn commitments, as well as a collateral management fee in the case of our asset-based revolving loans.

The number of loans, average loan size, number of clients and average loan size per client by commercial finance business as of
December 31, 2006 were as follows:

Average
Number Average Number Loan Size
{3 in thousands) . of Loans Loan Size  of Clients  Per Client
Camposition of loan portfolio by finance business:
Healthcare and Specialty Finance 445 $ 6,238 304 $ 9,131
Structured Finance 255 11,136 216 13,147
Corporate Finance 372 6,007 172 12,993
Overall loan portfolic 1,07 7,323 @ 11,344
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Direct Real Estate Investments

During 2006, we began acquiring real estate for long-term investment purposes. These real estate investments primarily consist
of skilled nursing facilities, currently leased to clients through the execution of long-term, triple-net operating leases. We had
$722.3 million in direct real estate investments as of December 31, 2006, which consisted primarily of land and buildings.

See [tem 2, Properties, far information about our direct real estate investment properties.

Residential Mortgage investment Segment Overview
Portfolic Compaosition
We invest directly in residential mortgage investments. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, our portfolio of residential martgage
investments was as follows:
December 31,

(% in thousands) 2006 2005
Mortgage-related receivables® $2,295,922 % —
Residential mortgage-backed securities:
Agency 3,502,753 2,280,952
Non-Agency 34,243 —
Total $5,832,918 $2,290,952

(1) Represents secured receivables that are backed by adjustable rate residential prime mortgage loars.

As of December 31, 2006, our portfolio of Agency MBS included 1-year adjustable-rate and hybrid adjustable-rate RMBS with
varying fixed period terms issued and guaranteed by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac. The coupons on the ioans underlying these
securities are fixed for a specified period of time and then reset annually thereafter. The weighted average net coupon of Agency
MBS in our portfolic was 4.89% as of December 31, 2006, and the weighted average reset date for the portfolio was approxi-
mately 46 months.

As further discussed in Note 4, Mortgage-Related Receivables and Related Owners Trust Securitizations, of our accompanying audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006, we had $2.3 billion in mortgage-related receivables that
were secured by prime residential mortgage loans as of December 31, 2006. As of December 31, 2006, the weighted average inter-
est rate on such receivables was 5.38%, and the weighted average contractual maturity was approximately 29 years.

Financing

We depend on external financing sources to fund our operations. We employ a variety of financing arrangements, including repur-
chase agreements, secured and unsecured credit facilities, term debt, convertible debt, subordinated debt and equity. We expect that
we will continue to seek external financing sources in the future. Our existing financing arrangements are described in further detail
in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liguidity and Capital Resources.

Competition
Our markets are highly competitive and are characterized by competitive factors that vary based upon product and geographic
region. We compete with a large number of financial services companies, incliding:

s specialty and commercial finance companies;

* commercial banks;

» REITS and other real estate investors,

* private investment funds;

* investment banks;

s insurance companies; and

= asset management companies.
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some of our competitors have substantial market positions. Many of our competitors are large companies that have substantial
capital, technological and marketing resources. Some of our competitors also have access to lower cost capital. We believe we
compete based on:
* in-depth knowledge of our clients’ industries or sectors and their business needs from information, analysis, and effective
interaction between the clients’ decision-makers and our experienced professionals;
* our breadth of product offerings and flexible and creative approach to structuring financings that meet our clients’ business
and timing needs; and
= our superior client service.

Regulation
Some aspects of our operations are subject to supervision and regulation by governmental authorities and may be subject to various
laws and judicial and administrative decisions imposing various requirements and restrictions, which, among other things:
* regulate credit activities, including establishing licensing requirements in some jurisdictions;
* regulate mortgage lending activities, including establishing licensing requirements,
* establish the maximum interest rates, finance charges and other fees we may charge our clients;
¢ govern secured transactions;
= require specified information disclosures to our clients;
* set collection, foreclosure, repossession and claims handling procedures and other trade practices;
» regulate our clients’ insurance coverage;
* regulate our HUD mortgage origination business;
* prohibit discrimination in the extension of credit and administration of our loans; and
= regulate the use and reporting of certain client information.

In addition, many of the healthcare clients of Healthcare and Specialty Finance are subject to licensure, certification and other regu-
lation and oversight under the applicable Medicare and Medicaid programs. These regulations and governmentat oversight indirectly
affect our business in several ways,

* Withlimited exceptions, the law prohibits payment of amounts owed to healthcare providers under the Medicare and Medicaid
programs to be directed to any entity other than actual providers approved for participation in the applicable programs.
Accordingly, while we lend money that is secured by pledges of Medicare and Medicaid receivables, if we were required to
invoke our rights to the pledged receivables, we would be unable to collect receivables payable under these programs directly.
We would need a court order to force collection directly against these governmental payers,

* Hospitals, nursing facilities and other providers of healthcare services are not always assured of receiving Medicare and Medicaid
reimbursement adequate to cover the actual costs of operating the facilities. Many states are presently considering enacting,
or have already enacted, reductions in the amount of funds appropriated to healthcare programs resulting in rate freezes or
reductions to their Medicaid payment rates and often curtailments of coverage afforded to Medicaid enrollees. Most of our
healthcare clients depend on Medicare and Medicaid reimbursements, and reductions in reimbursements caused by either pay-
ment cuts or census declines from these programs may have a negative impact on their ability to generate adequate revenues
10 satisfy their obligations to us. There are no assurances that payments from governmental payors will remain at levels com-
parable to present levels or will, in the future, be sufficient to cover the costs allocable to patients eligible for coverage under
these programs.

* For our clients to remain eligible to receive reimbursements under the Medicare and Medicaid programs, the clients must com-
ply with a number of conditions of participation and other regulations imposed by these programs, and are subject to periodic
federal and state surveys to ensure compliance with various clinical and operational covenants. A client’s failure to comply with
these covenants and regulations may cause the client to incur penalties and fines and other sanctions, or lose its eligibility to
continue to receive reimbursements under the programs, which could result in the client’s inability to make scheduled pay-
ments to us,
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Taxation as a REIT

We have been operating as a REIT and expect to formally make an election to REIT status under the Internal Revenue Code (the
»Code") when we file our tax return for the year ended December 31, 2006. To qualify as a REVT, we are required to distribute at
least 90% of our REIT taxable income to our shareholders and meet the various other requirements imposed by the Code, through
actual operating results, asset holdings, distribution levels and diversity of stock ownership. Provided we qualify as a REF, we gener-
ally will not be subject to corporate-level income tax on the REITS earnings, to the extent the earnings are distributed to our
shareholders. We will continue to be subject to corporate-level tax on the earnings we derive from our taxable REIT subsidiaries
("TRSs"). If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, all of our taxable income would be subject to federal income tax at
regular corparate rates, including any applicable alternative minimum tax. We will still be subject to foreign, state and local taxation
in various foreign, state and local jurisdictions, including those in which we transact business or reside.

As certain of our subsidiaries are TRSs, we continue to report a provision for income taxes within our consolidated financial state-
ments. We use the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the asset and liability method, deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the consolidated financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates for the periods in which the differences are expected to reverse. The effect on deferred tax assets
and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the change.

Employees
As of December 31, 2006, we employed 548 people. We believe that our relations with our employees are good.

Executive Officers
Our executive officers and their ages and positions as of February 15, 2007 were as follows:

Name Age Position

lohn K. Delaney 43 Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
Dean C. Graham 41 President and Chief Operating Officer

Bryan M. Corsini 45 Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer

Thomas A. Fink 43 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Steven A. Museles 43 Executive Vice President, Chief Legal Officer and Secretary
Michael C. Szwajkowski 40 President—Structured Finance

David C. Bjarnason 37 Chief Accounting Officer

Biographies for our executive officers are as follows:

John K. Delaney, 43, a co-founder of the company, is Chairman of our Board and Chief Executive Officer. He has been the Chief
Executive Officer and has served on our board since our inception in 2000. Mr. Detaney received his undergraduate degree from
Columbia University and his juris doctor degree from Georgetown University Law Center.

Dean C. Graham, 41, has served as the President and Chief Operating officer since January 2006. Mr. Graham served as the
President—Healthcare and Specialty Finance from February 2005 until assuming his current responsibilities and as the Managing
Director—Group Head of our Healthcare finance group from September 2001 through January 2005. Mr. Graham received an
undergraduate degree from Harvard College, a juris doctor degree from the University of Virginia School of Law and a masters
degree from the University of Cambridge.

Bryan M. Corsini, 45, has served as our Chief Credit Officer since our inception in 2000. Mr. Carsini received his undergraduate
degree from Providence College and was licensed in 1986 in the state of Connecticut as a certified public accountant.
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Thomas A. Fink, 43, has served as our Chief Financial Officer since May 2003. Prior to joining CapitalSource, Mr. Fink worked as
an independent management and finance consultant from December 2001 to May 2003. Mr. Fink received his undergraduate
degree from the University of Notre Dame and his masters of business administration from the University of Chicago Graduate
School of Business.

Steven A. Museles, 43, has served as our Chief Legal Officer and Secretary since our inception in 2000. Mr. Museles received his
undergraduate degree from the University of Virginia and his juris doctor degree from Georgetown University Law Center.

Michael C. Szwajkowski, 40, has served as the President—Structured Finance since February 2005. Mr. Szwajkowski served as the
Managing Director-—Group Head of our Structured Finance group from September 2001 until assuming his current responsibilities.
Mr. Szwajkowski received his undergraduate degree from Bowdoin College and a masters of business administration from the
University of Chicago Graduate School of Business.

David C. Bjarnason, 37, has served as our Chief Accounting Officer since July 2006. Prigr to joining us, from March 2003 until June
2006, Mr. Bjarnason was employed at Freddie Mac, where he was a finance officer responsible for the development and administra-
tion of accounting policy related to various investrment, funding, financial risk management and securitization-related matters. From
1999 untit February 2003, Mr. Bjarnason worked in the Global Capital Markets practice at Delgitte & Touche LLP. M. Bjarnason
received his undergraduate degree in accounting from the College of William & Mary and was licensed in 1993 in the state of New
York as a certified public accountant.

Other Information

Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to those
reports are available free of charge on our website at www .capitalsource.com as soon as reasonably practicable after such material
is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission.

We also provide access on our website to our Principles of Corporate Governance, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, the char-
ters of our Audit, Compensation, Credit Policy and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees and other corporate
governance documents. Copies of these documents are available to any shareholder upon written request made to our corporate
secretary at our Chevy Chase, Maryland address. In zddition, we intend to disclose on our website any changes te, or waivers for
executive officers from, our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

B Tem 1A, RISK FACTORS

Our business faces many risks. The risks described below may not be the only risks we face. Additional risks that we do not yet know
of or that we currently believe are immaterial may also impair our business operations. If any of the events or circumstances
described in the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could suffer, and the trading
price of our common stock could decline. You should know that many of the risks described may apply to more than just the sub-
section in which we grouped them for the purpose of this presentation. As a result, you should consider all of the following risks,
together with alf of the other information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, before deciding to invest in our common stock.

Risks Impacting Our Funding and Growth

If we fail to effectively manage our growth, our financial results could be adversely affected.

We believe that the success of a commercial finance business like ours depends on our ability to increase our interest-earning assets
while continuing to maintain disciplined origination and credit decisicn-making. To that end, from our inception to December 31,
20086, our assets have grown to $15.2 billion and as of December 31, 2006, we had 548 employees and 21 offices. We must con-
tinue to refine and expand our marketing capabilities, our management procedures, our internal controls and procedures, our access
to financing sources and our technology. As we grow, we must continue to hire, train, supervise and manage new employees. In
addition, our decision to convert to RE!T status has imposed added challenges on our senior management and other employees, who
together must menitor our REIT compliance obligations, develop new real estate-related product offerings and make appropriate
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alterations to our loan origination, marketing and monitoring efforts. We may not be able to hire and train sufficient lending and
administrative personnel or develop management and operating systems to manage our expansion effectively. If we are unable to
manage our growth effectively, our operations, REIT compliance and financial results could be adversely affected.

Our ability to grow our business depends on our ability to obtain external financing.

We require a substantial amount of money to make new loans and to fund obligations to existing clients. As a REIT, we are even
more dependent on external sources of capital than we have been in the past. This increased dependence results from the require-
ment that, to qualify as a REIT, we generally have to distribute to our shareholders 90% of our REIT taxable income, including
taxable income where we do not receive corresponding cash. In the past, we have obtained the cash required for our operations
through the issuance of equity, convertible debentures and subordinated debt, and by borrowing money through credit facilities,
securitization transactions (hereinafter “term debt”) and repurchase agreements. Our continuad access to these and other types of
external capital depends upon a number of factors, including general market conditions, the market's perception of our growth
potential, our current and potential future earnings, cash distributions and the market price of our common stock. We cannot
assure you that sufficient funding or capitat will be available to us in the future on terms that are acceptable to us. If we cannot
obtain sufficient funding on acceptable terms, there may be a negative impact on the market price of our common stack and our
ability to pay dividends to our shareholders.

If our lenders terminate or fail to renew any of our credit facilities or repurchase agreements, we may not be able to
continue to fund our business.

At December 31, 2006, we had seven credit facilities totaling $5.0 billion in commitments. These facilities contain customary rep-
resentations and warranties, covenants, conditions and events of default that if breached, not satisfied or triggered could result in
termination of the facilities. In addition, we cannot assure you that we will be able to extend the term of any of our existing financ-
ing arrangements or obtain sufficient funds to repay any armounts outstanding under any financing arrangement before it expires,
either §rom one or more replacement financing arrangements or an alternative debt or equity financing. Consequently, if one or
more of these facilities were to terminate prios to its expected maturity date or if any such facility were not renewed, our liquidity
pasition would be materially adversely affected, and we may not be able to satisfy our outstanding loan commitments, originate
new loans or continue to fund our operations.

Our use of significant leverage could adversely affect our residential mortgage-backed securities portfolio and nega-
tively affect cash available for distribution to our shareholders.

We have borrowed significant funds to finance the acquisition of the assets comprising our portfolio of residential mortgage loans
and mortgage-backed securities. Our use of repurchase agreements to finance the purchase of residential mortgage loans and
mortgage-backed securities exposes us to the risk that a decrease in the value of such assets may cause our lenders to make margin
calls that we may not be able to satisfy. If we fail to meet a margin call, or if we are required to sell residential mortgage loans
and/or mortgage-backed securities to meet a margin call, we may suffer losses and our ability to comply with the REIT asset tests
could be adversely affected.

Our lenders could terminate us as servicer of loans held as coliateral for our credit facilities or term debt, which would
adversely affect our ability to manage our portfolio.

Upon the occurrence of specified servicer defaults, our lenders under our credit facilities and the holders of our asset-backed notes
issued in our term debt may elect to terminate us as servicer of the loans under the applicable facility or term debt and appoint a
successor servicer. If we were terminated as servicer, we would no longer receive our servicing fee. In addition, because there could
be no assurance that any successor servicer would be able to service the loans according to our standards, the performance of our
loans could be adversely affected and our income generated from those loans significantly reduced.

Our liguidity position could be adversely affected if we were unable to complete additional term debt transactions on
favorable terms or at all.

We have completed several term debt transactions involving loans in our commercial lending portolio through which we raised a
significant amount of debt capital to pay down our borrowings under our credit facilities and to create additional liquidity under
our credit facilities for use in funding our loans.
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Relevant considerations regarding our ability to complete additional term debt transactions include:

* tothe extent that the capita! markets generally, and the asset-backed securities market in particular, suffer disruptions, we may
be unable to complete term debt transactions:

= disruptions in the credit quality and performance of our loan portfolio, particularty that portion which has been previously securi-
tized and serves as collateral for existing term debt, could reduce or eliminate investor dermand for our term debt in the future;

* our ability to service our loan portfolio must continue to be perceived as adequate to make the securities issued attractive
to investors;

* any material downgrading or withdrawal of ratings given to securities previously issued in our term debt transactions would
reduce demand for additional term debt by us; and

* structural changes imposed by the rating agencies or investors may reduce the leverage we are able to obtain, increase the cost
and otherwise adversely affect the efficiency of our term debt transactions.

If we are unable to continue completing these term debt transactions on favorable terms or at all, our ability to obtain the capital
needed for us to continue to grow our business would be adversely affected. In turn, this could have a material adverse effect on
our growth and stock price.

The cash flows we receive from the interests we retain in our term debt could be delayed or reduced due to the
requirements of the term debt, which could impair our ability to originate new foans or fund commitments under
existing loans.

We retain the most junior classes of securities issued in our term debt transactions, Our receipt of future cash flows on thase junior
securities is governed by provisions that control the distribution of cash flows from the loans included in our term debt transactions,
which cash flows are tied to the performance of the underlying foans. To the extent the loans fail to perform in accordance with
their terms, the timing and amount of the cash flows we receive from loans included in our term debt transactions would be
adversely affected.

The poor performance of a pool of loans we securitize could increase the expense of our subsequent securitizations,
which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and business.

The poor performance of a pool of loans that we securitize could increase the expense of any subsequent securitization we bring
to market. Increased expenses on our securitizations could reduce the net interest income we receive on our loan portfalio. A
change in the market's demand for our term debt or a decline or disruption in the securitization market generally could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and business prospects.

Fluctuating or rising interest rates could adversely affect our profit margins and abifity to grow our business.

We berrow money from our lenders at variable interest rates. We generally lend money at variable rates based on either the prime
or LIBOR rates. Our operating results and cash flow depend on the difference between the interest rate at which we borrow funds
and the interest rate at which we lend these funds,

We also make, on a more limited basis, fixed rate loans. Most of the borrowings that we use to finance our loans require the pay-
ment of interest at variable interest rates. To the extent that our costs of borrowing increase, our yields on our fixed rate loan
products will decline and, if interest rates increased significantly, it could result in a negative yield. Such declines could materially
adversely affect our net income and operating profits.

In addition, changes in market interest rates, or in the relationships between short-term and long-term market interest rates, or

between different interest rate indices, could affect the interest rates charged on interest earning assets differently than the interest
rates paid on interest bearing liabilities, which could result in an increase in interest expense relative to our interest income.
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Hedging against interest rate exposure may adversely affect our earnings and, as a resuit, cash avaifable for investment
or distribution to our shareholders could be adversely affected.
We have entered into interest rate swap agreements and other contracts for interest rate risk management purposes. Qur hedg-
ing activity will vary in scope based on a number of factors, including the level of interest rates, the type of portfolio investments
held, and other changing market conditions. interest rate hedging may fail to protect or could adversely affect us because,
among other things:

« interest rate hedging can be expensive, particularly during periods of rising and volatile interest rates;

« available interest rate hedging may not correspond directly with the interest rate risk for which protection is sought;
the duration of the hedge may not match the duration of the related liability or asset;
the amount of income that a REIT may earn from hedging transactions to offset interest rate losses is limited by federal tax
provisions governing REITs;
the credit quality of the party owing money on the hedge may be downgraded to such an extent that it impairs our ability to
sell or assign our side of the hedging transaction; and
« the party owing money in the hedging transaction may default on its obligation to pay.

Our hedging activity may adversely affect our earnings, which could adversely affect cash availabte for distribution to our sharehold-
ers. Therefore, while we pursue such transactions to reduce our interest rate risks, it is possible that unanticipated changes in
interest rates may result in poorer overall performance than if we had not engaged in any such hedging transactions. Mareover, for
a variety of reasons, we may not seek to establish, or there may not be, a perfect correlation between such hedging instruments
and the holdings being hedged. Any such imperfect correlation may prevent us from achieving the intended hedge and expase us
to risk of loss.

Hedging instruments often are not traded on regulated exchanges, guaranteed by an exchange or its clearing house or
regulated by any U.S. or foreign governmental authorities and involve risks and costs.

The cost of using hedging instruments increases as the period covered by the instrument increases and during periods of rising and
volatile interest rates. We may increase our hedging activity and, thus, increase our hedging costs during periods when interest rates
are volatile or rising. In addition, hedging instruments involve risk since they often are not traded on regulated exchanges, guaran-
teed by an exchange or its clearinghouse, of regulated by any governmental authorities, Consequently, there are no regulatory
requirements on our hedging counterparties with respect to matters such as recard keeping, financial responsibility or segregation
of customer funds and positions. Furthermore, the enforceability of agreements associated with derivative instruments we use may
depend on compliance with applicable statutory, commodity and other regulatory requirements and, depending on the identity of
the counterparty, applicable international requirements. The business faiture of a hedging counterparty with whom we enter into a
hedging transaction wilt most likely result in a default. Default by a party with whom we enter into a hedging transaction may result
in the loss of unrealized profits and force us to cover our resale commitments, if any, at the then current market price. Although
generally we will seek to reserve the right to terminate our hedging positions, it may not always be possible to dispose of or close
out a hedging position without the consent of the hedging counterparty, and we may not be able to enter into an offsetting con-
tract in order to cover our risk. We cannot assure you that a liquid secondary market will exist for hedging instruments purchased
or sold, and we may be required to maintain a position until exercise or expiration, which could result in |osses.

We may enter into derivative contracts that could expose us to contingent liabilities in the future.

Part of our investment strategy will involve entering into derivative contracts that could require us to fund cash payments in certain
circumstances. Our ability to fund these contingent liabilities will depend on the liquidity of our assets and access to capital at the
time, and the need to fund these contingent liabilities could adversely impact our financial condition.

Risks Related to Our Operations as a REIT

We have limited experience operating as a REIT.

From our commencement of operations in September 2000 through December 31, 2006, we were organized first as a limited
lability company and then as a C-corporation, On January 1, 2006, we began operating as a REIT and expect to formally make an
election to REIT status for 2006 when we file our tax return for the year ended December 31, 2006. Our senior management has
limited experience in managing a portfolio of assets under the highly complex tax rules governing REFs, which may hinder our
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ability to achieve our investment obijectives. In addition, maintaining our REIT qualification will influence the types of investments
we are able to make. We cannot assure you that we will be able to continue to operate our business successfully within the REIT
structure or in a manner that enables us consistently to pay dividends to our shareholders.

We could lack access to funds to meet our dividend and tax obligations.

As a REIT, we are required to distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income, excluding capital gains, to maintain our REIT
qualification, and we need to distribute 100% of our REIT taxable income, including capital gains, to eliminate federal income tax
liability. Mareaver, we are subject 10 a 4% excise tax on the excess of the required distribution over the surn of the amounts actually
distributed and amounts retained for which federal income tax was paid, if the amount we distribute during a calendar year (plus
excess distributions made in prior years) does not equal at least the sum of 85% of our REIT ordinary income for the year, 95% of
our REIT capital gain net income for the year and any undistributed taxable income fram prior taxable years. We also could be
required to pay taxes and liabilities attributable to periods and events prior to our REIT election and additional taxes if we were to
fail to qualify as a REIT in any given year. The amount of funds, if any, available to us could be insufficient to meet our dividend and
tax obligations. :

Complying with REIT requirements May cause us to forego otherwise attractive opportunities and limit our ability to
fund dividend payments using cash generated through our TRSs.

To mairtain our qualification as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, we must continually satisfy tests concerning, among other
things, the sources of our income, the nature and diversification of our assets, the amounts we distribute to our shareholders and
the ownership of our stock. Compliance with the REIT requirernents may hinder our ability to make certain attractive investments,
including investments in the businesses conducted by our TRSs.

Our ability to receive dividends from the TRSs from which we would make distributions to our shareholders is limited by the ruies
with which we must comply to maintain our status as a REIT. In particular, at ieast 75% of the value of our tota! assets must be
represented by “real estate assets,” cash, cash items, and government securities. Real estate assets include debt instruments
secured by mortgages on real property, shares of other RENTs, and stock or debt instruments held for less than one year purchased
with the proceeds of an offering of shares or long-term debt. In addition, at least 75% of aur gross incame for each taxable year
as a REIT must be derived from interest on obligations secured by mortgages on real property or interests in real property, certain
gains from the sale or other disposition of such obligations, and certain other types of real estate income. No more than 25% of
our gross income may consist of dividends fram the TRSs and other non-gualifying types of income. As a result, even if our non-REIT
activities conducted through TRSs were to be highly profitable, we might be limited in our ability to receive dividends from the TRSs
in an amount necessary to fund required dividends to our shareholders.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any given year, we will have reduced funds available for distribution to our shareholders
and our income will be subject to taxation at regular corporate rates.

Given the highly complex nature of the rules governing REITs, the ongoing importance of factual determinations and the possibil-
ity of future changes in our circumstances, we might not satisfy the requirements applicable to REITs for any particular taxable year.
Furthermare, our qualification as a REIT depends on our continuing satisfaction of certain asset, income, organizational, distriby-
tion, shareholder ownership and other requirements. Qur ability to satisfy the asset tests will depend upon our analysis of the fair
market values of our assets, some of which are not susceptible to a precise determination. Qur compliance with the REIT annual
income and quarterly asset requirements also depends upan our ability to successfully manage the composition of our income and
assets on an ongoing basis. With respect to our compliance with the REIT arganizaticnal requirements, the Internal Revenue
Service, or IRS, could contend that our ownership interests in TRSs or securities of ather issuers would give rise to a violation of
the REIT requirements.

If in any taxable year we fail to qualify as a REIT,
* we will not be allowed a deduction for distributions to shareholders in computing our taxable income; and
* we will be subject to federal income tax, including any applicable alternative minimum tax, on our taxable income at regular
corporate rates.
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Any such corporate tax liability could be substantial and would reduce the amount of cash available for distribution to our share-
holders, which in turn would likely have a material adverse impact on the value of our common stock. In addition, we wiould be
disqualified from treatment as a REVT for the four taxable years following the year during which the qualification was lost, unless
we were entitled to relief under certain statutory provisions. If we were to avail ourselves of one or more of these statutory savings
provisions to maintain our RET status, we nevertheless could be required to pay penalty taxes of $50,000 or maore for each failure.
As a result, net income and the funds available for distribution to our shareholders could be reduced for up to five years or longer,
which would have a continuing material adverse impact on the value of our common stock. Even if we continue to qualify as a REIT,
any gain or income recognized by our TRSs, either as a result of regular operations or in connection with our REIT election related
restructuring transactions, will be subject to federal corporate income tax and applicable state and local taxes.

Our business activities are patentially subject to prohibited transactions tax or corporate level tax.

REITs are generally passive entities and thus only can engage in those activities permitted by the Code, which for us generally
includes our real estate based lending activities and the complementary activities in which we engage, such as direct real estate
investment transactions and acquiring whole pools of mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities. Accordingly, we conduct
our non-real estate lending activities through muitiple TRSs, which are subject to corporate level tax, because such activities gener-
ate ncn-qualifying REIT income,

Also, we limit the asset disposition activity that we engage in directly (that is, outside of our TRSs) because certain asset dispositions
conducted regularly and directly by us could constitute “prohibited transactions” that could be subject to a 100% penalty tax. In
general, prohibited transactions are defined by the Code to be sales or other dispositions of property held primarily for sale to cus-
tomers in the ordinary course of a trade or business other than property with respect to which a “foreclosure property” election is
made. By éonducting our business in this manner, we believe that we satisfy the REIT requirements of the Code and avoid the 100%
tax that could be impased if a REIT were to conduct a prohibited transaction; however, this operational constraint may prevent us
from disposing of one or mare of our real estate-based loans to obtain liquidity or to reduce potential losses with respect to non-
performing assets. We may not always be successful, however, in limiting such activities to any TRSs. Therefore, we could be subject
to the 100% prohibited transactions tax if such instances were to occur.

The requirements of the Investment Company Act impose limits on our operations that impact the way we acquire and
manage our assets and operations.

We conduct our operations so as not to be regulated as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as
amended, which we refer to as the investment Company Act. We rely on the exemption provided by Section 3(c){5) of the investment
Company Act. Cur ability to originate loans and acquire other assets is limited by the praovisions of the Investment Company Act
and the rules and requlations promulgated under the Investment Company Act. If we fail to own a sufficient amount of qualifying
assets to satisfy the requirements of Section 3(c)(5) of the Investment Company Act and could not rely on any other exemption or
exclusion under the Investment Company Act, we could be characterized as an investment company. The characterization of us as
an investment company would require us to either (i) change the manner in which we conduct our operations to avoid being
required to register as an investment company or (i) register as an investment company. Any madification of our business plan for
these purposes could have a material adverse effect on us. Further, if we were determined to be an unregistered investment com-
pany, we could be subject to monetary penalties and injunctive relief in an action brought by the SEC, we may be unable to enforce
contracts with third parties and third parties could seek to obtain rescission of transactions undertaken during the period it was
established that we were an unregistered investment company. In addition, we currently employ a degree of leverage in our busi-
ness that would not be permissible for a company regulated under the Investment Company Act. If we were determined to be an
investment company, we would have to restructure our operations dramatically, and also possibly raise substantial amounts of
additional equity to come into compliance with the limitations prescribed under the investment Company Act. Finally, because
affiliate transactions are prohibited under the Investment Company Act, failure to maintain our exemption would force us to termi-
nate our agreements with affiliates. Any of these results would be likely to have a material adverse effect on our business, our
financial results and our ability to pay dividends to shareholders.
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Rapid changes in the values of our residential mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities and other real estate
assets may make it more difficult for us to maintain our REIT status or exemption from the Investment Company Act.

If the market value or income potential of our mortgage-backed securities and our other real estate assets decline as a result of
increased interest rates, prepayment rates or other factors, we may need to increase our real estate investments and income and/or
liguidate our non-qualifying assets to maintain our REIT status and/or our exemption from the Investment Company Act. If the
decline in real estate asset values and/or income occurs quickly, this may be especially difficult to accomplish. This difficulty may be
exacerbated by the illiquid nature of many of our assets. We may have to make investment decisions that we otherwise would not
make absent the REIT and Investment Company Act considerations.

Legislative or other actions affecting REITs could have a negative effect on us.

The rules dealing with federal income taxation are constantly under review by persons involved in the legislative process and by the
IRS and the U.5. Department of the Treasury. Changes to the tax laws, with or without retroactive application, could adversely affect
our investors or us. We cannot predict how changes in the tax laws might affect our investors or us. New legislation, Treasury regu-
lations, administrative interpretations or court decisions could significantly affect our ability to qualify as a REIT or the federal income
tax consequences of such qualification.

Changes in taxation of corporate dividends may adversely affect the value of our common stock.

The maximum marginal rate of tax payable by domestic nencorporate taxpayers on dividends received from a regular "C" corpora-
tion under current law generally is 15% through 2010, as opposed to higher ordinary income rates. The reduced tax rate, however,
does not apply to ordinary income dividends paid to domestic noncorporate taxpayers by a REIT on its stock, except for certain
limited amounts. Although the earnings of a REIT that are distributed to its stockholders generally remain subject to less federal
income taxation than earnings of a non-REIT “C* corporation that are distributed to its stockholders net of corporate-level income
tax, legislation that extends the application of the 15% rate to dividends paid after 2010 by "C" corporations could cause domes-
tic noncorporate investors 1o view the stock of regular “C” corporations as more attractive relative to the stock of a REIT, because
the dividends from regular “C" corporations would continue to be taxed at a lower rate while distrioutions from REITs {other than
distributions designated as capital gain dividends) are generally taxed at the same rate as the investor's other ordinary income.

Risks Related to Our Lending Activities

We may not recover the value of amounts that we lend.

We charged off $48.0 million in loans for the year ended December 31, 2006 and expect to experience charge offs in the future. If
we were to experience material losses on our portfolio in the future, such losses would have a material adverse effect on our ability
to fund our business and on our revenues, net income and assets, to the extent the losses exceed our allowance for loan {osses.

In addition, like other commercial finance companies, we have experienced missed and late payments, failures by clients to comply
with operational and financial covenants in their loan agreements and client performance below that which we expected when we
originated the loan. Any of the events described in the preceding sentence may be an indication that our risk of credit ioss with
respect to a particular lean has materially increased.

We make loans to privately owned small and medium-sized companies that present a greater risk of loss than loans to
larger companies.

Our portfolio consists primarily of commaercial loans to small and medium-sized, privately owned businesses with annual revenues
ranging from $5 million to $1 billion. Compared to larger, publicly owned firms, these companies generally have more limited access
to capital and higher funding costs, may be in a weaker financial position and may need more capital to expand or compete, These
financial challenges may make it difficult for our clients to make scheduled payments of interest or principal on our loans. Accordingly,
advances made to these types of clients entail higher risks than advances made to companies who are able to access traditional
credit sources.
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We may not have all of the material information relating to a potential client at the time that we make a credit decisicn
with respect to that potential client or at the time we advance funds to the client. As a result, we may suffer losses on
loans or make advances that we would not have made if we had all of the material information.

There is generally no publicly available information about the privately owned companies to which we generally lend. Therefore, we
must rely on our clients and the due diligence efforts of our employees to obtain the information that we consider when making
our credit decisions. To some extent, our employees depend and rely upon the management of these companies to provide full and
accurate disclosure of material information concerning their business, financial condition and prospects. If we do not have access
to all of the material information about a particular client’s business, financial condition and prospects, or if a client’s accounting
records are poorly maintained or organized, we may not make a fully informed credit decision which may lead, ultimately, to a
failure or inability to recover our lean in its entirety.

We may make errors in evaluating information reported by our clients and, as a result, we may suffer losses on loans or
advances that we would not have made if we had properly evaluated the information.

We underwrite our loans based on detailed financial information and projections provided to us by our clients. Even if clients provide
us with full and accurate disclosure of all material information concerning their businesses, our investment officers, underwriting
officers and credit committee members may misinterpret or incorrectly analyze this information. Mistakes by our staff and credit
committee may cause us to make loans that we otherwise would not have made, to fund advances that we otherwise would not
have funded or resuit in losses on one or more of our existing loans.

A client’s fraud could cause us to suffer losses.

The failure of a client to accurately report its financial position, compliance with loan covenants or eligibility for additional borrow-
ings could result in the loss of some or all of the principal of a particular oan or loans including, in the case of revolving loans,
amounts we may not have advanced had we possessed complete and accurate information.

Our concentration of loans to a limited number of borrowers within a particufar industry, such as the commercial real
estate or healthcare industry, or region could impair our revenues if the industry or region were to experience eco-
nomic difficulties.

Defaults by our clients may be correlated with economic conditions affecting particular industries or geographic regions. As a result,
if any particular industry or geographic region were to experience economic difficulties, the overall timing and amount of collections
on our loans to clients operating in those industries or geographic regions may differ from what we expected and result in material
harm to our revenues, net income and assets, For example, as of December 31, 2006, loans representing 18% of the aggregate
outstanding balance of our loan portfolio were secured by commercial real estate other than healthcare facilities. If the commercial
real estate sector were to experience economic difficulties, we could suffer losses on these loans. In addition, as of December 31,
20086, loans representing 22% of the aggregate outstanding balance of our loan portfolio were to clients in the healthcare industry.
Reimbursements under the Medicare and Medicaid programs comprise the bulk of the revenues of many of these clients. Our cli-
ents’ dependence on reimbursement revenues could cause us to suffer losses in several instances,

« If clients fail to comply with operational covenants and other regulations imposed by these programs, they may lose their eli-
gibility to continue to receive reimbursements under the program or incur monetary penaities, either of which could result in
the client’s inability to make scheduled payments to us.

» if reimbursernent rates do not keep pace with increasing costs of services to eligible recipients, or funding levels decrease as a
result of increasing pressures from Medicare and Medicaid to control healthcare costs, our clients may not be able to generate
adequate revenues to satisfy their obligations to us.

e If a healthcare dlient were to default on its loan, we would be unable to invoke our rights 1o the pledged receivables directly
as the law prohibits payment of amounts owed to healthcare providers under the Medicare and Medicaid programs to be
directed to any entity other than the actual providers. Consequently, we would need a court order to force collection directly
against these governmental payors. There is no assurance that we would be successful in obtaining this type of court order.
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As of December 31, 2006, our ten largest clients collectively accounted for approximately 16% of the aggregate outstanding bal-
ance of our commercial loan portfolio and our largest client accounted for approximately 5% of the aggregate cutstanding balance
of our commercial loan portfotio.

We may not retain control over our joint venture investments, which may increase the risk of loss with respect to such
investments.

We are party to joint ventures and may enter into additional joint ventures. We may not have control of the operations of the joint
ventures in which we invest. Therefore, these investments may, under certain circumstances, involve risks such as the possibility that
our partner in an investment might become bankrupt or have economic or business interests or goals that are inconsistent with
ours, or be in a position to take action contrary to our instructions or requests or our policies or objectives. As a result, these invest-
ments may be subject to more risk than investments for which we have full operational or management responsibility.

Because of the nature of our loans and the manner in which we disclose client and loan concentrations, it may be dif-
ficuft to evaluate our risk exposure to any particular client or group of refated clients.

We use the term “client” to mean the legal entity that is the borrower party to a loan agreement with us. We have several clients
that are related to each other through common ownership and/or management. Because we underwrite all of these loans sepa-
rately, we report each loan to one of these clients as a separate loan and each client as a separate client. In situations where clients
are related through common ownership, to the extent the common owner suffered financial distress, the common owner may be
unable to continue to support our clients, which could, in turn, lead to financial difficulties for those clients. Further, some of our
healthcare clients are managed by the same entity and, to the extent that management entity suffered financial distress or was
otherwise unable to continue to manage the operations of the related clients, those clients could, in turn, face financial difficul-
ties. In both of these cases, our clients could have difficulty servicing their debt to us, which could have an adverse effect on our
financial condition.

We may be unable to recognize or act upon an operational or financial problem with a client in a timely fashion so as
to prevent a loss of our loan to that client.

Our clients may experience operational or financial problems that, if not timely addressed by us, could result in a substantial impair-
ment or ioss of the value of our loan to the client. We may fail to identify problems because our client did not repart them in a timely
manner or, even if the client did report the problem, we may fail to address it quickly enough or at all. As a result, we could suffer
loan losses which could have a material adverse effect on our revenues, net income and results of operations,

Changes in interest rates could negatively affect our borrowers’ ability to repay their loans.
Most of our loans bear interest at variable interest rates, To the extent interest rates increase interest obligaticns of our clients will
also increase. Some of our clients may not be able 1o make the increased interest paymenits, resulting in defaults on their [oans.

Our balloon loans and bullet foans may involve a greater degree of risk than other types of loans.

As of December 31, 2006, approximately 90% of the outstanding balance of our loans comprised either balloon loans or bullet
loans. A balloon loan is a term loan with a series of scheduled payment installments calculated to amortize the principal balance of
the loan sa that, upon maturity of the loan, more than 25%, but less than 100%, of the loan balance remains unpaid and must be
satisfied. A bullet loan is a loan with no scheduled payments of principal before the maturity date of the loan. All of our revolving
loans and somne of our term loans are bullet loans.

Balloon loans and bullet toans involve a greater degree of risk than other types of loans because they require the borrower i, in
many cases, make a large, final payment upon the maturity of the loan. The ability of a client to make this final payment upon the
maturity of the loan typically depends upon its ability either to generate sufficient cash flow to repay the loan prior to maturity, to
refinance the loan or to sell the related collateral securing the loan, if any. The ability of a client to accomplish any of these goals
wili be affected by many factors, including the availability of financing at acceptable rates to the client, the financial condition of
the client, the marketability of the related collateral, the operating history of the related business, tax laws and the prevailing gen-
eral economic conditions. Consequently, a client may not have the ability to repay the loan at maturity and we coutd lose some or
all of the principal of our toan.
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We are limited in pursuing certain of our rights and remedies under our Term B, second lien and mezzanine loans, which
may increase our risk of loss on these loans.

We make Term B, second lien and mezzanine loans. Term B loans generally are senior secured loans that are equal as to collateral
and junior as to right of payment to obligations to clients’ other senior term loans. Second lien loans are junior as to both collateral
and right of payment to obligations to clients’ senior loans. Mezzanine loans may not have the benefit of any lien against a client’s
collateral and are junior to any lienholder both as to collateral and payment. Collectively, second lien and mezzanine loans com-
prised 8% of the aggregate outstanding balance of our loan portfolio as of December 31, 2006. As a result of the subordinate
nature of these loans, we may be limited in our ability to enforce our rights to collect principal and interest on these loans or to
recover any of the loan balance through our right to foreclase upan collateral. For example, we typically are not contractually
entitled to receive payments of principal on a junior loan until the senior loan is paid in full, and may only receive interest payments
on a Term B, second lien or mezzanine loan if the client is not in default under its senior loan. In many instances, we are also pro-
hibited from foreclosing on a Term B, second lien or mezzanine loan untii the senior loan is paid in full. Moreover, any amounts that
we might realize as a result of our collection efforts or in connection with a bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding involving a client
under a Term B, second lien or mezzanine loan must generaily be turned over 1o the senior lender until the senior lender has realized
the full value of its own claims. These restrictions may materially and adversely affect our ability to recover the principal of any non-
performing Term B, second lien or mezzanine loans.

The collateral securing a loan may not be sufficient to protect us from a partial or complete loss if our lien on such col-
lateral is not properly perfected or if the loan becomes non-performing, and we are required to foreclose.

While most of our lgans are secured by a lien on specified collateral of the client, there is no assurance that we have obtained or
properly perfected our liens, or that the collateral securing any particular loan will protect us from suftering a partial or complete
loss if the loan becomes non-performing and we move to foreclose on the collateral. The coliateral securing our loans is subject to
inherent risks that may limit our ability to recover the principal of a non-performing loan.

Our cash flow loans are not fully covered by the value of tangible assets or collateral of the client and, consequently, if
any of these loans becomes non-performing, we could suffer a loss of some or all of our value in the foan.

Cash flow lending involves lending money to a client based primarily on the expected cash flow, profitability and enterprise value
of a client rather than on the value of its tangible assets. These loans tend to be among the largest and riskiest in our portfolio. As
of December 31, 2006, approximately 41% of the loans in our portfolio were cash flow loans under which we had advanced 34%
of the aggregate outstanding loan balance of our portfolio. While in the case of our senior cash flow loans we generally take a lien
on substantially all of the client’s assets, the value of those assets is typically substantially less than the amount of money we
advance to a client under a cash flow loan. Thus, if a cash flow loan became non-performing, our primary recourse to recover some
or all of the principal of our loan would be to force the sale of the entire company as a going concern. If we were a subordinate
lender rather than the senior lender in a cash flow loan, our ability to take such action would be further constrained by our agree-
ment with the seniar lender.

We are subject to federal, state and local laws in connection with our consumer mortgage lending activities.
We engage in consumer mortgage lending activities which involve the collection of numerous accounts, as well as compliance with
various federal, state and local laws that requlate consumer lending. Some of these laws require licensing.

The various laws that regulate consumer lending could change at any time, and we cannot predict the effect of these changes on
our business and profitability. Furthermore, compliance with these laws may subject us from time to time to various types of claims,
legal actions, including class action lawsuits, investigations, subpoenas and inquiries in the course of our consumer martgage lend-
ing business that could adversely affect our ability to operate profitably.

We have financed in the past, and may finance in the future, the purchase by third parties of non-performing loans or
problem loans held by us. These efforts may not eliminate our risk of loss or impairment with respect to these loans.

We may sell non-performing loans or the underlying coliateral, at par or at a discount, to third parties to reduce our risk of loss. We
consider non-performing loans to be either problem loans that we are actively seeking to out-place or loans that are in workout
status. We may provide debt financing to the third parties to enable them to purchase these loans or collateral. The non-performing
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loan or the sold collateral may serve as the collateral for our loan to the purchaser. In these instances, we continue to bear the risk
of loss associated with the collateral supporting our original non-performing loan. The loan to the purchaser, however, is reflected
in aur portfolio as a new loan. As of December 31, 2006, the aggregate outstanding principal balance of this type of financing that
we provided to third parties totaled $16.6 million.

Our loans could be subject to equitable subordination by a court and thereby increase our risk of loss with respect to
such loans.

Courts have, in some cases, applied the doctrine of equitable subordination to subordinate the claim of a lending institution against
a borrower to claims of other creditors of the borrower, when the lending institution is found to have engaged in unfair, inequitable
or fraudulent conduct. The courts have also applied the doctrine of equitable subordination when a lending institution or its affiliates
are found to have exerted inappropriate control over a client, including control resulting from the ownership of equity interests in a
client. In connection with the origination of loans representing approximately 20% of the aggregate outstanding loan balance of
our commercial loan portfolio as of December 31, 2006, we have made direct equity investments or received warrants. Payments on
one or mare of our toans, particularly a loan to a client in which we also hold an equity interest, may be subject to claims of equi-
table subardination. If, when challenged, these factors were deemed to give us the ability to control or otherwise exercise influence
over the business and affairs of one or mare of our clients, this control or influence could constitute grounds for equitable subordina-
tion. This means that a court may treat one or more of our loans as if it were common equity in the client. In that case, if the client
were to liquidate, we would be entitled to repayment of our loan an an equal basis with other holders of the client’s common equity
only after all of the client’s obligations relating to its debt and preferred securities had been satisfied. One or more successful claims
of equitable subordination against us could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operation or financial condition.

We may incur lender liability as a result of our lending activities.

In recent years, a number of judicial decisions have upheld the right of borrowers to sue lending institutions on the basis of various
evolving legal theories, collectively termed “lender liability.” Generally, lender liability is founded on the premise that a lender has
either violated a duty, whether implied or contractual, of good faith and fair dealing owed to the borrower or has assumed a degree
of controt aver the borrower resulting in the creation of a fiduciary duty awed to the borrower or its other creditors or shareholders.
We may be subject to allegations of lender liabiiity. We cannot assure you that these claims will not arise or that we will not be
subject to significant liability if a claim of this type did arise.

We have engaged in the past, and may engage in the future, in lending transactions with affiliates of our directors. Because
of the conflicts of interest inherent in these transactions, their terms may not be in our shareholders’ best interests.

As of December 31, 2006, we had 23 loans representing $465.2 million in committed funds to companies controlled by affiliates
of our directors. We may make additional loans to affiliates of our directors in the future. Our conflict of interest policies, which
require these transactions to be approved by the disinterested members of our board (or a committee thereof) and be on substan-
tially the same terms as loans to unrelated clients, may rot be successful in eliminating the influence of contflicts. As a result, these
transactions may divert our resources and benefit our directors and their affiliates to the detriment of our shareholders.

We are not the agent for many of our loans and, consequently, have little or no control over how those foans are admin-
istered or controlfed.

In many of our loans we are neither the agent of the lending group that receives payments under the loan nor the agent of the
lending group that controls the coliateral for purposes of administering the loan. As of December 31, 2006, approximately 10% of
the aggregate outstanding balance of our loan portfolio comprised loans in which we are neither the paying nor the collateral
agent. When we are not the agent for a loan, we may not receive the same financial or operational information as we receive for
loans for which we are the agent and, in many instances, the information on which we must rely is provided to us by the agent
rather than directly by the client. As a result, it may be mare difficult for us to track or rate these loans than it is for the loans for
which we are the agent. Additionally, we may be prohibited or otherwise restricted from taking actions ta enforce the loan or to
foreclose upon the collateral securing the loan without the agreement of other lenders holding a specified minimum aggregate
percentage, generally a majority or two-thirds of the outstanding principal balance. It is possible that an agent far one of these loans
may not manage the loan to our standards or may choose not to take the same actions to enforce the loan or to foreclose upon
the collateral securing the loar that we would take if we were agent for the loan.
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We are the agent for loans in which syndicates of lenders participate and. in the event of a loss on any such loan, we
could have liability to other members of the syndicate.

We are often the agent representing a syndicate of muitiple lenders that has made a loan. In that capacity, we may act on behalf
of our co-lenders in receiving all payments under the loan and/or controlling the collateral for purposes of administering the loan.
As of December 31, 2006, we were either the paying or the collateral agent or both for a group of third-party lenders far loans with
outstanding commitments of $2.2 billion. When we are agent for a loan, we often receive financial and/or operational infermation
directly from the borrower and are responsible for providing some or all of this information to our co-lenders. We may also be
responsible for taking actions on behalf of the lending group to enforce the loan or to foreclose upon the collateral securing the
loan. 1t is possible that as agent for one of these loans we may not manage the loan to the standard of one or more of our co-
lenders. In addition, we may choose a different course of action than one or more of our co-lenders would take to enforce the loan
or to foreclose upon the collateral securing the loan if our co-lenders were in a position to manage the loan. If we make errors in
our administration of these loans or, if our co-lenders do not approve of our performance as agent and the lending syndicate suf-
fered a loss on the loan, we may have liability to our ca-lenders.

If we violate HUD lending requirements, we could lose our ability to originate HUD mortgage loans, which could
adversely affect our financial results.

As a FHA Title Il mortgagee, or approved mortgagee, we could lose our ability to originate, underwrite and service FHA insured
loans if, among other things, we commit fraud, violate anti-kickback laws, violate identity of interest rules, engage in a continued
pattern of poor underwriting, or the FHA loans we originate show a high frequency of loan defaults. Our inability to engage in our
HUD business would lead 1o a decrease in cur net income.

Some of our borrowers require licenses, permits and other governmental authorizations to operate their businesses,
which licenses, permits or authorizations may be revoked or modified by applicable governmental authorities. Any
revocation or modification could have a material adverse effect on the business of a borrower and, consequently, the
value of our loan to that borrower.

in addition to our loans to borrowers in the healthcare industry subject to Medicare and Medicaid regulation discussed above, other
barrowers in specified industries require permits and/or licenses from various governmental authorities to operate their businesses.
These governmental authorities may revoke or modify these licenses or permits if a borrower is found in violation of any regulation
to which it is subject. In addition, these licenses may be subject 1o modification by order of governmental authorities or periodic
renewal requirements. The loss of a permit, whether by termination, moditication or failure to renew, could impair the borrower’s
ability to continue to operate its business in the manner in which it was operated when we made our loan 1o it, which could impair
the borrower's ability to generate cash flows necessary to service our loan or repay indebtedness upon maturity, either of which
autcomes would reduce our revenues, cash flow and net income.

We make loans to commercial real estate developers. These borrowers face a variety of risks relating to development,
construction and renovation projects, any of which may negatively impact their results of operations and impair their
ability to pay interest and principal on our loans to them.

We make loans to clients for development, construction and renovation projects. The ability of these clients to make required pay-
ments to us on these loans is subject to the risks assaciated with these projects.

If one of these projects is not successful, it could have a material adverse effect on the client’s financial condition and results of
operations, which could limit that client’s ability to repay its cbligations to us,

If we do not obtain the necessary state licenses and approvals, we will not be allowed to acquire, fund or originate
residential mortgage loans in some states, which would adversely affect our operations.

We acquire residential mortgages. Many states in which we do business require that we be licensed, or that we be eligible for an
exernption from the licensing requirement, to canduct this business. We cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain all the
necessary licenses and approvals, or be granted an exemption from the licensing requirements, that we will need to maximize the
acquisition, funding or origination of residential mortgages or that we will not become liable for a failure to comply with the myriad
of regulations applicable to this line of business.
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Our foans to foreign clients may involve significant risks in addition to the risks inherent in loans to ULS. clients.
Loans to foreign clients may expose us to risks not typically associated with loans to U.S. clients. These risks include changes in
exchange control regulations, politicai and social instability, expropriation, imposition of foreign taxes, less liquid markets and less
available information than is generally the case in the United States, higher transaction costs, less developed bankruptcy laws, dif-
ficulty in enforcing contractual obligations, lack of uniform accounting and auditing standards and greater price volatility.

To the extent that any of our loans are denominated in fareign currency, these loans will be subject to the risk that the value of a
particular currency will change in relation to one or more other currencies. Among the factors that may affect currency values are
trade balances, the level of short-term interest rates, differences in relative values of similar assets in different currencies, long-term
opportunities for investment and capital appreciation, and political developments. We may employ hedging technigues to minimize
these risks, but we can offer no assurance that these strategies will be effective.

Our debtor-in-possession foans may have a higher risk of default.

From time-to-time we make “debtor-in-possession” loans to clients that have filed for bankruptcy under Chapter 11 of the United
States Bankruptcy Code, and that are used by these clients to fund On-going operations as part of the reorganization process. While
our seclirity position for these loans is generally better than that of the other asset-based loans we make, there is a higher risk of
default on these ioans due to the uncertain business prospects of these clients. Furthermore, if our predictions as to the outcome
or timing of a reorganization are inaccurate, the client may not be able to make payments on the loan on time or at all.

We may purchase distressed loans for more than we are able to recover on these foans.

We may purchase leans of companies that are experiencing significant financial or business difficulties, including companies involved
in bankruptcy or other reorganization and liquidation proceedings. Although these investments may result in significant returns to
us, they involve a substantial degree of risk. Any one or all of the loans which we purchase may be unsuccessful or not show any
return for a considerable period of time. The level of analytical sophistication, both financial and legal, necessary for making a profit
on the purchase of loans to companies experiencing significant business and financial difficulties is unusually high. There is no assur-
ance that we will correctly evaluate the value of the assets collateralizing the loans or the prospects for a successful reorganization
or similar action. Unless the loans are most senior, in any reorganization or liquidation proceeding relating to a distressed company,
we may lose the entire amount of our loan, may be required to accept cash or securities with a value less than our purchase price
and/or may be required to accept payment over an extended period of time.

Qur commitments to lend additional sums to existing clients exceed our resources available to fund these commitments.
As of December 31, 2006, the amount of our unfunded commitrments to extend credit to our clients exceeded our unused funding
sources and unrestricted cash by $1.1 billion. We expect that our loan commitments wil continue to exceed our available funds
indefinitely. Under the terms of our loan agreements our clients generally cannot require us to fund the maximum amount of our
commitments unless they are able to demonstrate, amaong other things, that they have sufficient collateral to secure all requested
additional borrowings. There is a risk that we have miscalculated the likelihood that our clients will be eligible to receive and will, in
fact, request additional borrowings in excess of our available funds. If our calculations prove incorrect, we will not have the funds
to make these loan advances without obtaining additional financing. Our failure to satisfy our full contractual funding commitment
to one or more of our clients could create breach of contract liability for us and damage our reputation in the marketplace, which
could then have a material adverse effect on our business.

We are in a highly competitive business and may not be able to take advantage of attractive opportunities.

The commercial finance industry is highly competitive. We have competitors who also make the same types of loans to the small
and medium-sized privately owned businesses that are our target clients.
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QOur competitors include a variety of:
» specialty and commercial finance companies;
* commercial banks;
» REITS and cther real estate investors;
e private investment funds;
* investment banks; and
* insurance companies.

Some of our competitors have greater financial, technical, marketing and other resources than we do. They also have greater access
to capital than we do and at a lower cost than is available to us. Furthermore, we would expect to face increased price competition
if finance companies seek to expand within or enter our target markets. Increased competition could cause us to reduce our pricing
and lend greater amounts as a percentage of a client’s eligible collateral or cash flows. Even with these changes, in an increasingly
competitive market, we may not be able to attract and retain new clients and sustain the rate of growth that we have experienced
1o date, and our market share and future revenues may decline. If our existing clients choose to use competing sources of credit to
refinance their loans, the rate at which loans are repaid may be increased, which could change the characteristics of our loan port-
folio as well as cause our anticipated return on our existing loans to vary.

Risks Related to Qur Residential Mortgage investment Portfolio

Changes in interest rates could negatively affect the value of our RMBS and, as a result, could reduce our earnings and
negatively affect the amount of cash available for distribution to our shareholders.

In most cases, an investment in RMBS will decline in value if long-term interest rates increase. To the extent not offset by changes
in fair value of hedging arrangements, declines in the market value of RMBS may uitimately reduce earnings or result in losses. in
this case, cash avaitable for distribution to our shareholders would be negatively affected. Market values of RMBS may also decline
without any general increase in interest rates for a number of reasons, such as increases in defaults, increases in voluntary prepay-
ments and widening of credit spreads.

A significant risk associated with our current portfolio of RMBS is the risk that both long-term and shart-term interest rates will
increase significantly. If long-term rates were to increase significantly, the market value of these RMBS would decline and the
weighted average life of the investments would increase. To the extent not offset by changes in fair value of hedging arrangements,
we could realize a loss if such securities were sold. At the same time, an increase in short-term interest rates would increase the
amount of interest owed on the repurchase agreements we enter into to finance the purchase of RMBS.

Prepayment rates could negatively affect the value of our RMBS, and, therefore, could reduce earnings and cash available
for distribution to our shareholiders.

in the case of residential mortgage loans, there are seldom any restrictions on borrowers' abilities to prepay their loans, Homeowners
tend to prepay mortgage loans faster when interest rates decline. Consequently, owners of the loans have to reinvest the money
received from the prepayments at the lower prevailing interest rates. This volatility in prepayment rates may affect our ability to
maintain targeted amounts of leverage on aur RMBS portfolio and may result in reduced earnings or losses for us and negatively
affect the cash available for distribution to our shareholders.

Some of the investments in our residential mortgage investment portfolio are likely to have limited liquidity and, as a
result, there wilf be uncertainty as to the value of these investments.

We believe that some of our residential mortgage investment portfolio is likely to be in forms that have limited liquidity or are not
publicly-traded. The fair value of securities and other investments that have limited liquidity or are not publicly-traded may not be
readily determinable. Because these valuations are inherently uncertain, may fluctuate over short periods of time and may be based
on estimates, our determinations of fair value may differ materially from the values that would have been used if a ready market
for these securities existed. The value of our common stock could be adversely affected if our determinations regarding the fair
value of these investments are materially higher than the vales that we ultimately realize upon their dispasat.
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In the future we may invest in mortgage-backed securities backed by non-prime or sub-prime residential mortgage
loans that are subject to higher delinquency, foreclosure and loss rates than prime residential mortgage loans and, in
turn, could result in losses to us.

Non-prime and sub-prime residential mortgage loans are made to borrowers who have poor or limited credit histories and, as a
result, they do not qualify for traditional mortgage products. Because of the poor, or lack of, credit history, non-prime and sub-prime
borrowers have a materially higher rate of payment delinguency, foreclosure and loss compared to prime credit quality borrowers.
There is limited history with respect to the performance of mortgage-backed securities backed by residential mortgage loans over
various economic cycles. Investments in non-prime and subprime mortgage-backed securities backed by sub-prime or non-prime
residential mortgage leans have higher risk than investments in mortgage-backed securities backed by prime residential mortgage
loans. We may realize credit losses if we invest in mortgage-backed securities backed by sub-prime and non-prime residential mort-
gage loans because these mortgage-backed securities are subject to all of the risks of the underlying sub-prime and non-prime
residential mortgage loans.

Risks Related to Our Direct Real Estate Investments

We are exposed to liabilities, including environmental liabilities, with respect to properties to which we take title.
Owning title to real estate can subject us to liabilities for injury to persons on the property or property damage. To the extent that
any such liabilities are not adequately covered by insurance, our business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations
could be materially and adversely affected.

We could be subject to environmental liabilities with respect to properties we own. We may be held liable to a governmental entity
or to third parties for property damage, personal injury, investigation and clean-up costs incurred by these parties in connection with
environmental contamination or may be required ta investigate or clean up hazardous or toxic substances, or chemical releases, at
a property. The costs associated with investigation or remediation activities could be substantial. if we ever become subject to sig-
nificant environmental liabilities, our business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations could be materially and
adversely affected.

We may experience losses if the creditworthiness of our tenants deteriorates and they are unable to meet their obliga-
tions under our leases.

We own the properties leased to tenants from whom we receive rents during the terms of our leases. A tenant’s ability to pay rent
is determined by the creditworthiness of the tenant. If a tenant's credit deteriorates, the tenant may default on its obligations under
our lease and the tenant may also become bankrupt. The bankruptcy or insolvency or other failure to pay of our tenants is likely to
adversely affect the income produced by our direct real estate investments.

The operators of our healthcare properties are faced with increased litigation and rising insurance costs that may affect
their ability to make payments to us,

Advocacy groups have been created in certain states to monitor the quality of care at healthcare facilities, and these groups have
sued healthcare operators. Patients have also sued healthcare facility operators and have, in certain cases, succeeded in winning
very large damage awards for alleged abuses. The effect of this litigation and potential litigation in the future has been to materially
increase the costs incurred by our operators for monitoring and reporting quality of care compliance. In addition, the cost of medi-
cal malpractice and liability insurance has increased and may continue to increase so leng as the present litigation environment
affecting the operations of healthcare facilities continues. Increases in the operators costs could cause our operators to be unable
to make payments to us, potentially decreasing our revenue and increasing our collection and litigation costs. To the extent we are
required to remove ar replace the operators of our healthcare properties, our revenue from those properties could be reduced or
eliminated for an extended period of time.
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Since real estate investments are illiquid, we may not be able to sell properties when we desire.
Real estate investments generally cannot be sold quickly. We may not be able to vary our portfolio promptly in response to changes
in the real estate market. This inability to respond to changes in the performance of our investments could adversely affect our abil-
ity to service our debt. The real estate market is affected by many factors that are beyond our control, including:
» changes in interest rates and in the availability, costs and terms of financing;
+ adverse changes in national and local economic and market conditions;
« the ongoing need for capital improvements, particularly in older structures;
e changes in governmental laws and regulations, fiscal policies and zoning and other ordinances and costs of compliance with
laws and regulations;
* changes in aperating expenses; and
e civil unrest, acts of war and natural disasters, including earthquakes and floods, which may result in uninsured and underin-
sured losses.

We cannot predict how long it may take us to find a willing purchaser and to close the sale of a property. We also cannot predict
whether we will be able to sell any property for the price or on the terms set by us, or whether any price or other terms offered by
a prospective purchaser would be acceptable to us. In addition, there are provisions under the federal income tax laws applicable
to REITs that may limit our ability to recognize the full economic benefit from a sale of our assets. These factors and any others that
would impede our ability to respond to adverse changes in the performance of our properties could have a material adverse effect
on our operating results and financial condition.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our cash dividends are not guaranteed and may fluctuate; we could reduce or eliminate dividends on our common stock.
Our board of directors, in its sole discretion, will determine the amount and frequency of dividends to be provided to our sharehold-
ers based on consideration of a number of factors including, but not limited te, our results of operations, cash flow and capital
requirements, economic conditions, tax considerations, borrawing capacity and other factors, including debt covenant restrictions
that may impose limitations on cash payments. Conseguently, our dividend levels may fluctuate, and the {evel of dividends we pay
could be less than expected. If we lower our dividend or elect or are required to retain rather than distribute our income, our stock
price could be adversely affected.

Acquisitions may adversely impact our business.

As part of our business strategy, we have in the past purchased other finance companies as waell as loan portfotios and related assets
from other finance companies, and we expect to continue these activities in the future. We also may acquire portfolios of real
estate, as in our direct rea! estate investment transactions in 2006. Future acquisitions may result in potentially dilutive issuances of
equity securities and the incurrence of additional debt. In addition, we face risks from our prior acquisitions and may face additional
risks from future acquisitions, including:

difficulties in integrating the operations, services, products and personnel of the acquired company or asset portfolio;
heightened risks of credit losses as a result of acquired assets not having been originated by us in accordance with our rigorous
underwriting standards;

» the diversion of management’s attention from other business concerns;

the potentially adverse effects that acquisitions may have in terms of the composition and performance of our assets; and

= the potential loss of key employees of the acquired company.

An investment in our shares of common stock involves tax concerns in addition to those affecting our REIT status.

We may face other tax liabilities as a REIT that reduce our cash flow. We may be subject to certain taxes on our income and assets,
inciuding state or local income, property and transfer taxes, such as mortgage recording taxes. Any of these taxes would decrease
cash available far distribution to our shareholders. In addition, to meet the REIT quaiification requirements, and to avert the imposi-
tion of a 100% tax that applies to certain gains derived by a REIT from dealer property or inventory, we hold some of our assets
through TRSs. TRSs are corporations subject to corporate-level income tax at regular rates. The rules applicable to TRSs limit the

CavitarSource 29




deductibility of interest paid or accrued by a TRS to its parent REIT to assure that the TRS is subject to an appropriate level of corpo-
rate taxation. The rules aiso impose a 100% excise tax on certain transactions between a TRS and its parent REIT that are not
conducted on an arm’s-length basis. We cannat assure you that we will be able to avoid application of the 100% excise tax imposed
on certain non-arm’s length transactions.

If, during the ten-year pericd beginning on the first day of the first taxable year for which we qualified as a REIT, we recognize gain
on the disposition of any property that we held as of such date, then, to the extent of the excess of (i} the fair market value of such
property as of such date over (i) cur adjusted income tax basis in such property as of such date, we will be required to pay a cor-
porate-level federal income tax on such gain at the highest regular corporate rate. Although we have no present intention ta
dispose of any property in a manner that would trigger such tax consequences, such dispositions could occur in the future.

In addition, the IRS may assert liabilities against us for corporate income taxes for taxable years prior to the time we gualified as a
REIT, in which case we will owe these taxes plus interest and penalties, if any. Moreover, any increase in taxable income will result
in an increase in accumulated undistributed earnings and profits, which could require us to pay additional 1axable dividends to our
then-existing shareholders within 90 days of the relevant determination.

State tax faws may not conform to federal tax law: Though we expect to qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes in 2006,
our qualification as a REIT under the laws of each individual state depends, among other things, on that state’s conformity with
federal tax law. if you live in a state whose tax laws do not conform to the federal tax treatment of RE[Ts, even if we do not do
business in that state, cash distributions to you may be characterized as ordinary income rather than capital gains for purpases of
computing your state taxes. You should consult with your tax advisor concerning the state tax consequences of an investment in
our commaen shares.

We and some of our shareholders could have federal income tax liability if we recognize any “excess inclusion income.” If we own
a residual interest in either a real estate mortgage investment conduit, or REMIC, or taxable mortgage pool, we will be required to
allocate excess inclusion income among our shareholders (and, in certain cases, holders of our convertible debt) to the extent that
such amounts exceed our REIT taxable income, excluding any net capital gain. To the extent that a shareholder (and, in certain cases,
holders of our convertible debt) is aliocated a portion of our excess inclusion income, such excess inclusion income (i) would not be
allowed to be offset by any net operating losses otherwise available to the shareholder, (i) would be subject to tax as unrelated
business taxable income in the hands of most types of shareholders that are otherwise generally exempt from federal income tax,
and {iii) would be subject to federal withholding tax at the maximum rate (30%), generally being ineligible for a reducticn or
elimination of such tax under an applicable income tax treaty, in the hands of foreign sharehoiders. Generally, to the extent that we
allocate any excess inclusion income to certain "disqualified shareholders” that are not subject to federal income taxation notwith-
standing the foregoing sentence, we would be subject to tax on such excess inclusion income at the highest tax rate. Tax-exempt
investars, nan-L.S. shareholders and shareholders with net operating losses should carefully consider the 1ax consequences described
above and are urged to consult their tax advisors in connection with their decision to invest in our shares of common stock.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our ability to hedge effectively. The existing REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue
Code substantially limit our ability to hedge mortgage-backed securities and related borrowings. Under these provisions, our annual
gross income from qualifying hedges of our borrowings, together with any other income not generated from qualifying real estate
assets, is limited to 25% or less of our gross income. In addition, we must limit our aggregate gross income from non-qualifying
hedges, fees and certain other non-qualifying sources to 5% or less of our annual gross income. As a result, we might in the future
have to limit our use of advantageous hedging techniques or implement those hedges through a TRS. These changes could increase
the cast of our hedging activities or leave us exposed to greater risks associated with changes in interest rates than we wouid oth-
erwise want to bear,
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If a substantial number of shares available for sale are sold in a short period of time, the market price of our common
stock could decline.

if our existing shareholders sell substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market, the market price of our common
stack could decrease significantly. As of February 15, 2007, we had 183,822,181 shares of common stock outstanding. In addition,
exercisable options for 3,267,545 shares are held by our employees. Subject, in some cases, 1o Rule 144 compliance, all of these
shares are eligible for sale in the public market. The perception in the public market that our existing shareholders might sell shares
of common stock could also depress our market price. A decline in the price of shares of our common stock might impede our abil-
ity to raise capital through the issuance of additional shares of our common stock or other equity securities,

Some provisions of Delaware law and our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may deter third parties from acquir-
ing us.
Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide for, among other things:
3 classified board of directors;
restrictions on the ability of our shareholders to fill a vacancy on the board of directors;
REIT ownership limits;
the authorization of undesignated preferred stock, the terms of which may be established and shares of which may be issued
without shareholder approval; and
» advance notice regquirements for shareholder proposals.

»

We also are subject to the anti-takeover provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which restricts the
ability of any shareholder that at any time holds more than 15% of our voting shares to acquire us without the approval of share-
holders holding at least 66 2/3% of the shares held by all other shareholders that are efigible to vote on the matter.

These anti-takeover defenses could discourage, delay or prevent a transaction involving a change in control of our company. These
provisions could also discourage proxy contests and make it more difficult for you and other shareholders to elect directors of your
choosing and cause us to take other corporate actions than yau desire.

insiders continue to have substantial control over us and could limit your ability to influence the outcome of key transac-
tians, including a change of control.

Our directors and executive officers and entities affiliated with them beneficially owned approximately 40% of the outstanding
shares of our common stock as of December 31, 2006. As a result, these shareholders, if acting together, would be able to influence
or control matters requiring approval by our shareholders, inctuding the election of directars and the approval of mergers or other
extraordinary transactions. They may also have interests that differ from yours and may vote in a way with which you disagree and
which may be adverse to your interests. The concentration of ownership may have the effect of delaying, preventing or deterring a
change of control of our company, could deprive our shareholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for their common stock
as part of a sale of our company and might uitimately affect the market price of our comman stock.

l ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

B 1TEM 2. PROPERTIES

Qur headquarters are located in Chevy Chase, Maryland, a suburb of Washington, D.C., where we lease office space under long-
term operating leases. This office houses the bulk of our technology and administrative functions and serves as the primary base for
our operations. During 2006, we leased additional office space in a facility adjacent te our headquarters facility to accommodate
our continued growth. We also maintain offices in Arizona, California, Connecticut, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Maine, Maryland,
Massachusetts, Missouri, New York, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Utah and in the United Kingdom. We believe our leased
facilities are adequate for us to conduct our business.
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During 2006, we began acquiring real estate for long-term investment purposes. These real estate investments primarily consist
of skilled nursing facilities currently leased to clients through the execution of long-term, triple-net operating leases. We had
$722.3 million in direct real estate investments as of December 31, 2006, which consisted primarily of land and buildings.

Qur direct real estate investment properties s of and for the year ended December 31, 2006 were as follows:

Number of Total
Facility Location Facilities Capacity'®? Investment® Revenues®
(% in thousands)
Long-Term Acute Care Facilities:
Florida 1 185 $ 6,979 $ 765
Kansas 1 39 39 1
Nevada 1 61 2,955 171
3 285 10,325 937
Skilled Nursing Facilities:
Alabama 1 174 8,542 19
Arizona 2 174 10,069 65
Arkansas 2 185 1,823 13
California 1 99 4,864 37
Colorado 2 273 7,001 80
Florida 49 6,053 281,478 22,140
Indiana 11 1,051 49,473 293
lowa 1 201 11,673 69
Kansas 2 150 3,927 19
Kentucky 5 344 23,643 201
Maryland 3 438 27,523 231
Massachusetts 1 124 11,834 79
Mississippi 5 481 37,422 312
Nevada 3 407 20,570 1,567
New Mexico 1 102 3,314 16
North Carolina 6 682 42,627 373
Chio 2 249 15,805 96
Oklahoma 5 697 19,774 147
Pennsylvania 3 443 18,190 1,596
Tennessee 3 438 34,224 269
Texas 10 1,359 49,021 1,487
Washington 1 168 5,843 43
Wiscensin 4 452 17.244 458
123 14,784 705,884 29,610
Assisted Living Facilities:
Florida 3 146 3,949 179
Indiana 1 99 2,145 16
4 245 6,094 195
Total Owned Properties 130 15,314 $722,303 $30,742

(1) Assisted living and long-term acute care facilities are apartment-like facilities and, therefore, expressed capacity is stated in units (studio, one
or two bedroom apartments). Skifled nursing facilities are meastired by licensed bed count.

{2} Investment for owned properties represents the acquisition costs of the assets less any refated accumulated depreciation.

(3) Represents the amount of operating lease income recognized on our audited consolidated statement of income for the year ended
December 31, 2006.
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0 iTEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are party to legal proceedings. We do not believe that any currently pending or threatened proceeding, if
determined adversely to us, would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations,
inclugding our cash flows.

I ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matter was submitted to a vote of our security holders during the fourth quarter of 2006.
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PART Il

I ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Price Range of Common Stock
Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") under the symbol “CSE.” The high and low sales prices for
our common stock as reported by the NYSE for the quarterly periods during 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

High Low
2006:
Fourth Quarter $28.57 $25.66
Third Quarter $26.05 $22.39
Second Quarter $25.50 $21.80
First Quarter $25.35 $21.52
2005:
Fourth Quarter $25.20 $20.81
Third Quarter $23.70 $18.64
Second Quarter $24.28 $17.95
First Quarter $25.78 $22.01

On February 15, 2007, the last reported sale price of our common stock on the NYSE was $27.00 per share.

Holders

As of December 31, 2006, there were 953 holders of record of our common stock. The number of holders does not include indi-
viduals or entities who beneficially own shares but whose shares are held of record by a broker or clearing agency, but does include
each such broker or clearing agency as one recordholder. American Stock Transfer & Trust Company serves as transfer agent for our
shares of common stock.

Dividend Policy
From our initial public offering in August 2003 through December 31, 2005, we did not pay any dividends. We began paying divi-
dends in 2006 in conjunction with our decision to operate as a REIT.

In January 2006, we paid a special dividend of $2.50 per share, or $350.9 million in the aggregate, representing our cumulative
undistributed earnings and profits, including earnings and profits of some of our predecessor entities, from our inception through
December 31, 2005. We paid this special dividend $70.2 million in cash and $280.7 million in 12.3 million shares of common stock.

We also began paying a regular quarterly dividend, which commenced in the first calendar quarter of 2006. We declared and paid
dividends as follows:

Dividend
Declared
per Share
2006:
Fourth Quarter $0.55
Third Quarter 0.49
Second Quarter 0.49
First Quarter 0.45
Total 2006 Dividends Declared $2.02
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For shareholders who held our shares for the entire year, the dividends paid in 2006, totaling $4.52 per share, were dassified for tax
reporting purposes as follows: $3.21 ordinary dividends, of which $2.35 are qualified dividends, $0.05 short-term capital gain, and
$1.26 return on capital. Of the sum of ordinary dividends and short-term capital gains, 0.05% is considered excess inclusion income.

We intend to continue to pay regular cash quarterly dividends that, on an annual basis, represent at least 90% of our REIT taxable
income, determined without regard to the deduction for dividends paid. Our actual dividend payments on our common stock are
subject to final approvai from our Board of Directors and are based on our results of operaticns, cash flow and prospects at the time,
as well as any contractual limitations in our debt instruments.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers
A summary of our repurchases of shares of cur common stock for the three months ended December 31, 2006 was as follows:

Shares Maximum

Purchased as Number of

Part of Publicly Shares that

Total Number Average Announced May Yet Be

of Shares Price Paid Plans or Purchased

Purchased'" per Share Programs under the Plans
October 1-October 31, 2006 2,963 $26.33 — —
November 1-November 30, 2006 14,084 26.84 — —
December 1-December 31, 2006 97,137 28.00 — —
Total 114,184 $27.81

(1) Represents the number of shares acquired as payment by employees of applicable statutory minimum withholding taxes owed upon vesting
of restricted stock granted under the CapitalSource inc. Third Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan.

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the performance of our common stock during the period beginning on August 7, 2003, the date of our
initial public offering, to December 31, 2006 with the S&P 500 Index and the S&P 500 Financials Index. The graph depicts the results of
investing $100 in our common stock, the S&P 500 Index, and the S&P 500 Finandials index at closing prices on August 7, 2003, assum-
ing all dividends were reinvested. Historical stock performance during this period may not be indicative of future stock performance.

$200

O CapitalSource Inc.

/J:I O S&P 500 Index
$150 " _—8 A S&F 500 Financials Index

$100

$50

$0

08/07/03 12/31/03 12/31/2004 12/31/2005 12/31/2006
Base Period
Period Ended Years Ended December 31,
Company/Iindex 08/07/2003 12/31/2003 2004 2005 2006

CapitalSource Inc. $100 $119.1 $141.0 $136.0 $179.4
S&P 500 Index 100 115.0 127.5 133.8 154.9
S&P 500 Financials Index 100 113.5 125.9 134.0 159.7
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B 17EM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

You should read the data set forth below in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes of CapitalSource
Inc., Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and other financial information
appearing elsewhere in this report. The following tables show selected portions of audited historical consolidated financial data as
of and for the five years ended December 31, 2006. We derived our selected consolidated financial data as of and for the five years
ended December 31, 2006 from our audited consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP,
independent registered public accounting firm.

Year Ended December 31,

(% in thousands, except per share data) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Results of operations:
Interest income $ 1,016,533 % 514,652 $ 313,827 $ 175,169 $ 73,591
Fee income 170,485 130,638 86,324 50,596 17,512
Total interest and fee income 1,187,018 645,290 400,151 225,765 91,103
Operating lease income 30,742 — — — —
Total investment income 1,217,760
Interest expense 606,725 185,935 79,053 39,956 13,974
Net investment income 611,035 459,355 321,098 185,809 77,129
Provision for loan losses 81,562 65,680 25,710 11,337 6,688
Net investment income after
provision for loan losses 529,473 393,675 295,388 174,472 70,441
Total operating expenses 216,052 143,836 107,748 67,807 33,595
Total other income 37,328 19,233 17,781 25,815 4,736
Noncontrolling interests expense 4711 — — — —

Net income before income taxes
and cumulative effect of

accounting change 346,038 269,072 205,421 132,480 41,582
Income taxes!" 67,132 104,400 80,570 24,712 —
Net income before cumulative
effect of accounting change 278,906 164,672 124,851 107,768 41,582
Cumulative etfect of accounting
change, net of taxes 370 — — — —
Net income $ 279,276 $ 164,672 3 124,851 $ 107,768 3 41,582
Net income per share:
Basic $ 1.68 $ 1.36 % 1.07 % 1.02 $ 0.43
Diluted $ 1.65 3 1.33 $ 1.06 % 1.01 ¢ 0.42
Average shares outstanding:
Basic 166,273,730 120,976,558 116,217,650 105,281,806 97,701,088
Diluted 169,220,007 123,433,645 117,600,676 107,170,585 99,728,331
Cash dividends declared per share  § 2.02 $ 050 % — 3 — 3 —

(1) As a resuft of our decision to elect REIT status beginning with the tax year ended Decamber 31, 2006, we provided for income taxes based on
3 39.9% effective tax rate for the income earned by our taxable REIT subsidiaries, We did not provide for any income taxes for the income
earned by cur qualified REIT subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2006. We provided for income taxes on the consciidated income
earned based on a 19.4%, 38.8% and 39.2% effective tax rate in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. We provided far income taxes on the
mcome earned from August 7, 2003 through December 31, 2003 based on a 38.0% effective tax rate. Prior {0 our reorganization as a "C"
corporation on August b, 2003, we operated as a limited lisbility company and did not provide for income taxes as all income taxes were paid
directly by our members.
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December 31,

(% in thousands) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Balance sheet data:
Mortgage-related receivables, net $ 2,295,922 $ 39,438 $ — $ — $ —
Mortgage-backed securities
pledged, trading 3,502,753 323,370 — — —
Loans, net 7,520,818 5,687,134 4,140,381 2,339,089 1,036,676
Direct real estate investments, net 722,303 — — — —
Total assets 15,210,574 6,987,068 4,736,829 2,567,091 1,160,605
Repurchase agreements 3,510,768 358,423 — 8,446 —_
Unsecured credit facilities 355,685 — — — —
Secured credit facilities 2,183,155 2,450,452 964,843 736,700 239,900
Term debt 5,809,685 1,779,748 2,186,311 920,865 425,615
Canvertible debt 555,000 555,000 555,000 — —
Subordinated debt 446,393 231,959 — — —
Total borrowings 12,860,686 5,375,582 3,706,154 1,666,011 665,515
Total sharehoiders' equity 2,093,040 1,199,938 946,391 867,132 473,682
Portfolio statistics:
Number of loans closed to date 1,986 1,409 923 504 209
Number of loans paid off to date (914} (486) (275) (87) (24)
Number of loans 1,072 923 648 417 185
Total loan commitments $11,929,568 $9,174,567 $6,379,012 $3,673,369 $1,636,674
Average outstanding loan size $ 7.323 5 6,487 % 6,596 $ 5,796 b 5,804
Average balance of loans
outstanding during year $ 6,971,908 $5,046,704 $3,287,734 $1.760,638 $ 672,015
Employees as of year end 548 520 398 285 164
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Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Performance ratios:
Return on average assets™" 222% 3.04% 3.59% 4.34% 3.49%
Return on average equity'? 14.63% 15.05% 14.17% 12.37% 7.76%
Yield on average interest earning assets 9.80% 12.15% 11.59% 11.92% 12.40%
Cost of funds 5.79% 4.43% 3.08% 3.32% 3.57%
Net finance margin 4.94% 8.65% 9.30% 9.81% 10.50%
Qperating expenses as a percentage of

average total assets 1.72% 2.65% 3.09% 3.58% 4.55%

Operating expenses (excluding direct

real estate investment depreciation} as

a percentage of average total assets 1.62% 2.65% 3.09% 3.58% 4.55%
Efficiency ratio (operating expenses/net

interest and fee income and

other income) 33.32% 30.05% 31.80% 32.01% 41.03%
Efficiency ratio {operating expenses

excluding direct real estate

depreciation/net interest and fee

income and other income) 31.55% 30.05% 31.80% 32.01% 41.03%
Credit quality and leverage ratios:
60 or more days contractual

dalinguencies as a percentage of

loans {as of year end) 1.12% 0.70% 0.76% 0.18% 0.00%
Loans on non-accrual status as a

percentage of loans (as of year end) 2.34% 2.30% 0.53% 0.36% 0.00%
Impaired loans as a percentage of

loans {as of year end) 3.58% 3.33% 0.77% 0.63% 0.00%
Net charge offs (as a percentage of

average loans) 0.69% 0.27% 0.26% 0.00% 0.00%
Allowance for loan losses as a

percentage of loans (as of year end) 1.54% 1.46% 0.82% 0.75% 0.62%
Total debt to equity (as of year end) 6.14x 4.48x 3.93x 1.93x 1.41%
Eguity to total assets {(as of year end) 13.76% 17.17% 19.98% 33.78% 40.81%

(1) Adjusted to reflect results from our reorganization in 2003 as a “C” corporation. As a limited liabifity company prior to the August 6, 2003
recrganization, we did not provide for income taxes as all income taxes were paid directly by the members. As a *C" corporation, CapitalSource
Inc. is responsible for the payment of alf federal and state corporate income taxes. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, return
on average assets and return on average equity were calculated based on unaudited pro forma net income that includes provision for income
taxes with a combined federal and state effective tax rate of 38.0%.
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l ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview and Highlights

We are a commercial lending, investment and asset management company focused on the middle market. We operate as a REIT
and provide senior and subordinate commercial loans, invest in real estate, engage in asset management and servicing activities and
invest in residential mortgage assets. We expect to formally make an election to REIT status for 2006 when we file our tax return
for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Through our commercial lending and investment activities, our primary goal is to be the provider of financing of choice for
middle market businesses that require customized and sophisticated financing. We operate thraugh three principal commercial
finance businesses;
+ Healthcare and Specialty Finance, which generally provides first mortgage loans, asset-based revolving lines of credit, real
estate lease financing and cash flow loans to healthcare businesses and a broad range of other companies;
« Structured Finance, which generally engages in commercial and residential real estate finance and also provides asset-based
lending to finance companies; and
» Corporate Finance, which generally provides senior and subordinate loans through direct origination and participation in
widely syndicated loan transactions,

In 2006, we grew our asset management business. We completed our first CLO issuance comprising a portfolio of originated and
acquired cash flow loans. We also opened warehouse facilities for two additional CLOs that we intend to close over the next 12
menths. In addition to cur CLO business, we are party to a jaint venture to acquire distressed and other types of debt investments,
As with our CLOs, we are the asset manager for this joint venture and receive a fee for managing the assets owned by the joint
venture. We view these and other potential asset management businesses as complementary opportunities for us to leverage our
commercial finance expertise into managing financial assets owned by third parties. We intend to further buitd out our asset man-
agement businesses by focusing on additional product types, which, for example, may include managing subordinated debt and
equity investments for others.

To optimize our REIT structure, we also invest in certain residential mortgage assets. As of December 31, 2006, the balance of our
residential mortgage investment portfalio was $5.8 billion, which included investments in residential morigage loans and RMBS.

Consolidated Results of Operations

On January 1, 2006, we began operating as two reportable segments: 1) Commercial Lending & Investment and 2) Resicential
Martgage Investment. Our Commercial Lending & investment segment includes our commercial lending and investment business
and our Residential Mortgage Investment segment includes all of our activities related to our residential mortgage investments. The
discussion that follows differentiates our results of operations between our segments.

Explanation of Reporting Metrics

Interest Income. In our Commercial Lending & Investment segment, interest income represents interest earned on our commercial
loans. The majority of these loans charge interest at variable rates that generally adjust daily, with an increasing number of loans
¢charging interest at fixed rates. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, approximately 6% of our outstanding loan balance had a fixed
rate of interest. In our Residential Mortgage Investment segment, interest income represents interest earned on our residential
mortgage-related receivables and RMBS.

Fee Income. In our Commercial Lending & Investment segment, fee income represents net fee income earned from our commercial
toan operations. Fee income primarily includes the amortization of loan origination fees, net of the direct costs of origination, the
amortization of fees related to syndicated loans that we originate and other fees charged to borrowers. We amortize these loan
fees into income over the contractual life of our loans and do not take loan fees into income when a loan closes. Loan prepayments
may materially affect fee income since, in the period of prepayment, the amortization of remaining net loan origination fees and
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discounts is accelerated and prepayment penalties may be assessed on the prepaid loans and recognized in the period of the pre-
payment. We consider both the acceleration of any unamortized fees and fees related to prepayment penalties to be
prepayment-related fee income. We currently do not generate fee income in our Residential Mortgage Investment segment.

Operating Lease income. In our Commercial Lending & Investment segment, operating lease income represents lease income
earned in connection with our direct real estate investments. Qur operating leases typically include fixed rental payments, subject
to escalation aver the life of the lease. We project a minimurn escalation rate for the leases and recognize operating lease income
on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease. We currently do not generate any operating lease income in our Residential
Mortgage Investment segment.

Interest Expense. Interest expense i5 the amount paid on borrowings, including the amortization of deferred financing fees. In our
Commercial Lending & Investment segment, cur borrowings consist of repurchase agreements, secured and unsecured credit facilities,
term debt, canvertible debt and subordinated debt. In our Residential Mortgage lnvestment segment, our borrowings consist of repur-
chase agreements and term debt. The majerity of our borrowings charge interest at variable rates based primarily on one-month LIBOR
or commercial paper rates plus a margin. Currently, our convertible debt, three series of our subordinated debt and our term debt issued
in connection with our investments in mortgage-related receivables bear a fixed rate of interest. As our borrowings increase and as short
term interest rates rise, our interest expense will increase. Deferred financing fees and the costs of issuing debt, such as commitment
fees and lega! fees, are amortized over the estimated life of the borrowing. Loan prepayments may materially affect interest expense on
our term debt since in the period of prepayment the amartization of deferred financing fees and debt acquisition costs is accelerated.

Provision for Loan Losses. We record a provision for lvan losses in both our Commercial Lending & Investment segment and our
Residential Mortgage Investment segment. The provision for kean losses is the periodic cost of maintaining an appropriate allow-
ance for Joan losses inherent in our commercial lending portfolio and in our portfolio of residential mortgage-related receivables.
As the size and mix of loans within these portfolios change, or if the credit quality of the portfalios change, we record a provision
to apprapriately adjust the allowance for loan losses.

Other Income. In our Commercial Lending & Investment segment, ather income {expense} consists of gains {losses) on the sale of debt
and equity investments, unrealized appreciation {depreciation} on certain investments, gains (losses) on derivatives, due diligence
deposits forfeited, fees associated with the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, or HUD, origination
activities, unrealized apprecigtion (depreciation) of our equity interests in certain non-consclidated entities, third-party servicing income
and other miscellaneous fees and expenses not attributable to our commercial lending and investment operations. In our Residential
Mortgage Investment segment, other income {expense) consists of unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on certain of our residential
mortgage investments and gains (losses) on derivatives used to economically hedge the residential mortgage investment portfelio.

Operating Expenses. Operating expenses for both our Commercial Lending & Investment segment and our Residential Mortgage
Investment segment include compensation and benefits, professional fees, travel, rent, insurance, depreciation and amortization,
marketing and other general and administrative expenses.

income Taxes. We expect to formally make an election to REIT status for 2006 under the Code when we file our tax return for our
taxable year ended December 31, 2006. Provided we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we generally will not be subject to corporate-
level income tax on the earnings distributed to our sharehalders that we derive from our REIT qualifying activities, but we will
continue to be subject to corporate-level tax on the earnings we derive fram our TRSs. We do not expect our Residential Mortgage
nvestment segment to be subject to corporate-level tax as all assets are considered REIT qualifying assets. A significant portien of
our Commercial Lending & Investment segment will remain subject to corporate-level income tax as many of the segment’s assets
are originated and held in our TRSs, We were responsible for paying federal, state and local income taxes on all of our income for
the vears ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.
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Adjusted Earnings. Adjusted earnings represents net income as determined in accordance with U.S. generally accepted account-
ing principles ("GAAP™), adjusted for certain non-cash items, including rea! estate depreciation, amortization of deferred financing
fees, non-cash equity compensation, unrealized gains and losses on our residential morigage investment portfolio and related
derivatives, unrealized gains and losses on other derivatives and foreign currencies, net unrealized gains and losses on investments,
provision for loan losses, charge offs, recoveries, nonrecurring items and the cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles.
We view adjusted earnings and the related per share measures as useful and appropriate supplements to net income and earnings
per share. These measures serve as an additional measure of our operating performance because they facilitate evaluation of the
company without the effects of certain adjustments determined in accordance with GAAP that may not necessarily be indicative of
current operating performance. Adjusted earnings should not be considered as an alternative 1o net income or cash flows {each
computed in accordance with GAAP). Instead, adjusted earnings should be reviewed in connection with income and cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities in our consolidated financial statements, to help analyze how our business is
performing. Adjusted earnings and other supplemental performance measures are defined in various ways throughout the REIT
industry. Investors should consider these differences when comparing our adjusted earnings to other REITs.

Operating Results for the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
Our results of operations in 2006 continued to be driven primarily by our continued growth as well as the impact of our REIT election.
As further described below, the mast significant factors influencing our consolidated results of operations for the time period were:
e A decrease in our effective tax rate;
+ Significant growth in our commercial loan portfolio;
+ Addition of operating lease income related to our direct real estate investments;
= Increased borrowings to fund our growth;
» Increased operating expenses, including higher employee compensation related to increases in the number of our employees,;
¢ An increase in short-term interest rates; and
e Decreased lending and borrowing spreads.

Our consolidated operating results for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended December 31, 2005 and
for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to the year ended December 31, 2004 were as {ollows:

Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
$ % 1) %

{($ in thousands) 2006 2005 Change Change 2005 2004 Change Change
interest income $1,016,533  $514,652  $501,881 98%  $514,652 $313,827  $200,825 64%
Fee income 170,485 130,638 39,847 31% 130,638 86,324 44,314 51%
Operating lease income 30,742 — 30,742 N/A — — —  NA
Interest expense 606,725 185,935 420,790 226% 185,935 79,053 106,882 135%
Pravision for loan losses 81,562 65,680 15,882 24% 65,680 25,710 39,970 155%
Operating expenses 216,052 143,836 72,216 50% 143,836 107,748 36,088 33%
Other income 37,328 19,233 18,095 94% 198,233 17,781 1,452 8%
Noncontrolling interests

expense 4,711 — 4711 N/A — —_ —  N/A
Income taxes 67.132 104,400 (37,268) {36)% 104,400 80,570 23,830 30%
Cumnulative effect of

accounting change,

net of taxes 370 — 370 N/A — — N/A
Net income 279,276 164,672 114,604 70% 164,672 124,851 39,821 32%
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Our consolidated yields on income earning assets and the costs of interest bearing liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005 were as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005

Weighted Net Average Weighted Net Average

Average Investment Yield/ Average Net Yield/
(¥ in thousands) Balance Income Cost Balance Income Cost
Interest earning assets:
Interest income $1,016,533 8.39% $£514,652 9.65%
Fee income 170,485 1.41 130,638 2.46
Total interest earning assets! $12,112,492 1,187,018 980 $5,309,530 645,290 12.15
Total direct real estate investments 260,313 30,742 11.81 — — —
Total income earning assets 12,372,805 1,217,760 9.84 5,309,530 645,290 12.15
Total interest bearing liabilities?’ 10,479,447 606,725 5.79 4,193,128 185,935 4.43
Net finance spread % 611,035 4.05% $459,355 7.72%
Net finance margin 4.94% 8.65%

(1) Interest earning assets include cash, restricted cash, mortgage-related receivables, RMBS, loans, and investments in debt securities.
(2) interest bearing liabilities include repurchase agreements, sacured and unsecured credit facilities, term debt, convertible debt and subordinated debr.

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

All amounts below relating to our Commercial Lending & Investment segment for the year ended December 31, 2006 are compared
to our consolidated resulis for the year ended Decernber 31, 2005 as we did not report our operations in segments in 2005, and
all activity for the year ended December 31, 2005 was related to commercial lending and investment activity, Ali references to com-
rmercial loans below include loans, loans held for sale and receivables under reverse-repurchase agreements.

Interest Income

In our Commercial Lending & Investment segment, interest income was $749.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, an
increase of $234.4 million, or 46%, from total interest income for the year ended December 31, 2005. This increase was due to the
growth in average interest earning assets, primarily loans, of $2.0 billion, or 37%, as well as an increase in the interest component
of yleld to 10.27% for the year ended December 31, 2006 from 9.69% for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in the
interest component of yield was largely due to the increase in short-term interest rates, partially offset by a decrease in our lending
spread. During the year ended December 31, 2006, our commercial lending spread to average one-month LIBOR was 5.18% com-
pared ta 6.31% for the year ended December 31, 2005. This decrease in lending spread reflects overall trends in financial markets,
the increase in competition in our markets, as well as the changing mix of our commercial lending portfolio as we pursue the
expanded opportunities afforded to us by our decision 1o elect to be taxed as a REIT, By operating as a REIT, we can make the same,
or better, after tax return on a loan with a lawer interest rate than on a loan with a higher interest rate originated prior to our deci-
sion to elect to be taxed as a REIT. Fluctuations in yields are driven by a number of factors, including changes in short-term interest
rates (such as changes in the prime rate or one-month LIBOR), the coupon on new loan originations, the coupon on loans that pay
down or pay off and maodifications of interest rates on existing loans.

In our Residential Mortgage Investment segment, interest income was $267.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.
Included in this amount is the amartization of purchase discounts on our investments in RMB8S and mortgage-related receivables,
which are amortized into income using the interest method. Average interest earning assets, which consist primarily of residential
martgage-related receivables and RMBS, were $4.8 billion as of December 31, 2006. Yield on average interest earning assets was
5.55% for the year ended December 31, 2006.

fee Income

In our Commercial Lending & Investrment segment, the increase in fee income was primarily the result of the growth in interest earn-
ing assets as well as an increase in prepayment-related fee income, which totaled $66.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2006 compared to $34.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Prepayment-related fee income contributed 0.92% and
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0.65%, to yield for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Yieid from fee income decreased to 2.34% for the
year ended December 31, 2006 from 2.46% for year ended December 31, 2005.

Operating Lease Income
In our Commercial Lending & Investment segment, $30.7 million of operating lease income was earned in connection with our
direct real estate investments acquired during the year ended December 31, 2006.

Interest Expense

We fund our growth largely through borrowings. In our Commercial Lending & Investment segment, interest expense was
$356.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of $170.2 million, or 92%, from total interest expense for
the year ended December 31, 2005. This increase in interest expense was primarily due to an increase in average borrowings of
$1.6 billion, or 39%, as well as rising interest rates during the year. Our cost of borrowings increased 1o 6.12% for the year
ended December 31, 2006 from 4.43% for the year ended December 31, 2005. This increase was the result of rising interest
rates, the use of our unsecured credit facility, which has a higher borrowing spread relative to our secured credit facilities, and
an increase in the amortization of deferred financing fees. The increase in deferred financing fees was primarily due to additional
financings and higher loan prepayments on loans that secure our term debt. These increases were partially offset by lower bor-
rowing margins and our use of more cost effective sources of financing. Our overall borrowing spread to average one-month
LIBOR for the year enced December 31, 2006 was 1.03% compared to 1.05% for the year ended December 31, 2005.

In our Residential Mortgage Investment segment, interest expense was $250.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2006,
resulting from average borrowings of $4.7 billion. Our cost of borrowings for this segment was 5.31% for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

Net Finance Margin

In our Commercial Lending & Investment segment, net finance margin, defined as net investment income {which includes interest,
fee and operating lease income less interest expense) divided by average income earning assets, was 7.86% for the year ended
December 31, 2006, a decrease of 79 basis points from 8.65% for the year ended December 31, 2005. The decrease in net finance
margin was primarily due to the increase in interest expense resulting from a higher cast of funds, offset partially by an increase in
yield on total income earning assets resulting from higher loan prepayments. Net finance spread, which represents the difference
between our gross yield on income earning assets and the cost of our interest bearing liabilities, was 6.46% for the year ended
December 31, 2006, a decrease of 126 basis points from 7.72% for the year ended December 31, 2005. Gross yield is the sum of
interest, fee and operating lease income divided by our average income earning assets. The decrease in net finance spread is attrib-
utable to the changes in its components as described above.

The yields of income earning assets and the costs of interest bearing liabilities in our Commercial Lending & Investment segment
for the year ended Decermnber 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005

Weighted Net Average Weighted Net Average

Average Investment Yield/ Average Investment Yield/
(% in thousands) Balance Income Cost Balance Income Cost
Interest garning assets:
Interest income $749,011 10.27% $514,652 9.69%
Fee income 170,485 2.34 130,638 2.46
Total interest earning assetst” $7,293,568 919,496 12.61 $5,309,530 645,290 12.15
Total direct real estate investments 260,313 30,742 11.81 — — —
Total income earning assets 7,553,881 950,238 12.58 5,302,530 645,290 12.15
Total interest bearing liabilities® 5,823,368 356,164 6.12 4,193,128 185,935 4.43
Net finance spread $594,074 6.46% $459,355 7.72%
Net finance margin 7.86% 8.65%

(1) Interest earning assets include cash, restricted cash, loans and investments in debt securities.
(2} interest bearing liabilities include repurchase agreements, secured and unsecured credit facilities, term debt, convertible debt and subordi-
nated debt.
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In our Residential Mortgage Investment segment, net finance spread was 0.24% for the year ended December 31, 2006. Net
finance spread is the difference between yield on interest earning assets of 5.55% and the cost of our interest bearing liabilities of
5.31% for the year ended December 31, 2006. Interest earning assets include cash, restricted cash, mortgage-related receivables
and RMBS. Interest bearing liabilities include repurchase agreements and term debt.

Provision for Loan Losses

The increase in the provision for loan losses in our Commercial Lending & Investment segment is the result of growth in our com-
mercial loan portfalio, an increase in the balance of impaired loans in the portfolio and additional allocated reserves recorded during
the year ended December 31, 2006.

Other Income

In our Commercial Lending & Investment segment, ather income was $34.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, an
increase of $15.6 millien, or 81%, from total other income for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in other income
was primarily attributable to the receipt of a break-up fee of $4.5 million related 1o a prospective 'oan, a $2.9 million increase in net
realized and unrealized gains in our equity investments, a $2.6 million increase on net gains on derivatives, a $2.1 million increase
in income relating to our equity interests in certain non-consolidated entities and a $1.9 million increase in diligence deposits for-
feited. These increases were partiaily offset by a $3.1 million decrease in third-party servicing fees and a $2.5 million loss incurred
on the extinguishment of debt in connection with one of our direct real estate investments entered into during the year ended
December 31, 2006.

In our Residential Mortgage Investrment segment, other income consisted of a gain on the residential mortgage investment portfo-
lio of $2.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. This gain was attributable to net realized and unrealized gains on related
derivative instruments of $7.3 million, partially offset by net realized and unrealized losses on residential mortgage investments of
$4.8 million.

Included in unreaiized gains on derivative instruments is not only the change in fair value of these instruments, but also the net of
interest income and expense accruals related to certain of our derivatives.

Operating Expenses

The increase in consolidated operating expenses was primarily due to higher total empioyee compensation, which increased
$40.9 million, or 43%. The higher employee compensation was attributable to an increase in our average number of employees
to 555 for the year ended December 31, 2006, from 457 for the year ended December 31, 2005, as well as higher incentive
compensation, including an increase in the value of restricted stock awards and stock options granted. For the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, incentive compensation totaled $69.2 million and $44.5 million, respectively. Incentive compen-
sation comprises annual bonuses, as well as stock options and restricted stock awards, which generally have a three- to five-year
vesting period. The remaining increase in operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006 was primarily attributable
to anincrease of $12.2 million in professional fees, an increase of $11.9 million in depreciation and amortization primarily resuit-
ing from our direct real estate investments, an increase of $2.2 million in travel and entertainment expenses and an increase of
$3.5 million in other general business expenses. Operating expenses in our Residential Mortgage Investment segment, which
consist primarily of compensation and benefits, professional fees and other direct expenses, were $8.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006. .

In our Commercial Lending & Investment segment, operating expenses as a percentage of average total assets increased slightly to
2.69% for the year ended December 31, 2006 from 2.65% for the year ended December 31, 2005. Our Commercial Lending &
Investment segment’s efficiency ratio, which represents operating expenses as a percentage of net investment income and other
income, increased to 32.98% for the year ended December 31, 2006 from 30.05% for the year ended December 31, 2005 primar-
ily attributable to the increase in operating expenses described above.
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income Taxes

Our effective tax rate on our consolidated net income was 19.4% for the year ended December 31, 2006, which is impacted by a
reduction in net deferred tax liabilities as a result of our REIT election. Our effective income tax rate for the year ended December 31,
2006 attributable to our TRSs was 39.9%. Qur effective tax rate was 38.8% for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Adjusted Earnings

Adjusted earnings, as previously defined, were $425.7 million, or $2.51 per diluted share, for the year ended December 31, 2006.
A reconciliation of our reported net income to adjusted earnings for the year ended December 31, 2006 was as follows {3 in thou-
sands, except per share data):

Net income $ 279,276
Add:
Real estate depreciation®? 10,323
Amortization of deferred financing fees 30,842
Non-cash equity compensation 33,294
Net unrealized loss on residential mortgage investment portfolio, including related derivatives'? 5,862
Unrealized gain on derivatives and foreign currencies, net (1,470)
Unrealized loss on investments, net 7.524
Provision for loan losses 81,662
Recoveries® —
Less:
Charge oifs® 16,510
Nonrecurring items® 4,725
Curmulative effect of accounting change, net of taxes 370
Adjusted earnings $ 425,708

Net income per share:

Basic—as reported % 1.68
Diluted—as reported 5 1.65
Average shares outstanding:

Basic—as reported 166,273,730
Dituted—as reported 169,220,007
Adjusted earnings per share:

Basic % 2.56
Diluted® 13 2.51
Average shares outstanding:

Basic 166,273,730
Diluted™ 171,551,972

(1) Depreciation for direct real estate investments only. Excludes depreciation for corporate leasehoid improvements, fixed assets and other non-
real estate items.

{2} Includes adjustments to reflect the period change in fair value of RMBS and related derivative instruments.

{3) Includes all recoveries on loans during the period.

{4) To the extent we experience losses on loans for which we specifically provided a reserve prior to January 1, 26006, there will be no adjustment
to earnings. All charge offs incremental to previously established allacated reserves will be deducted from net income,

(5) Represents the write-off of a net deferred tax fiability recorded in connection with our conversion to @ REIT for the year ended December 31, 2006.

(6) Adjusted to reflect the impact of adding back noncontrolling interests expense of $4.7 million to adjusted earnings due to the application of
the if-converted method on non-managing member units, which are considered dilutive ta adjusted earnings per share, but are antidilutive to
GAAP net income per share for all periods presented.

(7) Adjusted to include average non-managing member units of 2,331,965, which are considered dilutive to adjusted earnings per share, but are
antidilutive to GAAP net income per share.
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Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Interest Income

The increase in interest income was due to the growth in average interest earning assets of $1.9 billion, or 54%, as well as an
increase in the interest component of yield to 9.69% for the year ended December 31, 2005 from 9.09% for the year ended
December 31, 2004. Interest earning assets increased during 2005 primarily from the growth in loans in our commercial lending
portfolio. The increase in the interest component of yield was largely due to the increase in short-term interest rates, offset by a
decrease in our lending spread. During 2005, our overall lending spread to the average prime rate was 3.50% compared to 4.80%
for the year ended December 31, 2004. This decrease in lending spread reflects both the increase in competition in aur markets, as
well as the changing mix of our commercial lending portfolio toward a greater percentage of asset-based and real estate loans.
Fluctuations in yields are driven by a number of factors including the coupon on new loan originations, the coupon on loans that
pay down or pay off and the effect of external interest rates.

Fee Income

The increase in fee income was primarily the resuit of the growth in interest earning assets as well as an increase in prepayment
fees, which aggregated $34.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to $25.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004. Yield from fee income decreased to 2.46% for the year ended December 31, 2005 from 2.50% for the
year ended December 31, 2004, primarily due to lower prepayment and other fees relative to the growth of average interest
earning assets,

Interest Expense

We fund our growth largely through borrowings. Consequently, the increase in our interest expense was primarily due to an
increase in average borrowings of $1.6 billion, or 63%, as well as rising interest rates during the period. Our cost of borrowings
increased 10 4.43% for the year ended December 31, 2005 from 3.08% for the year ended December 31, 2004. This increase was
the result of rising interest rates and an increase in amortization of deferred financing fees due to additional financings and higher
loan prepayments in our term debt, partially offset by lower borrowing margins and our use of more cost effective sources of financ-
ing. Our overall borrowing spread to average one-month LIBOR for the year ended December 31, 2005 was 1.05% compared to
1.58% for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Net Finance Margin

Net finance margin, defined as net interest income divided by average interest earning assets, was 8.65% for the year ended
December 31, 2005, a decline of 65 basis points from 9.30% for the year ended December 31, 2004. The decrease in net finance
margin was primarily due to the increase in interest expense resulting from a higher cost of funds and higher leverage, offset par-
tially by an increase in yield. Net finance spread, the difference between our gross yield on interest earning assets and the cost of
our interest bearing liabilittes, was 7.72% for the year ended December 31, 2005, a decrease of 79 basis points from 8.51% for
the year ended December 31, 2004. Gross yield is the sum of interest and fee income divided by our average interest earning assets.
The decrease in net finance spread is attributable to the changes in its components as described above.
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The yields of interest earning assets and the costs of interest bearing liabilities for the years ended Decermnber 31, 2005 and 2004
were as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004
Weighted Interestand Average Weighted Interestand Average
Average Fee Income/  Yield/ Average Fee Income/  Yield/
($ in thousands} Balance Interest Expense Cost Balance Interest Expense Cost
Interest earning assets:
Interest income $514,652 9.69% $313,827 9.09%
Fee income 130,638 2.46 86,324 2.50
Total interest earning assets'” $5,309,530 645,290 12.15 $3,453,888 400,151 11.59
Total interest bearing liabilities'? 4,193,128 185,935 4.43 2,567,077 79,053 3.08
Net finance spread $459,355 7.72% $321,098 8.51%
Net finance margin (net yield
on interest earning assets) 8.65% 9.30%

(1) interest earning assets include cash, restricted cash, mortgage-backed securities accounted for on a gross basis, loans and investments in
debt securities.

(2) Interest bearing hiabilitias include repurchase agreements accounted for on a gross basis, secured credit facilities, term debt, convertible debt
and subordinated debt.

Provision for Loan Losses

The increase in the provision for loan losses is the result of the growth in our loan portfalio, the increase in the balance of impaired
loans in the portfalio and a change in our loan loss reserve estimates. During the year ended December 31, 2005, we changed our
loan loss reserve policy, which included increasing our loan loss reserve estimates based on revised reserve factors by loan type that
cansider historical toss experience, the seasoning of our portfolio, overall economic conditions and other factors.

Cther Income

The increase in other income was primarily due to an increase in gain on investments, net of $6.8 million and the recognition of
gains on the sale of loans of $1.3 million occurring during 2005, partially offset by a decrease in fees arising from our HUD mort-
gage origination services of $4.0 million and an increase in loss on derivatives of $1.7 million.

Operating Expenses

The increase in operating expenses was primarily due to higher total employee compensation, which increased $22.6 million, or
31%. The higher employee compensation was attributable to an increase in employees to 520 as of December 31, 2005 from 398
as of December 31, 2004, as well as higher incentive compensation, including an increase in restricted stock awards granted during
2005. A significant portion of employee compensation is composed of annual bonuses and restricted stock awards, which generally
have a three to five year vesting period. During 2004, we established a variable methodology for employee bonuses partially based
on the performance of the company, pursuant to which we accrued for employee bonuses throughout the year. For the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004, incentive compensation totaled $44.5 million and $34.7 million, respectively. In the fourth quarter
2005, we reversed $3.7 million of accrued incentive compensation that was recorded in the first three quarters of 2005. This rever-
sal was made to align overall incentive compensation, for our Chief Executive Officer and our Vice Chairman and former Chief
Investment Officer with financial performance targets. The remaining $13.5 million increase in operating expenses for the year
ended December 31, 2005 was attsibutable to an increase of $8.0 million in professional fees incurred in connection with our REIT
election plan, an increase of $2.0 millien in rent, &n increase of $1.7 million in travel and entertainment, an increase of $0.4 million
in depreciation and amortization and an increase of $1.4 million in other general business expenses.

QOperating expenses as a percentage of average total assets decreased to 2.65% for the year ended December 31, 2005 from

3.09% for the year ended December 31, 2004. Our efficiency ratio, which represents operating expenses as a percentage of our
net interest and fee income and other income, decreased to 30.05% for the year ended December 31, 2005 from 31.80% for the
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year ended December 31, 2004. The improvements in operating expenses as a percentage of average total assets and the efficiency
ratio were attributable to controlling our operating expenses and spreading those expenses over a growing portfolio of loans. The
improvement in our efficiency ratio also partially resufted from the significant increase in our net interest and fee income.

Income Taxes
We provided for income taxes on the income earned for the year ended December 31, 2005 based on a 38.8% effective tax rate
compared to a 39.2% effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Financial Condition

Commercial Lending & Investment Segment

Portfolio Composition

We provide commercial loans to businesses that require customized and sophisticated financing. We also invest in real estate and
selectively make equity investments. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, our commercial lending and investment portfolio com-
prised the following:

December 31,

(% in thousands) 2006 2005

Commercial loans $7,850,198 $5,987,743
Direct real estate investments 722,303 —
Equity investments 150,090 126,393
Total $8,722,591 $6,114,136

Commercial Lending Portfolio Composition

Our total commercial loan portfolio reflected in the portfolio statistics below includes loans, loans held for sale and receivables
under reverse-repurchase agreements. The composition of our commercial loan portfolio by loan type and by commercial finance
business as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 was as foliows:

December 31,

(% in thousands) 2006 2005
Composition of loan portfalic by loan type:
Senior secured asset-based loanst™ $2,599,014 33% $2,022,123 34%
First mortgage loanst 2,542,222 32 1,970,709 33
Sentor secured cash flow [oanst! 2,105,152 27 1,740,184 29
Subordinate loans 603,810 8 254,727 4
Total $7.850,198 100% $5,987,743 100%
Composition of loan portfolio by business:
Healthcare and Specialty Finance $2,775.748 35% $2,281,419 38%
Structured Finance 2,839,716 36 1,809,149 32
Corporate Finance 2,234,734 29 1,797,175 30
Totai $7,850,198 100% $5,987,743 100%

(1) Includes Term B ioans.
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We may have more than one loan to a client and its refated entities. For purposes of determining the portfolio statistics in this sec-
tion, we count each loan or client separately and do not aggregate loans to related entities. The number of Joans, average loan size,
number of clients and average loan size per client by commercial finance business as of December 31, 2006 was as follows:

Average
Number Average Number Loan Size
($ in thousands) of Loans Loan Size of Clients per Client
Composition of loan portfolio by business:
Healthcare and Specialty Finance 445 $ 6,238 304 $ 9,131
Structured Finance 255 11,136 216 13,147
Corporate Finance 372 6,007 B 12,993
Overall loan portfolio 1072 7,323 692 11,344
The scheduled maturities of our commercial loan portfolio by loan type as of December 31, 2006 were as follows:
Due in Due in
One Year One to Due after
($ in thousands) or Less Five Years Five Years Totatl
Scheduled maturities by loan type:
Senior secured asset-based loans™ $ 647,092 $1.949,704 $ 2,218 $2,599,014
First mortgage loanst" 771,500 1,595,166 175,556 2,542,222
Senior secured cash flow foanst” 276,151 1,686,068 142,833 2,105,152
Subordinate loans 150,399 135,425 317,986 603,810
Total $1,845,142 $5,366,363 $638,693 $7,850,198

(1) Includes Term B loans.

The dollar amounts of all fixed-rate and adjustable-rate commercial loans by Joan type as of December 31, 2006 were as follows:

Adjustable Fixed
{$ in thousands) Rates Rates Total
Composition of loan portfolio by loan type:
Senior secured asset-based loans'” $2,562,916 $ 36,008 $2,599,014
First mortgage loans'™ 2,198,956 343,226 2,542,222
Senior secured cash flow loans®® 2,087,634 17,518 2,105,152
Subordinate loans 530,146 73,664 603,810
Total $7,379,692 $470,506 $7,850,198
Percentage of total loan portfolio 94% 6% 100%

(1} includes Term B loans.

As of December 31, 2006, our Healthcare and Specialty Finance, Structured Finance and Corporate Finance businesses had com-
mitments to lend up to an additional $2.1 billion, $1.5 billion and $0.5 billion, respectively, to 304, 216 and 172 existing clients,
respectively. Throughout 2006, the mix of outstanding loans in our commercial loan portfolio has shifted to a greater percentage
of first mortgage and asset-based loans, including complementary fixed rate and low leverage real estate products, which have
become more attractive as a result of our status as a REIT.
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Credit Quality and Allowance for Loan Losses
As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the principal balances of foans 60 or more days contractually delinquent, non-accrual loans
and impaired loans in our commerciat lending portfolio were as follows:

December 31,

Commercial Loan Asset Classification 2006 2005

($ in thousands)

Loans 60 or more days contractually delinquent $ 88,067 3§ 41,785
Non-accrual loanst™ 183,483 137,446
Impaired loans®? 281,377 199,257
Less: loans in multiple categories (230,469) (175,070
Total $ 322,458 $ 203,418
Total as a percentage of total loans 411% 3.40%
Total as a percentage of all commercial assets 3.76% 3.40%

(1} Includes commercial icans with an aggreqgate principal balance of $47.0 million and $37.6 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respec-
tively, which were also dassified as loans 60 or maore days contractually delinquent.

(2} Includes commercial loans with an aggregate principal balance of $47.0 million and $37.6 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respec-
tively, which were also classified as loans 60 or more days contractually delinquent, and commercial loans with an aggregate principal batance of
$183.5 million and $137.4 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, which were aiso classified as loans on non-accrual status,

Reftective of principles established in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS™) No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for
Impairment of a Loan {"5FAS No. 1147), we consider a loan to be impaired when, based on current information, we determine that
it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the original loan agreement.
In this regard, impaired loans includes those loans where we expect to encounter a significant delay in the coliection of, andfor
shortfall in the amount of, contractual payments due to us.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we classified commercial loans with an aggregate carrying value of $194.7 million
as of December 31, 2006 as troubled debt restructurings as defined by SFAS No. 15, Accounting for Debtors and Creditors for
Troubled Debt Restructurings. As of December 31, 2006, commercial loans with an aggregate carrying value of $194.7 million
were classified as troubled debt restructurings. Additionally, under SFAS No. 114, loans classified as troubled debt restructurings
are aiso assessed as impaired, generally for a period of at least one year following the restructuring. The allocated reserve for
commercial oans classified as troubled debt restructurings was $31.5 million as of December 31, 2006. For the year ended
December 31, 2005, commercial loans with an aggregate carrying value of $73.7 miltion as of December 31, 2005 were classi-
fied as troubled debt restructurings. The allocated reserve for commercial loans classified as troubled debt restructurings was
$13.6 million as of December 31, 2005.

Middle market lending involves credit risks that we believe will result in further credit losses in our portfolio. We have provided an
allowance for loan losses to cover estimated losses inherent in our commercial loan portfolia. Qur allowance for loan losses was
$120.6 million and $87.4 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. These amounts equate to 1.54% and 1.46% of
gross loans as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. This increase is primarily due to additional charge offs recognized dur-
ing the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2005. Of our total allowance for loan losses
as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, $37.8 million and $33.1 million, respectively, were allocated to impaired loans. During the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, we charged off loans totafing $48.0 million and $13.5 million, respectively. Net charge
offs as a percentage of average loans were 0.69% and 0.27% for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Direct Real Estate Investments

Buring 2006, we began acquiring real estate for long-term investment purposes. These direct real estate investments are generally
leased to clients through the execution of long-term, triple-net operating leases. Under a typical triple-net lease, the client agrees
to pay a base monthly operating lease payment and all facility operating expenses as well as make capital improvements. As of
Decernber 31, 2006, we had $722.3 million in direct real estate investments which consisted primarily of land and buildings.
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Equity Investments

We commonly acquire equity interests in connection with loans to dlients. These investments include comman stock, preferred
stock, limited liability company interests, limited partnership interests and warrants to purchase equity instruments. In the past, we
have also invested in debt securities, the majority of which were sold during the year ended December 31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the carrying values of our investments in our Commercial Lending & Investment segment
were $150.1 million and $126.4 million, respectively. Included in these balances were investments carried at fair value totaling
$34.6 million and $60.7 million, respectively.

Residential Mortgage Investment Segment

Portfolio Composttion

We invest directly in residential mortgage investments and as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, our portfolio of residential mort-
gage investments was as follows:

December 31,

(% in thousands) 2006 2005
Mortgage-related receivables™ $2,295,922 $ —
Residential martgage-backed securities:
Agency? 3,502,753 2,280,952
Non-Agency? 34,243 —
Total $5,832,918 $2,290,952

(1) Represents secured receivables that are backed by adjustable rate residential prime mortgage foans.
(2) See following paragraph for a description of these securities.

We invest in RMBS, which are securities collateralized by residential martgage loans. These Agency MBS include mortgage-backed
securities whose payments of principal and interest are guaranteed by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac. We also have invesied in Non-
Agency MBS, which are RMBS that are not issued by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac and that are credit-enhanced through various
mechanisms inherent in the correspanding securitization structures. Substantially ali of our RMBS are collateralized by adjustable
rate residential mortgage loans, including hybrid adjustable rate mortgage loans. We account for our Agency MBS as debt securities
that are classified as trading investments and included in mortgage-backed securities pledged, trading on our accompanying
audited consolidated balance sheets. We account for our Non-Agency MBS as debt securities that are classified as available-for-sale
and included in investments on our accompanying audited consolidated balance sheets. The coupons on the loans underlying RMBS
are fixed for stipulated periods of time and then reset annually thereafier. The weighted average net coupon of Agency MBS in our
portfolio was 4.89% as of December 31, 2006 and the weighted average reset date for the portfolio was approximately 46 months.
The weighted average net coupon of Non-Agency MBS in our portfolio was 8.41% as of December 31, 2006. The fair values of our
Agency MBS and Non-Agency MBS were $3.5 billion and $34.2 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2005, we owned $2.0 billion of Agency MBS that were simultaneously financed with repurchase agreements
with the same counterparty from whom the investments were purchased. Because of this purchase and financing relationship,
these transactions were recorded net on our accompanying audited consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2005 such that
a forward commitment to purchase Agency MBS was recognized for financial statement purposes as well as a margin-refated cash
deposit that was made in connection with the related repurchase agreements. These commitments, which were accounted for as
derivatives, were considered forward commitments to purchase mortgage-backed securities and were recorded at their estimated
fair value with changes in fair value included in income for the year ended December 31, 2005. The fair value, including accrued
interest, of these forward commitments to purchase Agency MBS was $11.8 million as of December 31, 2005. In March 2006, we
exercised our right to substitute collateral assigned to repurchase agreements thal were executed to finance the purchase of Agency
MBS. In so doing, we concluded that we obtained effective control over the Agency MBS and, therefore, recognized acquired
Agency MBS and the principal balance of amounts used pursuant to the corresponding repurchase agreements on our halance
sheet at fair value at the date the substitution was completed.

CarrtanSource 51




As of December 31, 2008, we had $2.3 billion in mortgage-related receivables secured by prime residential mortgage loans. As of
December 31, 2006, the weighted average interest rate on these receivables was 5.38%, and the weighted average contractual
maturity was approximately 29 years. See further discussion on our accounting treatment of martgage-related receivables in Note 4,
Mortgage-Related Receivables and Related Owners Trust Securitizations, in our accompanying audited consolidated financial state-
ments for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Credit Quality and Allowance for Loan Losses

We recorded a provision for loan losses of $0.4 million related to our mortgage-related receivables during the year ended
December 31, 2006 and the allowance for loan losses was $0.4 million as of December 31, 2006. To date, we have experienced
no charge offs on these investments.

Financing

We have financed our investments in RMBS primarily through repurchase agreements. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, our
outstanding repurchase agreements totaled $3.4 billion and $2.2 billion, respectively. As of December 31, 2006, repurchase agree-
ments that we executed had maturities of between 8 and 38 days and a weighted average borrowing rate of 5.32%.

Our investmenits in residential mortgage-related receivables were financed primarily through debt issued in connection with two
securitization transactions. As of December 31, 2006, the total outstanding balance of these debt obligations was $2.3 billion. The
interest rates on all classes of the notes within each securitization are fixed for various periods of time and then reset annually
thereafter, with a weighted average interest rate of 4.94% as of December 31, 2006. The notes within each securitization are
expected to mature at various dates through 2036.

The interest rates on our repurchase agreements, securitization-based debt and other financings may change at different times and
in different magnitudes than the interest rates earned on our residential mortgage investments. See Market Risk Management
below for a discussion of our interest rate risk management program related to our residential mortgage investment portiolio.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is a measurement of our ability to meet potential cash requirements, which include funding our existing commercial loan
and investment commitments, acquiring residential mortgage investments, funding ongoing commitments to repay borrowings,
paying dividends and for other general business purposes. Our primary sources of funds consist of cash flows from operations, bor-
rowings under our existing and future repurchase agreements, credit facilities, term debt, subordinated debt and convertible debt,
proceeds from issuances of equity and other sources. We believe these sources of financing are sufficient to meet our short-term
liquidity needs. We have applied for an Industrial Loan Corporation charter with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).
If the charter is granted, we expect to obtain additional funds through the brokered deposit market.

As of December 31, 2006, the amount of our unfunded commitments to extend credit to our dlients exceeded our unused fund-
ing sources and unrestricted cash by $1.1 billion. We expect that our commercial toan commitments will continue to exceed our
available funds indefinitely. Our obligation to fund unfunded commitments generally is based on our clients’ ability to provide
additional collateral to secure the requested additional fundings, the additional collateral’s satisfaction of eligibility requirements
and our clients’ abifity to meet certain other preconditions to borrowing. Pravided our clients’ additional collateral meets all of the
eligibility requirements of our funding sources, we believe that we have sufficient funding capacity to meet short-term needs
related to unfunded cormmitments. If we do not have sufficient funding capacity to satisfy these commitments, our failure to
satisfy our full contractual funding commitment to one or more of our clients could create breach of contract liability for us and
damage our reputation in the marketplace, which could have a material adverse effect on our business.

As a result of our decision to make an election to REIT status, we may continue to acquire additional residential mortgage invest-

ments, As discussed below, we have funded and expect to continue to fund these purchases primarily through repurchase
agreements and term debt using leverage consistent with industry standards for these assets.
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We will determine our long-term liquidity and capital resource requirements based on the growth rate of our portfolio and other
assets. Additionally, as a REIT, our growth must be funded largely by external sources of capital due to the requirement to distribute
at least 90% of our REIT taxable income 1o our shareholders to gualify as a REIT. We are not required to distribute the taxable
income related to our TRSs and, therefore, have the flexibility to retain these earnings, We intend to pay dividends at least equal to
90% of our REIT taxable income. We may cause our TRSs to pay dividends to us to increase our REIT taxable income, subject to the
REIT gross income limitations. If we are limited in the amount of dividends we can receive from our TRSs, we intend to use other
sources of cash to fund dividend payments. In 2006, our TRSs paid a $75.0 million dividend 1o us.

We anticipate that we will need to raise additional capital from time to time to support our growth. in addition to raising equity, we
plan to continue to access the debt market for capital and to continue to explore additional sources of financing. We expect these
financings will include additional secured and unsecured credit facilities, secured and unsecured term debt, subordinated debt,
repurchase agreements, equity-related securities such as convertible debt and/or other financing sources. We cannot assure you,
however, that we will have access to any of these funding sources in the future.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had $396.2 million and $323.9 million, respectively, in cash and cash equivalents. We
invest cash on hand in short-term liquid investments.

We had $240.9 million and $284.8 million of restricted cash as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The restricted cash
primarily represents both principal and interest collections on loans collateralizing our term debt and on loans pledged to our credit
facilities. We also have restricted cash representing other items such as client holdbacks, escrows and securities pledged as collateral
to secure our repurchase agreements and related derivatives. Principal repayments, interest rate swap payments, interest payable
and servicing fees are deducted from the monthly principal and interest collections funded by loans collateralizing our credit facili-
ties and term debt, and the remaining restricted cash is returned to us and becomes unrestricted at that time.

Sources and Uses of Cash

For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, we used cash from operations of $0.4 million and $224.7 million, respectively.
Included within these amounts are cash outflows related to the purchase of Agency MBS that are classified as trading investments
and loans held for sale. For the year ended December 31, 2004, we generated cash flow from operations of $140.8 million.

Cash from our financing activities is generated from proceeds from our issuance of equity, borrowings on our repurchase agree-
ments, credit facilities and term debt and from our issuance of convertible debt and subordinated debt. Qur financing activities
primarily use cash to repay term debt borrowings and to pay cash dividends. For the years ended December 31, 20086, 2005 and
2004, we generated cash flow from financing activities of $4.8 billion, $2.1 billion and $1.9 billion, respectively.

Investing activities primarily relate to loan origination, purchases of residential mortgage investments, primarily mortgage-related
receivables, and acquisitions of direct real estate investments. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, we used
cash in investing activities of $4.8 billion, $1.7 billion and $2.0 billion, respectively.

Borrowings

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had outstanding borrowings totaling $12.9 billion and $5.4 billion, respectively. Borrowings
under our repurchase agreements, credit facilities, term debt, convertible debt and subordinated debt have supported our growth.
For a detailed discussion of our borrowings, see Note 11, Barrowings, in our accompanying audited consolidated financial state-
ments for the year ended December 31, 2006.
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Our funding securces, maximum faciiity amounts, amounts outstanding, and unused available commitments, subject to certain
minimum equity requirements and other covenants and conditions as of December 3 1, 2006 were as follows:

Maximum
Facility Amount Unused

Funding Source Amount Outstanding Capacity®
($ in thousands)
Repurchase agreements $3,810,768 $ 3,510,768 $ 300,000
Unsecured credit facilities 640,000 355,685 284,315
Secured credit facilities 4,310,820 2,183,155 2,127,665

Subtotal £8,761,588 6,049,608 $2,711,980
Term debtt! 5,809,685
Convertible dept!™ 555,000
Subordinated debt™ 446,393
Total $12,860,686

(1) Our term debt, convertible debt and subordinated debt are one-time fundings that do not provide any ability for us to draw down addi-
tional amounts.
(2) Excludes issued and outstanding letters of credit to taling $130.1 miffion as of December 31, 2006.

Our overall debt strategy emphasizes diverse sources of financing including both secured and unsecured financings. As of
December 31, 2006, approximately 89% of our debt was collateralized by our loans and residential mortgage investments and
11% was unsecured. We intend to increase our percentage of unsecured debt aver time through both unsecured credit facilities
and unsecured term debt. Fitch Ratings issued an investment grade rating to our senior unsecured debt during 2005. As we
continue to grow, we expect to obtain investment grade ratings from other rating agencies and to improve these ratings over
time. As our ratings improve, we should be able to issue more unsecured debt relative to the amount of our secured debt. In any
case, we intend to maintain prudent levels of leverage and currently expect our debt to equity ratio on our commercial lending
portfolio to remain below 5x.

Repurchase Agreements

We entered into seven new master repurchase agreements during the year ended December 31, 2006. We also borrowed under
our new and existing repurchase agreements with various financiat institutions to finance purchases of RMBS during the year. RMBS
and short term liquid investments callateralize our repurchase agreements as of December 31, 2006. Substantially all of our repur-
chase agreements and related derivative instruments require us to deposit additional collateral if interest rates change or the market
value of existing collateral declines, which may require us to sell assets to reduce our borrowings.

Credit Facilities

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we increased our committed credit facility capacity by $870.6 million 1o $5.0 billion.
This net increase in capacity primarily resulted from the addition of a $640.0 million unsecured credit facility, the addition of a
$834.8 million secured credit facility in our QRS and a $930.0 million capacity increase in our previously existing QRS secured credit
{acility. These increases were partially offset by decreased capacity, totaling $1.5 billion, in one of our TRS's subsidiary’s credit facili-
ties. As of December 31, 2006, we had seven credit facilities, six of which are secured and cne of which is unsecured, with a total
of 20 financial institutions that we primarily use to fund our loans and for general corporate purposes. To date, many loans have
been held, or warehoused, in our secured credit facilities until we complete a term debt transaction in which we securitize a pool
of loans from these facilities. We primarily use the proceeds from our term debt transactions to pay down our credit facilities, which
results in increased capacity to redraw on them as needed. As of December 31 . 2006, one of our credit faciiities, with a total capac-
ity of $906.0 million, is scheduled to mature within one year. The amount outstanding under this facility was $403.4 million as of
December 31, 2006. Our other six credit facilities, with a total capacity of $4.1 billion, have scheduled maturity dates between one
and three years, of which $3.1 billion is subject to annual renewal.
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In addition, in December 2006, we entered into a $287.1 million loan agreement with Celumn Financial Inc. to finance the
acquisition of 65 of the healthcare properties we hold as direct real estate investments. Under the terms of this agreement, we
are required to make monthly payments based upon a 25-year amortization and an interest rate equat to the sum of the bid side
yield of a U.S. Treasury obligation having a maturity of January 2017 plus the prevailing ten-year U.S. Treasury swap rate plus
1.90%. Under the terms of a letter agreement signed at closing, we were provided with an option to mediiy the loan agreement
by mutual consent or to prepay the outstanding principal balance without penalty. As extended this option expires on March 29,
2007. As of December 31, 2006, the balance of this loan agreement is included in secured credit facilities on our accompanying
audited consclidated balance sheet.

Term Debt

In April 2006, we completed a $782.3 million term debt transaction. The transaction covers the sale of $715.8 million of fioating-
rate asset-backed notes, which are backed by a $782.3 million diversified pool of commercial loans from our TRS portfolio. The
offered notes represent 91.5% of the collateral pool, and we retained an 8.5% interest in the collateral pool. The blended pricing
for the offered notes (excluding fees) was one-month LIBOR plus 25.3 basis points. We used the proceeds primarily te repay out-
standing indebtedness under certain of our credit facilities.

in September 2006, we completed a $1.5 billion term debt transaction that includes a three-year replenishment period aliowing us,
subject to certain restrictions, io reinvest principal payments into new loan collateral from our TRSs. The transaction covers the sale
of $1.3 billion of floating-rate asset-backed notes, which are backed by a $1.5 billion diversified pool of senior and subordinated
commercial loans from our TRS portfolio. The value of the offered notes represents 88.5% of the value of the collateral pool, and
we retained an 11.5% interest in the collateral pool. The blended pricing for the offered notes (exciuding fees) was one-month
LIBOR plus 39.4 basis points. In October 2006, we sold $20.0 million of the floating-rate asset-backed rotes initially retained,
increasing the total value of the notes sold to 89.8% of the value of the collateral pool. We used the proceeds from this offering
primarily to repay cutstanding indebtedness under certain of our credit facilities.

In Decernber 2006, we completed our inaugural term debt issuance from our QRS, which was a $1.3 billion term debt transaction
that includes a five-year replenishment period allowing us, subject to certain restrictions, to reinvest principal payments into new
loan collateral. The transaction covers the sale of $1.2 billion of floating-rate asset-backed notes which are backed by a $1.3 billion
diversified poo! of commercial real estate loans from our QRS portfolio. The value of the offered notes represents 91.7% of the
value of the collateral poal, and we retained an 8.3% interest in the collateral pool. The blended pricing for the offered notes
{excluding fees) was three-month LIBOR plus 39.7 basis points. We used the proceeds to repay outstanding indebtedness under
certain of our credit facilities.

Owner Trust Term Debt

In February 2006, we purchased beneficial interests in securitization trusts (the “Owner Trusts”) which issued $2.4 billion in notes
{the “Senior Notes”) and $105.6 miliion in subordinate notes backed by $2.5 billion of a diversified pool of adjustable rate com-
mercial loans.

In the first securitization, the Owner Trusts issued $1.5 billion in Senior Notes and $65.4 million in subordinate notes. The interest
rates on the Class I-A1 and -A2 Senior Notes have an initial fixed interest rate of 4.90% until the initial reset date of February 1,
2010. The interest rates on the Class Il-A1 and 11-A2 Senior Notes have an initial fixed interest rate of 4.70% until the initial reset
date of Ociober 1, 2010. The interest rates on the Class lIl-A1 and I1-A2 Senior Notes have an initial fixed interest rate of 5.50%
until the initial reset date of January 1, 2011, After the initial reset date, the interest rates on all classes of the Senior Notes will reset
annually based on a blended rate of one-year constant maturity treasury index (“CMT") plus 240 basis points, up to specified caps.
These Senior Notes, which were sold to third parties, are expected to mature at various dates through March 25, 2036. One of our
subsidiaries purchased the subordinate notes. The outstanding balance of these Senior Notes and subordinate notes was $1.4 bil-
lion as of December 3%, 2006.
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In the second securitization, the Owner Trusts issued $940.9 million in Senior Notes and $40.2 million in subordinate notes. The inter-
est rates on all classes of the Senior Notes, which were sold to third parties, have an initial fixed interest rate of 4.63% until the initial
reset date of Novernber 1, 2010. After the initial reset date, the interest rates of the Senior Notes will reset annually based on a blended
rate of one-year CMT plus 225 basis points, up to specified caps. These Senior Notes are expected to mature on February 26, 2036.
One of our subsidiaries purchased the subordinate notes. The outstanding balance of these Senior Notes and subordinate notes was
$895.0 million as of December 31, 2006.

The accounting treatment of these two securitization transactions is further discussed in Note 4, Mortgage-Related Receivables and
Related Owners Trust Securitizations, and Note 11, Borrowings.

Convertible Debt

We have outstanding $225.0 million in aggregate principal amount of senior convertible debentures due 2034 (the “March 2004
Debentures”) and $330.0 million in aggregate principal amount of senior convertible debentures due July 2034 (the "July 2004
Debentures”, together with the March 2004 Debentures, the ”Debentures” or “Contingent Convertibles”). Until March 2009,
the March 2004 Debentures will bear interest at a rate of 1.25%, after which time the debentures will not bear interest. As of
December 31, 2006, the March 2004 Debentures are convertible, subject to certain conditions described below, into shares of
our common stock at a rate of 39.6859 shares of comman stock per $1,000 principal amount of debentures. The conversion
rate will adjust each time we pay a dividend on our comman stock, with the fair value of each adjustment taxable to the holders.
The March 2004 Debentures will be redeemable for cash at our option at any time on or after March 15, 2009 at a redemption
price of 100% of their principal amount plus accrued interest. Holders of the March 2004 Debentures will have the right to
require us to repurchase some or all of their debentures for cash on March 15, 2009, March 15, 2014, March 15, 2019, March 15,
2024 and March 15, 2029 at a price of 100% of their principal amount plus accrued interest. Holders of the March 2004 Debentures
will also have the right to require us to repurchase some or all of their March 2004 Debentures upon certain events constituting a
fundamental change.

Holders of the March 2004 Debentures may convert their debentures prior to maturity only if: (1) the sale price of our common
stock reaches specified threshoelds, (2) the trading price of the March 2004 Debentures falls below a specified threshold, (3} the
March 2004 Debentures have been called for redemption, or (4) specified corporate transactions occur, See Note 11, Borrowings,
in our accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006 for a detailed discussion of
these conditions.

The July 2004 Debentures will pay contingent interest, subject to certain fimitations, beginning on July 15, 2011. As of December 31,
2006, the July 2004 Debentures are convertible, subject to certain conditions described below, into shares of our common stock at
arate of 37.9561 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount of debentures. The conversion rate will adjust each time we
pay a dividend on our commeon stack, with the fair value of each adjustment taxable to the holders. The July 2004 Debentures will
be redeemable for cash at our option at any time on or after July 15, 2011 ata redemption price of 100% of their principal amount
plus accrued interest. Holders of the July 2004 Debentures will have the right to require us to repurchase some or all of their July 2004
Debentures for cash on July 15, 2011, July 15, 2014, July 15, 2019, July 15, 2024 and July 15, 2029 at a price of 100% of their
principal amount plus accrued interest. Holders of the July 2004 Debentures will also have the right to require us to repurchase some
or all of their July 2004 Debentures upon certain events constituting a fundamental change.

Holders of the July 2004 Debentures may convert their debentures prior to maturity only if: (1) the sale price of our common stock
reaches specified thresholds, (2) the trading price of the July 2004 Debentures falls below a specified threshold, (3) the July 2004
Debentures have been called for redemption, or (4) specified corporate transactions occur. See Note 11, Borrowings, in cur accompa-
nying audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005 for a detailed discussion of these conditions.

To the extent that the respective conversion prices are adjusted below the price of our common stock at the time the Debentures

were issued, we would be required to record a beneficial conversion option which would impact both our net income and net
income per share. This has not occurred as of Decemnber 31, 2006,
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Subordinated Debt

We periodically issue subordinated debt to statutory trusts (“TP Trusts”) that are formed for the purpose of issuing preferred securi-
ties to outside investors, which we refer to as Trust Preferred Securities (“TPS"). We generally retain 100% of the common securities
issued by the TP Trusts, representing 3% of their total capitalization. As of December 31, 2006, we had completed seven subordi-
nated debt transactions, of which four bear interest at a floating interest rate and three bear fixed interest rates for a specified
period and then bear interest at a floating interest rate until maturity. The terms of the subordinated debt issued to the TP Trusts
and the TPS issued by the TP Trusts are substantially identical. The subordinated debt is unsecured and ranks subordinate and junior
in right of payment to all of our other indebtedness.

Debt Covenant Compliance

CapitalSource Finance LLC, one of our wholly owned indirect subsidiaries, services loans collateralizing our secured credit facilities
and term debt and is required to meet various financial and non-financial covenants. Failure to meet the covenants could result in
the servicing being transferred to another servicer. The notes under the trusts established in connection with our term debt include
accelerated amortization provisions that require cash flows to be applied to pay the noteholders if the notes remain outstanding
beyond the stated maturity dates. We, and certain of our other wholly owned subsidiaries, also have certain financial and non-
financial covenants related to our unsecured credit facility, subordinated debt and our other debt financings. As of December 31,
2006, we believe we were in compliance with all of our covenants.

Equity

In March 2006, we sold 17.6 million shares of our common stock in a public offering at a price of $23.50 per share. In connec-
tion with this offering, we received net proceeds of $395.7 million, which were used to repay outstanding borrowings under our
credit facilities.

In March 2006, we began offering a Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan (the “DRIP”) to current and prospective share-
holders. Participation in the DRIP allows comman shareholders to reinvest cash dividends and to purchase additional shares of our
common stock, in some cases at a discount from the market price. During the year ended December 31, 2006, we received pro-
ceeds of $191.0 million related to the purchase of 7.7 million shares of our common stock pursuant to the DRIP. In addition, we
received proceeds of $17.2 million related to cash dividends reinvested for 0.7 million shares of our cornmon stock during the year
ended December 31, 2006.

Special Purpose Entities

We use SPEs as an integral part of our funding activities. We commonly service loans that we have transferred to these vehicles. The
use of these special purpose entities is generally required by our fenders in connection with our secured debt financings. Loans that
we transfer to these vehicles are legally isolated from us including if we were te be in bankruptcy.

We also used special purpose entities to facilitate the issuance of collateralized loan obligation transactions that are further described
in Part 1, ltern 1, Business, of this Annuat Repart on Form 10-K. Additionally, we purchase beneficial ownership interests in residen-
tial mortgage assets that are held by special purpose entities established by third parties.

We evaluate all SPEs with whom we are affiliated to determine whether such entities must be consolidated for financial statement
purpases. If we determine that such entities represent variable interest entities as defined by FASB interpretation No. 46 (Revised
2003), Consclidation of Variable Interest Entities—An Interpretation of ARB No. 57, (“FIN 46(R)"). We consolidate these entities
when we determine that we are the primary beneficiary of the entity. For special purpose entities which we determine that we are
not the primary beneficiary, we account for our econaomic interests in these entities in accordance with the nature of our investments.
As further discussed in Note 4, Mortgage-Related Receivables and Related Owners Trust Securitizations, in February 2006, we
acquired beneficial interests in two special purpose entities that acquired and securitized pools of residential mortgage loans. In
accordance with the provisions of FIN 46(R), we determined that we were the primary beneficiary of these SPEs and, therefore, con-
solidated the assets and liabilities of such entities for financial statement purposes. Additionally, and as further discussed in Note 11,
Borrowings, the assets and related liabilities of all special purpose entities that we use to issue our term debt are recognized on our
accompanying audited consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.
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Commitments, Guarantees & Contingencies

As of December 31, 2006 and, 2005, we had unfunded commitments to extend credit to our clients of $4.1 billion and $3.2 billion,
respectively. A discussion of these commitments is included in Note 21, Credit Risk, in our accompanying audited consolidated
financial staterents for the year ended December 31, 2006,

We have non-cancelable operating leases for office space and office equipment. The leases expire over the next ten years and con-
tain provisions for certain annual rental escalations. A discussion of these contingencies is included in Note 18, Commitments and
Contingencies, in our accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2006, we had issued $253.2 million in letters of credit which expire at various dates over the next seven years.
If a borrower defaults on its commitment(s) subject to any letter of credit issued under these arrangements, we would be respon-
sible to meet the borrower's financial obligation and would seek repayment of that financial obligation from the borrower. A
discussion of these contingencies is included in Note 18, Commitments and Contingencies, in our accompanying audited consoli-
dated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2006, we had identified conditional asset retirement obligations primarily related to the future removal and
disposal of asbestos that is contained within certain of our direct real estate investment properties. For reasons further discussed in
Note 18, Commitrents and Contingencies, in our accompanying audited consolidated financia! statements for the year ended
December 31, 2006, no liability for conditional asset retirement obligations was recorded on our accompanying audited consoli-
dated balance sheet as of December 31, 2006.

One of our wholly owned indirect subsidiaries has provided a limited financial guarantee to a third party warehouse lender, which
financed the purchase of $125.6 million of commercial foans by a special purpose entity to which we provide advisory services in
connection with its purchase of commerciat loans. We have provided the warehouse lender with a limited guarantee under which
we agreed to assume a portion of net losses realized in connection with those loans held by the special purpose entity up to a
specified loss limit. This guarantee is due to expire on September 24, 2007 or earlier to the extent that the warehouse facility is
refinanced prior to the guarantee’s expiry. In accordance with the provisions of FIN 46(R) and SFAS No. 140, Accounting for Transfers
and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, we determined that we are not required to recognize the assets
and liabilities of this special purpose entity for financial statement purposes as of December 31, 2006.

In connection with certain securitization transactions, we typically make customary representations and warranties regarding the
characteristics of the underlying transferred assets. Prior to any securitization transaction, we perform due diligence with respect to
the assets to be included in the securitization transaction to ensure that they satisfy the representations and warranties. Due to
these procedures, we believe that the potential for loss is remote and therefore no lrability is recorded in our consolidated financial
statements related to these representations and warranties. The outstanding loan balance related to these securitization transac-
tions was approximately $2.3 billion as of December 31, 2006.

In our capacity as originator and servicer in certain securitization transactions, we may be required to repurchase or substitute loans
which breach a representation and warranty as of their date of transfer to the securitization vehicle.

From time to time we are party to legal proceedings. We do not believe that any currently pending or threatened proceeding, if
determined adversely to us, would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations,
including our cash flows.

Contractual Obligations

In addition to our scheduled maturities on our repurchase agreements, credit facilities, term debt, convertible debt and subordi-
nated debt, we have future cash obligations under various types of contracts. We lease office space and office equipment under
long-term operating leases and we have committed to contribute up to an additional $15.5 million to 13 private equity funds,
$6.0 millior to a joint venture and $0.8 miflion to an equity investment. The contractual obligations under our repurchase agree-
ments, credit facilities, term debt, convertible debt and subordinated debt are included in the accompanying audited consolidated
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balance sheet as of December 31, 2006. The expected contractual obligations under our repurchase agreements, credit facilities,
term debt, convertible debt, subordinated debt, operating leases and commitments under non-cancelable contracts as of
December 31, 2006 were as follows:

Unsecured Secured Non-

Repurchase Credit Credit Term Convertible Subordinated Qperating Cancelable

Agreements Facilities Facilities Debt" Debt Debt Leases  Contracts Total
{$ in thousands)
2007 $3,510,768 & — $ 403400 $1143246 % — % — $ 789 % — § 5,065,313
2008 — — 358,602 587,596 — — 7.736 — 853,934
2009 —_ 355,685 1,133,970 553,857 225,000 — 6,617 —_ 2,275,129
2010 — — — 383,382 — — 6,159 818 390,359
2011 — -— — 387,717 330,000 — 5.842 2,175 725,734
Thereafter — — 287,183 2,775,502 — 446,393 9,389 19,283 3,537,750
Total $3,510,768 $355,685 $2,183,155 $5,831,300 $555,000 $446,393 $43,642 $22,276  $12,948,219

(1) Excludes net unamortized discounts of $21.6 million.

The contractual obligations for credit facilities are computed based on the stated maturities of the facilities not considering optional
annual renewals. ’

Except for our series 2006-2 Term Debt (*2006-2") and series 2006-A Term Debt (*2006-A" ), the coniractual obligations for term
debt are based on the contractual maturities of the underlying loans held by the securitization trusts and an assumed constant
prepayment rate of 10%. 2006-2 and 2006-A have replenishment periods that allow us, subject to certain restrictions, to reinvest
principal payments into eligible new loan collateral and we assumed no prepayments would be made during these replenishment
periods, but use a constant prepayment rate of 10% once the replenishment period ends. The underlying Joans are subject to pre-
payment, which would shorten the life of the term debt transactions. The underlying loans may be amended to extend their term,
which will lengthen the life of the term debt transactions. At our option, we may substitute new loans for prepaid loans up to
specified limitations, which may also impact the life of the term debt transactions. In addition, the contractual obligations for our
term debt transactions are computed based on the initial call date.

The contractual obligations for convertible debt are computed based on the initial put/call date. The legal maturity of the convertible
debt is 2034. For further discussion of terms of our convertible debt and factors impacting their maturity see Note 2, Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies, and Note 11, Borrowings, in our audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2006,

The contractual obligations for subordinated debt are computed based on the legal maturities of the subordinated debt, which are
between 2035 and 2037.

We enter into derivative contracts under which we are required to either receive cash or pay cash to counterparties depending on
changes in interest rates. Derivative contracts are carried at fair value on the accompanying audited consolidated balance sheet as
of December 31, 2006, with the fair value representing the net present value of expected future cash receipts or payments based
on market interest rates as of the balance sheet date. The fair value of the contracts changes daily as market interest rates change.
Further discussion of derivative instruments is included in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, and Note 20,
Derivative Instruments, in our accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in a borrower’s or counterparty’s ability to meet its financial obligations
under agreed-upon terms. Credit risk exists primarily in our lending and derivative portfolios. The degree of credit risk will vary based
on many factors including the size of the asset or transaction, the credit characteristics of the borrower, the contractual terms of
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the agreement and the availability and quality of collateral. We manage credit risk of our derivatives and credit-related arrange-
ments by limiting the total amount of arrangements outstanding by an individual counterparty, by obtaining collateral based on
management’s assessment of the client and by applying uniform credit standards maintained for all activities with credit risk.

We have established a Credit Committee to evaluate and approve credit standards and to oversee the credit risk management func-
tion related to our commercial loans and investments. The Credit Committee’s primary responsibilities include ensuring the adequacy
of our credit risk management infrastructure, overseeing credit risk management strategies and methodologies, monitoring condi-
tions in real estate and other markets having an impact on lending activities, and evaluating and monitoring overall credit risk.

Commercial Lending & Investment Segment

Credit risk management for the commercial loan and investment portfolio begins with an assessment of the credit risk profile of a
client based on an analysis of the client’s financial position. As part of the overall credit risk assessment of a client, each commercial
credit exposure or transaction is assigned a risk rating that is subject to approval based on defined credit approval standards. While
rating criteria vary by product, each loan rating focuses on the same three factors: credit, collateral, and financial performance.
Subsequent to loan origination, risk ratings are manitored on an ongoing basis. If necessary, risk ratings are adjusted to reflect
changes in the borrower’s or counterparty’s financial condition, cash flow or financial situation. We use risk rating aggregations to
measure and evaluate concentrations within portfalios. In making decisions regarding credit, we consider risk rating, collateral,
industry and single name concentration limits.

We use a variety of tools to continuously monitor a borrower's or counterparty’s ability to perform under its obligations. Additionally,
we Utilize syndication of exposure 1o other entities, loan sales and other risk mitigation technigues to manage the size and risk
profile of the loan pertfolio,

Residential Mortgage Investment Segment

We are exposed to changes in the credit performance of the mortgage loans underlying the Agency MBS, the Non-Agency MBS,
and the mortgage related receivables. With respect to Agency MBS, while we benefit from a full guaranty from Fannie Mae or
Freddie Mac, variation in the level of credit losses may impact the duration of our investments since a credit loss results in the pre-
payment of the relevant loan by the guarantor. With respect to Non-Agency MBS, the value or performance of our investrent may
be impacted by higher levels of credit losses, depending on the specific provisions of the relevant securitizations. With respect to
mortgage related receivables, we are directly exposed to the level of credit losses on the underlying mortgage loans.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

In our normal course of business, we engage in commercial lending activities with borrowers primarily throughout the United
States. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the entire Ioan portfolio was diversified such that no single borrower was greater than
10% of the portfolio. As of December 31, 2006, the single largest industry concentration was skilled nursing, which made up
approximately 18% of our commercial loan portfolio. As of December 31, 2006, the largest geographical concentration was
Florida, which made up approximately 15% of our commercial loan portfolio, As of December 31, 2006, the single largest industry
concentration in our direct real estate investment portfolio was skilled nursing, which made up approximately 98% of the invest-
ments. As of December 31, 2006, the largest geographical concentration in our direct real estate investment portfolio was Florida,
which made up approximately 40% of the investments.

Derivative Counterparty Credit Risk

Derivative financial instruments expose us to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to such agreements.
This risk consists primarily of the termination value of agreernents where we are in a favorable position. Credit risk related to
derivative financial instruments is considered and provided far separately from the aliowance for loan losses. We manage the
credit risk associated with various derivative agreements through counterparty credit review, counterparty exposure limits and
monitoring procedures. We obtain collateral from certain counterparties for amaunts in excess of exposure limits and monitor all
exposure and collateral requirements daily. We continually monitor the fair vaiue of collateral received from a counterparty and
may request additional collateral from caunterparties or return collateral pledged as deemed appropriate. Our agreements gener-
ally include master netting agreements whereby the counterparties are entitled to settle their positions “net.” As of December 31,
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2006 and 2005, the gross positive fair value of our derivative financial instruments was $23.7 million and $5.2 million, respectively.
Qur master netting agreements reduced the exposure to this gross positive fair value by $16.1 million and $4.4 million as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. We did not hold collateral against derivative financial instruments as of December 31,
2006 and 2005. Accordingly, our net exposure to derivative counterparty credit risk as of December 31, 2006 and December 31,
2005 was $7.6 million and $0.8 million, respectively.

Market Risk Management

Market risk is the risk that values of assets and liabilities or revenues will be adversely affected by changes in market conditions such
as market movements. This risk is inherent in the financial instruments associated with our operations and/or activities including
loans, securities, short-term borrowings, long-term debt, trading account assets and liabilities and derivatives. Market-sensitive assets
and liabilities are generated through loans associated with our traditional lending activities and market risk mitigation activities.

The primary market risk to which we are exposed is interest rate risk, which is inherent in the financial instruments associated with
our operations, primarily including our loans, residential mortgage investments and borrowings. Our traditional loan products are
non-trading positions and are reported at amortized cost. Additionally, debt obligations that we incur to fund our business opera-
tians are recarded at historical cost. While GAAP requires a historical cost view of such assets and liabilities, these positions are still
subject to changes in economic value based on varying market conditions. Interest rate risk is the effect of changes in the economic
value of our loans, and our other interest rate sensitive instruments and is reflected in the levels of future income and expense
produced by these positions versus levels that would be generated by current levels of interest rates. We seek to mitigate interest
rate risk through the use of various types of derivative instruments. For a detailed discussion of our derivatives, see Note 20,
Derivative Instruments of our accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Interest Rate Risk Management—Commercial Lending & Investments Segment

Interest rate risk in our commercial lending portfalio refers to the change in earnings that may result from changes in interest rates,
primarily various short-term interest rates, including LIBOR-based rates and the prime rate. We attempt to mitigate exposure 10 the
earnings impact of interest rate changes by conducting the majority of our lending and borrowing on a variable rate basis. The
majority of our commercial loan portfolio bears interest at a spread to the prime or a LIBOR-based rate with almost ali of our ather
loans bearing interest at a fixed rate. The majority of our borrowings bear interest at a spread to LIBOR or commercial paper rates,
with the remainder bearing interest at a fixed rate. We are also exposed to changes in interest rates in certain of our fixed rate loans
and investments. We attempt to mitigate our exposure to the earnings impact of the interest rate changes in these assets by engag-
ing in hedging activities as discussed below.

The estimated changes in net interest income for a 12-month period based on changes in the interest rates applied to our com-
mercial lending portfolio as of December 31, 2006 were as follows:

Rate Change Estimated (Decrease) Increase in Net
{Basis Points) Interest Income over 12 Months
(% in thousands)

~100 $(12,910)

-50 (5,766)

+50 10,033

+100 17,346

For the purposes of the above analysis, we included related derivatives, excluded principal payments and assurmed a 75% advance
rate on our variable rate borrowings.
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Approximately 45% of the aggregate outstanding principal amount of our commercial loans had interest rate floors as of
December 31, 2006. The loans with interest rate floors as of December 31, 2006 were as follows:

Amount Percentage of

(% in thousands) Outstanding Total Portfolio
Loans with contractual interest rates:

Exceeding the interest rate floor $3,460,686 43%

At the interest rate floor 39,948 1

Below the interest rate floor 36,544 1
Loans with no interest rate floor 4,313,020 55
Total $7.850,198 100%

We use interest rate swaps to economically hedge the risk of changes in fair value of certain fixed rate loans. We also enter into
additional basis swap agreements to economically hedge basis risk between our LIBOR-based term debt and the prime-based loans
pledged as collateral for that debt. These interest rate swaps modify our exposure 1o interest rate risk by synthetically converting
fixed rate and prime rate loans to one-month LIBOR. Additionally, we use interest rate caps to economically hedge loans with
embedded interest rate caps that are pledged as collateral for our term debt. Our interest rate hedging activities partially protect us
from the risk that interest collected under fixed-rate and prime rate loans will not be sufficient to service the interest due under the
one-month LIBOR-based term debt.

We also use interest rate swaps to hedge the variability of cash flows in interest payments for subordinated debt underlying certain
of our securities issuances. In addition, we use interest rate swaps to economically hedge changes in the fair vaiue of certain of our
fixed rate loans, which are not pledged to our term debt, and fixed rate investments.

We have also entered into forward exchange contracts to economically hedge anticipated loan syndications and foreign currency-
denominated loans we originate against foreign currency fluctuations. These forward exchange contracts provide for a fixed
exchange rate which has the effect of focking in the anticipated cash fiows to be received from the loan syndication and the foreign
currency-denominated loans.

Interest Rate Risk Management—Residential Mortgage Investment Segment

We are exposed to changes in interest rates in our residential mortgage investment portfolio and related financings based on
changes in the level and shape of the yield curve, volatility of interest rates and mortgage prepayments. Changes in interest rates
are a significant risk to our residential mortgage investment portfolio. As interest rates increase, the market value of residential
mortgage investments may decline while financing costs could rise, to the extent not mitigated by positions intended to economi-
cally hedge these movements. Conversely, if interest rates decrease, the market value of residential mortgage investments may
increase while financing costs could decline, also to the extent not mitigated by positions intended to economically hedge these
movements. In addition, changes in the interest rate environment may affect mortgage prepayment rates. For example, in a rising
interest rate environment, mortgage prepayment rates may decrease, thereby extending the duration of our investments.

The majority of our residential mortgage investments are collateralized with mortgages that have a fixed interest rate for a certain
period of time followed by an adjustable rate period in which the adjustments are subject to annual and lifetime caps. Cur liabilities
include, with respect to RMBS and mortgage-related receivables, repurchase agreements indexed to a short-term interest rate mar-
ket index such as LIBOR and, with respect to mortgage-related receivables only, securitized term debt financing through debt
obligations secured by residential mortgage loans that have a similar initial fixed period followed by an adjustable period.

62  CarImaLSOURCE




The estimated changes in fair value based on changes in interest rates applied to our residential mortgage investment portfolio as
of December 31, 2006 were as follows:

Rate Change Estimated {Decrease) Percentage of Total
(Basis Points) Increase in Fair Value Segment Assets
(% in thousands}

-100 $(1,444} {0.02)%

-50 237 —

+50 (1,113) (0.02)

+100 {4,022) (0.07)

For the purposes of the above analysis, our residential mortgage investment portfolio includes all of our investments in residential
mortgage-related receivables, Agency MBS, term debt and related derivatives as of December 31, 2006.

In connection with our residential mortgage investments and related financings, we follow a risk management program designed
to mitigate the risk of changes in fair value of our residential mortgage investments due to shifts in interest rates. Specifically, we
seek to eliminate the effective duration gap associated with our assets and liabilities. To accomplish this objective, we use a variety
of derivative instruments such as interest rate swaps, interest rate caps, swaptions and Eurc dollar futures contracts. These derivative
transactions convert the short-term financing of our repurchase agreements to term financing matched to the expected duration
of our residential mortgage investments.

To the extent necessary and based an established risk criteria, we will adjust the mix of financing and hedges as market conditions
and asset performance evolves to maintain a close alignment between our assets and our liabilities. In addition, we have contracted
with an external investment advisor, BlackRock Financial Management, Inc., to provide analytical, risk management and other advi-
sory services in connection with interest rate risk management on this portfolio.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Accounting policies are integral to understanding our Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations. The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make certain judgments
and assumptions based on information that is available at the time of the financiai statements in determining accounting estimates
used in the preparation of such statements. Qur significant accounting policies are described in Note 2, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies, in our accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended Decernber 31, 2006 and
our critical accounting estimates are described in this section. Accounting estimates are considered critical if the estimate requires
management to make assumptions about matters that were highly uncertain at the time the accounting estimate was made and if
different estimates reasonably could have been used in the reporting period, or if changes in the accounting estimate are reasonably
likely to occur from period to period that would have a material impact on our financial condition, results of operations or cash
flows. Management has discussed the development, selection and cisclosure of these critical accounting estimates with the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee has reviewed cur disclosure related to these estimates.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is management’s estimate of probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio. Management periodically
performs detailed reviews of this portfolio to determine if impairment has occurred and to assess the adeguacy of the allowance for
loan losses, based on historical and current trends and other factors affecting loan losses. Additions to the allowance for loan losses
are charged to current period earnings through the provision for loan losses. Amounts determined to be uncoliectible are charged
directly against the allowance for loan losses, while amounts recovered on previously charged-off accounts increase the allowance.

The commercial loan portfolio comprises large balance, non-homogeneous exposures. These loans are evaluated individually and are
fisk-rated based upon barrower, collateral and industry-specific information that management believes is relevant to determining the
occurrence of a loss event and measuring impairment. Management establishes specific allowances for commercia! loans determined
to be individually impaired. The allowance for loan losses is estimated by management based upon the borrower’s overall financial
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condition, financial resources, payment history and, when applicable, the estimated realizable value of any collateral. In addition to
the specific allowances for impaired loans, we maintain allowances that are based on an evaluation for impairment of certain com-
mercial and residential portfolios. These allowances are based on historical experience, concentrations, current economic conditions
and performance trends within specific portfolio segments. Certain considerations are made in relation to the length and severity of
outstanding balances. We generally do not factor in guarantees from our capital call agreements with our borrowers’ private equity
sponsors in determining the overall allowance for loan losses. However, when perfarming the SFAS Na. 114 analysis on an individual
troubled loan, we do not consider any applicable borrower guarantees when calculating our potential for a specific loss.

The process for determining the reserve factors and the related level of loan loss reserves is subject to numerous estimates and
assumptions that require judgment about the timing, frequency and severity of credit losses that could materially affect the provi-
sicn for loan iosses and, therefare, net income. In this case, management is required to make judgments related, but not limited,
to: (i) risk ratings for pools of commercial loans; (i) market and collateral values and discount rates for individually evaluated loans;
(iii} oss rates used for commercial loans; (iv) adjustments made to assess current events and conditions; (v) considerations regarding
domestic economic uncertainty; and (/) overall credit conditions.

Our allowance for loan losses is sensitive to the risk rating assigned to commercial loans and to corresponding reserve factors that
we use to estimate the allowance and that are reflective of historical losses. We have assigned reserve factors to the loans in our
portfolio, which dictate the percentage of the total outstanding loan balance that we reserve. We review the loan portfolio informa-
tion regularly to determine whether it is necessary for us to further revise our reserve factors. The reserve factors used in the
calculation were determined by analyzing the following elements:

* the types of loans, for example, whether the loan is underwritten based on the borrower’s assets, real estate or cash flow;

* our historical losses with regard to the loan types;

* our expected losses with regard to the loan types; and

*» the internal credit rating assigned to the loans.

The sensitivity of our allowance for loan losses to potential changes in our reserve factors (in terms of basis points) applied to our
overall loan portfolio as of December 31, 2006 was as follows:

Change in Reserve Factors Estimated Increase (Decrease) in
{Basis Points) the Allowance for Loan Losses
(% in thousands)

+50 $ 39,382

+25 19,756

25 (19,495)

=50 {26,128)

These sensitivity analyses do not represent management's expectations of the deterioration, or improvement, in risk ratings, but are
provided as hypothetical scenarios to assess the sensitivity of the allowance for loan losses to changes in key inputs. We believe the
reserve factors currently in use are appropriate. If our internal credit ratings, reserve factors or specific reserves for impaired loans
are not accurate, our allowance for loan losses may be misstated. In addition, our operating results are sensitive to changes in the
reserve factors utilized to determine our related provision for loan losses.

We do not record an additional allowance for loan losses related te our commitments to lend as these amounts are generally subject
to approval based on the adequacy of the underlying collateral or other terms and canditions, such as the borrower not being in
default. There also can be no assurance as to the amount, timing or even if such commitments will be funded. Once a commitment
ta lend is funded, the amount is included in our overall portfolio balance and considered in our determination of the allowance for
loan losses.
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Fair Value of Certain Financial Instruments

A portion of our assets are accounted for at fair value, which is defined in GAAP as the amount at which an asset or liability could
be exchanged between willing parties, other than in a forced liquidation or sale. Invesiments in debt securities that are classified as
trading, as well as derivative instruments that are not designated in hedging relationships, are perindically adjusted to fair value
through earnings. Investments in debt securities that are classified as available-for-sale are adjusted to fair value through accumu-
lated other comprehensive income, while loans held for sale are recorded at the lower of carrying value or fair value. Additionally,
the fair value of equity investments is estimated for purposes of assessing and measuring such assets for impairment purposes.

The estimation of fair values reflects our judgments regarding appropriate valuation methods and assumptions. The selection of a
method to estimate fair value for each type of financial instrument depends on the reliability and availability of relevant market data.
The amount of judgment involved in estimating the fair value of a financial instrument is affected by a number of factors, such as
the type of instrument, the liguidity of the markets for the instrument and the contractual characteristics of the instrument.
Judgments in these cases include, but are not limited to:

¢ Selection of third-party market data sources;

¢ Evaluation of the expected reliability of the estimate;

« Reliability, timeliness and cost of alternative valuation methodologies; and

= Selection of proxy instruments, as necessary.

For financial instruments that are actively traded in the marketplace or whose values are based on readily available market value
data, little, if any, subjectivity is applied when determining the instrument’s fair value. When observable market prices and data do
nat exist, significant management judgment is necessary to estimate fair value. In those cases, small changes in assumptions could
result in significant changes in valuation.

The financial instruments we hold that require the most complex judgments and assumptions involve equity investments that do
not have readily determinable fair values and/or are not publicly traded. Each of these investments is valued using an internally
developed model. This model utitizes industry valuation benchmarks, such as multiples of earnings before interest, taxes, deprecia-
tion, and amortization (EBITDA) ranging from three to ten times, depending on the industry, to determine a value for the underlying
enterprise. We reduce this value by debt outstanding to arrive at an estimated equity value of the enterprise. When an external
event such as a purchase transaction, public offering or subsequent equity sale occurs, the pricing indicated by the external event
will be used to corroborate our private equity valuation, Securities that are traded in the over-the-counter market or on a stock
exchange generally will be valued at the prevailing bid price on the valuation date. Because of the inherent uncertainty of determin-
ing the fair value of investments that do not have a readily ascertainable market value, the fair value of our investments may differ
significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready market existed for the investments, and the differences could
be material.

Income Taxes

We expect to formally make an election to REIT status for 2006 under the Code when we file our tax return for the year ended
December 31, 2006. Accordingly, we generally will not be subject to corporate-level income tax on the earnings distributed to our
shareholders that we derive from our REIT qualifying activities. If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, all of our taxable
income would be subject to federal income tax at regular corporate rates, including any applicable alternative minimum tax. We
will still be subject to foreign, state and local taxation in foreign, state and local jurisdictions, including those in which we transact
business or reside.

In order to estimate our corporate-level income taxes as a REIT, we must determine the amount of our net income derived from REIT
qualifying activities and the amount derived from our TRSs during the entire taxable year. If our estimates of the source of the net
income are not appropriate, income taxes could be materially different from amounts reported in our quarterly consolidated state-
ments of income.
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We will continue to be subject to corparate-level tax on the earnings we derive from our TRSs. As more fuily described in Note 2,
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, and Note 14, Income Taxes, of the accompanying audited consolidated financial state-
ments for the year ended December 31, 2006, we account for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for
Income Taxes {("SFAS 109”). Accrued income taxes, reported as a component of other liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet,
represent the net amount of current income taxes we expect to pay or receive from various taxing jurisdictions attributable to our
operations to date. We consider many factors in filing income tax returns, including statutory, judicial and regutatory guidance, in
estimating the appropriate accrued income taxes for each jurisdiction.

In applying the principles of SFAS 109, we monitor relevant tax authorities and change our estimate of accrued income taxes due
to changes in income tax laws and their interpretation by the courts and regulatory authorities. These revisions of our estimate of
accrued income taxes, which also may result from our own income tax planning and from the resolution of income tax cantrover-
sies, can materially affect our operating results for any given reporting period.
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I ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed 10 certain financial market risks, which are discussed in detail in Management’s Discussiont and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations in the Market Risk Management section. In addition, for a detailed discussion of our deriva-
tives, see Note 20, Derivative instruments and Note 21, Credit Risk, in our accompanying audited consclidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2006 included herein in this Form 10-K.

Equity Price Risk

The debentures we issued in March 2004 are convertible into our common stock at a conversion price of $25.20 per share, subject
to adjustment upon the occurrence of specified events. Currently, each $1,000 of principal of the debentures is convertible into
39.6859 shares of our common stock, subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of specified events. Prior to the effective date of
EITF 04-8, we intend 1o make the irrevocable election to pay the principal balance of the debentures in cash upon any conversion
or repurchase prior to or at their respective maturities. Holders of the debentures may convert their debentures prior to maturity
only if: (1) the sale price of our common stock reaches specified thresholds, (2) the trading price of the debentures falls below a
specified threshold, (3) the debentures have been called for redemption, or {4) specified corporate transactions occur.

In addition, in the event of a significant change in our corporate ownership or structure, the holders may require us to repurchase
all or any portion of their debentures for 100% of the principal amount.

Concurrently with our sale of these debentures, we entered into two separate call option transactions with an affiliate of one of
the initial purchasers, in each case originally covered the same number of shares as into which the debentures are convertible. In
one transaction, we purchased a call option at a strike price equal to the conversion price of the debentures, adjusted for the
effect of dividends paid on our common stock. This option expires on March 15, 2009 and requires physical settlement. At the
time we make the irrevocable election to pay the prineipal balance of the debentures in cash, we also intend to amend this option
to provide that it may be settled in net shares so that the option continues to mirror the terms of the debentures. We intend to
exercise this call option from time to time as necessary o acquire shares that we may be required to deliver upon receipt of a
notice of conversion of the debentures. In the second transaction, we sold a call option to one of the initial purchasers for the
purchase of up to 7.4 million of our common shares at a strike price of approximately $31.4402 per share, adjusted for the effect
of dividends paid on our common stock through December 31, 2006. This call option expires at various dates from March 2009
through June 2009 and must be settled in net shares. The net effect of entering into these call option transactions was to minimize
potentia! dilution as a result of the conversion of the debentures by increasing the effective conversion price of the debentures to
a 75% premium over the March 15, 2004 closing price of our common stock. The cali option transactions were settled at a net
cost of approximately $25.6 million, which we paid from the proceeds of our sale of the debentures and was included as a net
reduction in shareholders' equity in the consolidated balance sheet.

The debentures we issued in July 2004 are convertible into our commaon stock at a conversion price of $26.35 per share, subject to
adjustment upon the occurrence of specified events. Currently, each $1,000 of principal of the debentures is convertible into
37.9561 shares of our common stock, subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of specified events. Prior to the effective date of
EITF 04-8, we intend to make the irrevocable election 1o pay the principal balance of the debentures in cash upon any conversion
or repurchase prior to or at their respective maturities. Holders of the debentures may convert their debentures prior to maturity
only if: {1} the sale price of our common stock reaches specified thresholds, (2) the trading price of the debentures falls below a
specified threshold, (3) the debentures have been called for redemption, or (4) specified carporate transactions occur.

In addition, in the event of a significant change in our corporate awnership or structure, the holders may reqguire us to repurchase
all or any portion of their debentures for 100% of the principal amount.
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MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of CapitalSource Inc. (" CapitalSource”) is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting. CapitalSource’s internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to the company’s
management and board of directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements.

Al internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to
be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

CapitalSource’s management assessed the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006. In making this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsering Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) in Internal Control—integrated Framework. Based on our assessment we believe that, as of December 31, 2006,
the company’s internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

CapitalSource's independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, has issued an audit report on our assessment of
the company’s internal control over financial reporting. This report appears on page 69.
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM,
ON INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of CapitalSource Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management Report ¢n internal Conirols Over Financial
Reporting, that CapitalSource Inc. (" CapitalSource”} maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). CapitalSource’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal con-
troi over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internat controf over financial reporting. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal controf over
financial reparting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Qur audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis far our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assur-
ance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect an the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projec-
tions of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periads are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessment that CapitalSource Inc. maintained effective internal control over finandial reporting
as of December 31, 20086, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Alse, in our opinion, CaptalSource
In¢. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the
CO30 criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of CapitalSource Inc. as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consclidated statements of
income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 anc our report

dated February 26, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.
émf ¥ MLLP

McLean, Virginia
February 26, 2007
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I ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of CapitalSource Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of CapitatSource Inc. (" CapitalSource™) as of December 31, 2006
and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of CapitalSource’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit alsc includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by man-
agement, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of CapitalSource Inc. at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.5. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
effectiveness of CapitalSource's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framewaork issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and
our report dated February 26, 2007 expressed an unqgualified opinion thereon.

éwwt ¥ LLP

McLean, Virginia
February 26, 2007
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

(3 in thousands) 2006 2005
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 396,151 $ 323,89
Restricted cash 240,904 284,785
Mortgage-related receivables, net 2,295,922 39,438
Mortgage-backed securities pledged, trading 3,502,753 323,370
Receivables under reverse-repurchase agreements 51,892 33,243
Loans held for sale 26,521 59,589
Loans:

Loans 7,771,785 5,894,911

Less deferred loan fees and discounts {130,392) {120,407}

Less allowance for loan losses (120,575) (87,370)

Loans, net 7,520,818 5,687,134
Direct real estate investments, net 722,303 —
Investments 184,333 126,393
Other assets 268,977 109,220
Total assets $15,210,574 $6,987,068
LIABILITIES, NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities:

Repurchase agreements $ 3,510,768 $ 358,423

Unsecured credit facilities 355,685 —

Secured credit facilities 2,183,155 2,450,452

Term debt 5.809,685 1,779,748

Convertible debt 555,000 555,000

Subordinated debt 446,393 231,959

Stock dividend payable — 280,720

Cash dividend payable — 70,202

Other liabilities 200,498 60,626

Total liabilities 13,061,184 5,787,130
Noncontrolling interests 56,350 —
Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred stack (50,000,000 shares authorized: no shares outstanding) — —
Common stock ($0.01 par value, 500,000,000 shares authaorized;

182,752,290 and 141,705,766 shares issued, respectively;

181,452,250 and 140,405,766 shares outstanding, respectively) 1,815 1,404
Additional paid-in capital 2,139,421 1,248,745
{Accumulated deficit) retained earnings (20,735) 46,783
Deferred compensation — (65,729)
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss), net 2,465 (1,339)
Treasury stock, at cost (29,92¢6) (29,926)
Total sharehalders’ equity 2,093,040 1,199,938
Total liabilities, noncontrolling interests and shareholders’ equity $15,210,574 $6,987.068

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

(3 in thousands, except per share data) 2006 2005 2004
Net investment income;

Interest income $ 1,016,533 $ 514,652 $ 313,827

Fee income 170,485 130,638 86,324

Total interest and fee income 1,187,018 645,290 400,151

Operating lease income 30,742 — —

Total investment income 1,217,760 645,290 400,151

interest expense 606,725 185,935 79,053
Net investment income 611,035 459,355 321,098
Provision for loan losses 81,562 65,680 25,710
Net investment income after provision for loan losses 529,473 393,675 295,388
Operating expenses:

Compensation and benefits 135,912 95,008 72,445

Other administrative expenses 80,140 48,828 35,303
Total operating expenses 216,052 143,836 107,748
Other income (expense):

Diligence deposits forfeited